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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

AAERKREERS

Registered Office

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business

28th Floor, Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Limited, HK Branch

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Key Dates

Annual Results Announcement 23 June 2020
Final Dividend HK$0.035 per share
— Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 26 August 2020

(before 4:30 p.m.)
27 and 28 August 2020
(both days inclusive)

— Book Close Dates

— Record Date 28 August 2020
— Payment Date 11 September 2020
Annual General Meeting 18 August 2020
— Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 12 August 2020

(before 4:30 p.m.)

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company. In order to protect the environment, the Company
highly recommends the shareholders to receive electronic copy
of this Annual Report. Shareholders may have the right to change
their choice of receipt of our future Corporate Communications at
any time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company or the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, by post or by email at is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BB E

Total revenue
HEAL N

— Rental income

GEE AN
— Property sales
— Hotel and hotel related operations

B IR NOB E R R T

Gross profit

E7

Fair-value (loss)/gain on investment properties

REMEQAAEBE(BR) KRa

(Loss)/Profit attributable to the owners of the Company

AREBER AR (BER),EF

— Underlying'
e YN

— Reported
R &

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

BREX (BE) /&F

Total dividends per share
BRI E LR

' Excluding the effect of any fair-value changes and write-downs net of deferred taxation

PRI REFRAREEZES MR KAMEERBEZZE
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For the year ended 31 March

B ZE3A31IBLEE
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET TAET
2,365,382 4,352,386
1,007,719 1,107,820
145,250 1,695,772
1,212,413 1,548,794
1,506,653 2,636,482
(4,129,522) 1,749,284
842,238 1,495,801
(3,644,359) 3,136,289
HK$(0.99)% T HK$0.85/% 7T
HK$0.07:& 7T HK$0.1178 7T



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWED T

Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engage in property investment, property development and
hospitality in Greater China and overseas, owning properties with a
total area of over 5 million square feet. The Group has a tri-engine
business model — owning and managing investment properties
in prime locations that generate stable income; developing
residential projects to drive earnings visibility; and operating
hospitality services with steady recurrent cash flow. The Group has
been recognised by BCI Asia as one of the “Top 10 Developers in
Hong Kong 2019” for its sustainability efforts and achievements in
developing high quality, innovative properties.

In November 2019, the trademark “# & has been recognised
as well-known to relevant public in mainland China and obtained
cross-class protection from the National Intellectual Property
Administration, affirming its wide recognition and brand value in
China.

Market Review

The year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”) was an unprecedented
challenging period. The global trade disputes and local social
issues unquestionably hindered economic development in Hong
Kong. The market landscape further deteriorated since January
2020, due to the coronavirus outbreak (COVID-19; the “Pandemic”).

Economic activities were widely disrupted as nationwide
lockdowns and travel bans were in place in multiple cities.
Corporations generally put expansion plans on hold or even
exercised downsizing due to the unfavourable business
environment. Retail tenant ability to afford rents was undermined
as the store traffic and consumption power declined, and pressure
has been put on landlords for rent reductions. Hence, the market
leasing demand of both retail and office segments were under
pressure during the Year. Meanwhile, the demand for hospitality
services was adversely affected because of the significant drop in
the number of visitor arrivals.

With the fears of the Pandemic and concern regarding the regional
economic outlook, home buyers’ confidence was obviously
dented. Especially in the first quarter of 2020, property developers
generally postponed sales launches, and the second-hand
residential property market turned stagnant because people were
keen to stay home. According to data provided by Centaline
Property Agency, new home sales in March 2020 decreased
by 40.4% month-on-month to below 600 units, the lowest since
December 2018.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWED T

Financial Review

Overall Review

Against the backdrop of a complex market environment, the
Group’s total revenue was HK$2,365.4 million (2019: HK$4,352.4
million) during the Year. Rental income decreased by 9.0% to
HK$1,007.7 million (2019: HK$1,107.8 million), representing 42.6%
(2019: 25.4%) of total revenue. Revenue from the sales of property
development amounted to HK$145.3 million (2019: HK$1,695.8
million). The fluctuation of this segment is mainly due to the sales
pipeline and strategies, as well as the revenue recognition policy.
Revenue from the hospitality segment declined to HK$1,212.4
million (2019: HK$1,548.8 million), and accounted for 51.3% (2019:
35.6%) of the total revenue. Gross profit was HK$1,506.7 million
(2019: HK$2,536.5 million).

A revaluation loss on investment properties amounted to
HK$4,129.5 million (2019: revaluation gain of HK$1,749.3 million).
As a result, loss for the Year attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$3,644.4 million (2019: profit of HK$3,136.3 million)
was recorded. Excluding the revaluation loss (2019: revaluation
gain) on investment properties, the underlying profit amounted to
HK$842.2 million (2019: HK$1,495.8 million).

Basic loss per share was HK$0.99 (2019: basic earnings per share
of HK$0.85). The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”
or “Directors”) recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.035 (2019: HK$0.063) per share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK$0.035 (2019: HK$0.047) per share, the total
dividends for the Year are HK$0.070 (2019: HK$0.110) per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWED T

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's net asset value and net
asset value per share amounted to HK$27,200.2 million (2019:
HK$31,835.1 million) and HK$7.40 (2019: HK$8.66) per share,
respectively.

The Group had cash, bank balances and bank deposits
amounting to HK$3,924.1 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$3,944.5 million). The total external borrowings (excluding
payables) amounted to approximately HK$27,087.3 million (2019:
HK$25,644.9 million), and the Group’s net gearing ratio (measured
by net debts as a percentage to the total asset value of the Group)
was 38.4% (2019: 33.8%).

To finance its operations, the Group utilises cash flow generated
from business operations and maintains multiple channels of
funding sources including bank borrowings and bond issuances.
As of 31 March 2020, the outstanding principal of the medium-term
notes issued by the Group was HK$5,161.8 million, which were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar at fixed
rates ranging from 3.2% to 5.0% per annum.

Business Review

Rental Income

The Group’s investment properties portfolio primarily focuses
on commercial buildings and quality street-level retail spaces in
prominent locations, with a total gross floor area of over 4,600,000
square feet. In recent years, the Group has strived to further
develop beyond its origins, notably by expanding its coverage
from Greater China to the United Kingdom, enabling it to possess
a geographically balanced property portfolio. By doing so, the
Group can diversify its rental income streams and withstand
market volatility.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

Existing Portfolio

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Hong Kong

Among the Group’s investment properties portfolio, Hong
Kong accounted for more than 65% of the Group’s total gross
floor area. As at 31 March 2020, the occupancy rate of the
Group'’s investment properties in Hong Kong was nearly 95%.

The Group owns numerous premium office, commercial
and industrial complexes which mainly include Emperor
Group Centre and China Huarong Tower in Wan Chai;
Emperor Commercial Centre in Central, Toppy Tower
in Kwai Chung; New Media Tower in Kwun Tong; Bhotai
Industrial Building & Shan Ling Industrial Building in
Tuen Mun; and commercial and car park complexes at Sui
Wo Court in Sha Tin. During the Year, the Group acquired
CentreHollywood at No. 151 Hollywood Road, Hong Kong.
It is a 26-storey commercial building with a gross floor area of
approximately 35,000 square feet.

AEBEHRBRZEBERD BENTEXE TBIEMRET
NEEEFHAO N FEEBAE (LA FIRNEEFEA L
I EE A Toppy Tower ; (LN ERE N FTEREB A0 (LNTE
PINEFETHEABR LB TEABN AR BB
ERFESLGEEAE -PAFE  AEERBURESHEEE
1515k #) CentreHollywood - H /55— &£ =26/ HI P 3= A1E - 4212
T [ & £935,000°F 5 IR »

A new revitalisation scheme for industrial buildings has been
announced by the local government in Policy Address 2018,
allowing relaxation of the maximum permissible non-domestic
plot ratio by up to 20% for certain redevelopment projects.
The Group welcomes such supportive initiatives, and several
town planning approvals — covering Toppy Tower, New Media
Tower, Bhotai Industrial Building & Shan Ling Industrial
Building — have been obtained, and the corresponding
redevelopment projects are scheduled to be completed in or
after 2024.

Apart from the above-mentioned premises, the Group's rental
income also came from numerous retail spaces in popular
shopping districts. Key investment properties include Nos.
8, 20, 22-24 and 50-56 Russell Street, No. 76 Percival
Street and Nos. 474-476, 478-484, 507, 523 Lockhart Road
in Causeway Bay; Nos. 81, 83 Nathan Road, Nos. 35-37
Haiphong Road and Nos. 25-29 Hankow Road in Tsim Sha
Tsui; the pulse in Repulse Bay; retail shops of Fairview
Height at Mid-Levels, Fitfort Shopping Arcade in North
Point, and retail shops at Level 3, New Town Commercial
Arcade in Tuen Mun.

REEE () BRAR
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Mainland China

Located in Chang’an Avenue East, Beijing, Emperor
Group Centre Beijing is a 28-storey (excluding three-
storey basement with parking facilities) Grade-A office
tower and premier shopping mall with premium cinema,
encompassing a gross floor area of approximately 1,062,000
square feet. It becomes an important part of Yong'anli CBD
and marked a major milestone for the Group in developing
upscale significant commercial projects in mainland China.
It has therefore attracted reputable office tenants, multiple
international superior jewellery, watch, and high-quality
lifestyle product brands, as well as special trendy food and
beverage tenants from different countries. Emperor Group
Centre Beijing gives full play to advanced structural systems,
intelligent technology, and energy-saving technology to
create a new commercial image with a balance between
environment and urban economic development. During the
Year, Emperor Group Centre Beijing garnered the “2019
China Golden Landmark Award for Office Buildings”, which
is a testimony to its international operating system, luxurious
6-star Super Grade-A equipment, and world-class commercial
quality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

Macau

With a gross floor area of approximately 30,000 square feet,
Emperor Nam Van Centre is a multi-storey premium retail
complex on the Macau Peninsula. Located at the centre
of Macau Peninsula’s gaming district, Emperor Nam Van
Centre has become a prime shopping location with a blend of
shopping and lifestyle offerings, featuring a department store,
sportswear outlet and jewellery store.

London

The Group owns a 7-storey (including basement) retail and
office complex at Nos. 1871-183 as well as Ampersand
Building at Nos. 111-125 on Oxford Street. Ampersand
Building is an 8-storey (including basement) composite
building comprising retail spaces, office premises
and apartments under lease with a net internal area of
approximately 91,000 square feet (for retail and office portions
only). Located in the prime retail and vibrant SOHO office
area of London’s West End, it is also in close proximity to the
Tottenham Court Road Crossrail development, thereby enjoying
significant pedestrian traffic and excellent accessibility.

Future Projects

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Hong Kong

The Group continually strives to enhance the value and
maximise the potential rental income of its premises by
undertaking various redevelopment and revitalisation
programmes. The site at Nos. 75-85 Lockhart Road, \Nan
Chai, will be transformed into a Grade-A office building
with a gross floor area of approximately 96,000 square
feet. The project is scheduled for completion in 2021. The
redevelopment will create a vibrant building in the heart of
Wan Chai — one of the core commercial districts on Hong
Kong Island — and presents significant value-creation
opportunities to the Group.

With a gross floor area of over 178,000 square feet, the
14-storey industrial building located at No. 4 Kin Fat Lane,
Tuen Mun, will be transformed into a commercial building
through a wholesale conversion scheme, and will support
diverse functions such as food and beverage, retail and
offices. The alteration and addition works will be completed in
2020.
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London

Occupying a prominent commercial and shopping location
in London, which is popular with international visitors, the
site at Nos. 25-27 Oxford Street will be redeveloped into a
composite of retail and office building with a gross floor area
of approximately 20,000 square feet, for long-term investment
purposes. The redevelopment project entails restoring
the building’s historic street-front facades, along with the
construction of a 9-storey building that houses retail shops
and offices. The redevelopment project will be completed in
2020.

Mainland China

Located in Yuyuan, Huangpu District, Shanghai, Emperor
Star City will be developed into a shopping arcade and hotel
or serviced apartment complex, at a prime site adjacent to
the Shanghai M10 subway route. Foundation and basement
excavation work for the development has been completed.
With an expected gross floor area of approximately 1,300,000
square feet, the complex will include a multi-storey shopping
arcade as its major component.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Property Sales

The Group pursues a strategy of providing quality residential
properties including luxury composite buildings in popular
urban areas, and low-rise detached houses in unique spots,
with convenient access to transportation networks. A steady
development pipeline has been established, which will provide
medium-term contributions to the sale of residential units, for
earnings visibility.

Projects launched for sale

Peak Castle, a luxurious low-rise development of 14 detached and
semi-detached houses in Siu Lam, Tuen Mun, has a total saleable
area of approximately 43,000 square feet. It is well served by a
superb transportation network comprising Hong Kong-Shenzhen
Western Corridor and Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, as well
as the future Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link. As at 31 March 2020,
remaining 1 detached house was open for sale. Sales contracts for
4 houses had been concluded, and the relevant sales amounts will
be recognised in the next or subsequent financial years.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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Projects to be launched soon

A site at Nos. 8-10A Mosque Street, Mid-Levels, will be
developed into a 29-storey (including lower ground floor) boutique
residential tower with a gross floor area of approximately 34,000
square feet. Adjacent to SOHO area and Lan Kwai Fong, it is in
close proximity to the Central-Mid-Levels Escalator, with convenient
access to the central business district. Superstructure work is
almost finalised. Subsequent to the end of the Year, the project
has been officially named as Central 8, and the pre-sale has been
launched.

A prime residential site at Tuen Mun Town Lot No. 490, Tai Lam,
Tuen Mun, will be developed into 8 luxurious detached houses
with sea views, encompassing a gross floor area of approximately
29,000 square feet. The occupation permit has been obtained
and the project is expected to be fully completed in 2020. The
sales activities will commence thereafter. With close proximity to
new transportation infrastructure such as Hong Kong-Shenzhen
Western Corridor and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, the
project has convenient access to the cities in the Greater Bay Area.
It is also close to the prestigious Harrow International School.

A 40% owned signature luxury residential project on Island South,
Rural Building Lot No. 1198, Shouson Hill, boasts a gross
floor area of approximately 88,000 square feet. In proximity to
Aberdeen Tunnel and a network of prestigious schools, the site will
be developed into 15 low-density luxury villas, complemented by
comprehensive auxiliary facilities. The occupation permit has been
obtained and the project is expected to be fully completed in 2020.
It will soon be launched to the market.

Central 8
FELULRFE

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Other projects under development

With the successful extension of MTR to Kennedy Town, it
becomes a popular urban area in Hong Kong Island. The site at
Nos. 24-26A, Davis Street, Kennedy Town, will be redeveloped
into a 22-storey residential and retail tower, and is planned to be
completed in 2022. The pre-sale is expected to be launched in
2021.

The site at Nos. 20-26 Old Bailey Street & No. 11 Chancery
Lane, Mid-Levels, is planned for redevelopment into a 26-storey
boutique luxury residential tower. Adjacent to SOHO area and Lan
Kwai Fong, it is in close proximity to Central-Mid-Levels Escalator,
with convenient access to the central business district. The
redevelopment project is planned to be completed in 2022.

No. 1 Wang Tak Street, Happy Valley, a site previously occupied
by Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel, will be redeveloped into a
27-storey residential tower with a gross floor area of approximately
58,000 square feet. The location has convenient access to Hong
Kong Jockey Club and Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital.
Demolition work has completed and the redevelopment project is
planned to be completed in 2022.

The existing building at Nos. 24-30 Bonham Road, Mid-Levels,
will be demolished and redeveloped into a 27-storey residential
complex with a gross floor area of approximately 104,000 square
feet. Its target completion is in 2023. Close to railway network, it is
just 5 minutes walk away from the Sai Ying Pun MTR station.

The existing buildings at Nos. 74-80 Old Main Street Aberdeen,
Aberdeen, will be demolished and redeveloped into a 23-storey
residential and retail building with a gross floor area of
approximately 38,000 square feet. Located in Aberdeen town
centre, it is conveniently accessed by a variety of public transport.
The redevelopment project is planned to be completed in 2023.

Another redevelopment project is at No. 127 Caine Road, Mid-
Levels. It is planned to be redeveloped into a 22-storey residential
and retail tower with a gross floor area of approximately 25,000
square feet. It is anticipated to be completed in 2024. It is around
3 minutes and 5 minutes walk from PMQ and SOHO areas
respectively, and has convenient access to several leisure spots
and multinational restaurants in Mid-Levels.

Hotel and Hotel Related Operations

Reflecting the Group’s dedication to developing hospitality
business, Emperor Hotels Group has been established to
cover several hotels and serviced apartments in Hong Kong and
Macau. In Hong Kong, it includes The Emperor Hotel, The Unit
Serviced Apartments, and MORI MORI Serviced Apartments. In
Macau, it includes Grand Emperor Hotel and Inn Hotel Macau,
where revenues from hotel and gaming operations have been
consolidated within the Group.
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Hong Kong

The Emperor Hotel, a 29-storey hotel in Wan Chai, offers
299 guest rooms together with leisure, dining and parking
facilities. With a gross floor area of approximately 115,000
square feet, it is a signature hotel project under Emperor
Hotels Group, which can further enhance brand recognition
in the hospitality segment.

The Unit Serviced Apartments, a 21-storey, 68-unit block in
Happy Valley, is a highly sought-after residence given its ease
of access to the central business district. The area is vibrant,
conveniently located near Hong Kong’'s commercial districts,
and affords easy access to Hong Kong Jockey Club and
Hong Kong Stadium for international sports events, and Hong
Kong Sanatorium & Hospital for medical check-ups, helping
to ensure solid short-term leasing demand.

Situated at the vibrant junction of Wan Chai and Causeway
Bay, MORI MORI Serviced Apartments provides 18 stylish
serviced apartments for expats, MICE visitors, business
travellers and overseas professionals, on short-and long-
term leases. With state-of-the-art facilities and professional
customer services, MORI MORI Serviced Apartments
redefines the contemporary way of life.

Macau

Grand Emperor Hotel is another of the Group’s flagship
projects, located on the Macau Peninsula. With a gross floor
area of approximately 655,000 square feet, it is a 26-storey
hotel with 311 exquisite guest rooms, fine dining restaurants
and bars, as well as gaming facilities. It has won an array of
prestigious industry awards.

Inn Hotel Macau is a 17-storey hotel with a gross floor area of
approximately 209,000 square feet and 287 guest rooms. Inn
Hotel Macau creates a comfortable experience, catering to
the lifestyles of both leisure and business travellers. Through
extending coverage from the Peninsula to Taipa, it enables
the Group to fully capture the potential of Macau’s hospitality
market.
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Outlook

Pandemic coupled with the stock market volatility and various
unfavourable economic indicators, the property investment
sentiment has been hit hard. Nevertheless, the Group expects
the land supply shortage, underlying demand for residential units
and the low interest rate environment will all help in supporting the
residential property market. The Group has established a solid
pipeline in residential properties which will be completed in the
coming years. These projects will provide promising contributions
in the near to mid-term. Although a tough business environment
is expected to last for some time, the Group remains cautiously
optimistic regarding the long-term development of the local
residential property market.

Supported by the expansion of the middle income group and more
comprehensive transportation linkages, Hong Kong remains one
of the hottest shopping destinations in Asia, and is among the
best placed to benefit from a recovery in consumption sentiment,
particularly among the mainland China tourists and shoppers who
have been among the biggest contributors to the local economy.
The Group is confident regarding the long-term development of the
retail and hospitality industry.

Especially in these difficult times, the Group will closely monitor
the market situation and adjust company strategies in response
to market changes. In order to sharpen its competitiveness, the
Group continues to acquire commercial buildings that have great
potential, improve our investment property portfolio by undertaking
urban renewal projects, and structure enhancement and tenants
remix programs, with a view to secure sufficient land bank for
future developments. Looking ahead, the Group will move forward
by exploring new market opportunities, and hence creating value
for both shareholders and society.

Ampersand Building, London
w2 Ampersand X &
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Event After Reporting Period

Subsequent to the Year, the Pandemic was still occurring around
the world, causing severe disruptions to global economic and
travel activities. Despite both nationwide and regional economic
activities have gradually resumed, home buyers’ confidence was
inevitably dented, impacting both commercial and retail rental
markets, as well as suppressing the demand for hospitality. The
local property market is therefore severely affected. A tough
business environment is expected to persist for some time as
a market turnaround is yet to be seen. Since the development
and duration of the Pandemic is still uncertain, the Group cannot
reasonably quantify its financial impact at the date of this annual
results announcement. However, a prolonged Pandemic may have
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated results of operations,
cash flows and financial position for the year ending 31 March
2021.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The total cost incurred for staff, including Directors’ emoluments,
was HK$681.9 million during the Year (2019: HK$725.6 million).
The number of staff was 1,415 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: 1,715).
Each employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance
with the individual's responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performance, as well as market pay levels. Staff
benefits include medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and
other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which will be set out
in the section headed “Share Options” on pages 168 and 169.

Assets Pledged

As at 31 March 2020, assets with carrying value of HK$44,534.8
million (2019: HK$48,690.3 million) were pledged as security for
banking facilities.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Non-Executive Director (Chairperson)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 64, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in June 1999. Ms. Luk is
also the non-executive director and chairperson of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E
Hotel”), a subsidiary of the Company. She is the mother of Mr.
Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, the Executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Luk worked in the banking industry for almost
10 years. She graduated from The University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce.

Executive Director and Managing Directors

WONG CHI FAI, aged 64, the Managing Director of the Company.
Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991 and has been responsible
for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth and
development and overseeing the financial management of the
Group. He is also the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company as well
as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Currently, he
is also a director of four listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code:
887) (“Emperor W&J"), Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock
Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”) and Ulferts International Limited
(Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”), all being associated corporations of
the Company. Having over 30 years of finance and management
experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experience in different
businesses ranging from property investment and development
to manufacturing, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery, cinema development and operation, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management, entertainment production and investment as well as
media and publication. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man Seung),
aged 57, the Managing Director of the Company. Ms. Fan joined the
Company in 1990 and has been responsible for the Group’s strategic
planning, business growth and development as well as overseeing
different functions within the Group. She is also the Chairperson
of the Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company as well as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Currently, Ms. Fan is also a director
of four listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Emperor E Hotel,
Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture and Ulferts. Having over 30 years
of corporate management experience, she possesses diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from property investment
and development to hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery, cinema development and operation, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management, entertainment production and investment as well as
media and publication. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong
and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration.
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Executive Director

CHEUNG PING KEUNG, aged 64, joined the Company in 2005
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
February 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
is currently responsible for overseeing the Group’s property
investment, development and management businesses. During
the period from 1997 to 2005, Mr. Cheung was an executive
director of Henderson Investment Limited (Stock Code: 97). He
has over 40 years of experience in professional general practice
surveying as well as property development and marketing in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Canada. He graduated from
University of London with a Bachelor’'s Degree (Hons) in Arts. He
is a Chartered Valuation Surveyor and a Fellow of both the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

YEUNG CHING LOONG, ALEXANDER, aged 34, joined the
Group in 2009 as Corporate Executive and was appointed as
Executive Director of the Company in May 2018. He is a member
of the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yeung has
been involving in the management of the overall business of
the Group and has participated in various projects including
but not limited to beach-front lifestyle shopping complex, mega
commercial complex in China’s capital city, several luxury
residential developments, as well as the development of Emperor
Hotels Group. He has also undertaken responsibility in evaluating
new business opportunities and strategic planning of the Group.
He has developed all-round expertise in property-related business
and even initiated a number of innovative ideas such as the
establishment of a stylish co-working space in Hong Kong. Apart
from the above property-related experience, Mr. Yeung has
been involving in the management of other business segments
under the Emperor Group, namely entertainment production and
investment, cinema development and operation, retailing of watch
& jewellery, financial and securities services, artiste management
as well as media and publication.

Mr. Yeung is also an executive director of Emperor Culture, an
associated company of the Company. He is the son of Ms. Luk Siu
Man, Semon, being the Chairperson and a Non-executive Director
of the Company.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHENG KA YU, aged 47, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2012. She is the
Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. She has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1998 and is now a Partner of P.C. Woo & Co., Solicitors.
Ms. Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor's Degree in Laws in 1995,

WONG TAK MING, GARY, aged 44, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2013. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a
member of the Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He now runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over 20 years of
experience in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr. Wong was
previously an independent non-executive director of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 79), a listed company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until 26 May 2017. Mr.
Wong is a certified public accountant (practising), a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong.

CHAN HON PIU, aged 60, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2015. He is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a member
of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chan has been admitted as a solicitor in
Hong Kong since 1991 and is now a partner of a law firm in Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan graduated from The University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences. He also obtained the
Certificate of Education and a Master’'s Degree in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EESRE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 53 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 63 and 64 of this
annual report. The dividends paid during the Year and proposed
to be paid for the Year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.035 per share for the Year
(2018/2019: HK$0.047 per share), amounting to approximately
HK$128.7 million (2018/2019: HK$172.8 million), was paid to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.035 per share for the Year (2019: HK$0.063 per share),
amounting to approximately HK$128.7 million (2019: HK$231.7
million) to those shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on 28 August 2020 (Friday) subject to the approval of
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 18 August 2020 (Tuesday) (“2020 AGM”).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group'’s performance during the Year and an analysis of the
likely future development of the Group’s business are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 17 of this
annual report. Descriptions of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 34 to 56 and notes 44 and 45 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
there is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and
performance, key relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders
as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2019/2020.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 202 of this annual
report.

Investment Properties

During the Year, the Group acquired investment properties at a
cost of approximately HK$1,422,338,000 and incurred costs of
approximately HK$233,600,000 on investment properties under
development.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The decrease in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$4,129,522,000 has been
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2020
is set out on pages 203 to 212 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
at a cost of approximately HK$138,090,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out on pages 67 and 68 of this annual report.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme adopted in 2013 as set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the aggregate
of (a) the difference between the consolidated net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued pursuant to the group re-organisation effective in
December 1991; (b) the surplus arising on reduction of share
capital effective in March 2003; and (c) the subsequent dividends
paid and bonus issues by way of capitalisation of contributed
surplus.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution
to shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or the company is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2020 represented the aggregate of contributed
surplus and retained profits amounting to HK$3,550,206,000
(2019: HK$3,910,345,000).

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Managing Director)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary

Mr. Chan Hon Piu
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at
the date of this report are set out from pages 18 to 20 of this annual
report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (“Ms. Semon Luk”) , Ms. Fan
Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”) and Mr. Wong Tak Ming,
Gary shall retire by rotation at the 2020 AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2020 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which
are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings
that may be brought against the Directors and the directors of the
Group respectively.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board as
recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard to a
written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to business
strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’ interest and
current best practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Executive and Non-executive Directors, internal equity of
employment conditions across the Group and applicability of
performance-based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid
fees in line with market practice. No individual should determine
his or her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay levels. Remuneration
packages includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the financial performance of the
Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share options
and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life
insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

REEE () BRAR

Emperor International Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%

RARE IHEERRREEAS 7 BREFEH
MAFRFE18EF20H - EEHIFBENGEY
TEEREMIFE10 -

REBEARR 2 S2ARIES7(1)R87(2)fF - B/ NE X
T ([FELt]) e at (Bert]) RERHA
FARN20205F I RBFAE ERWESER - KEFH
MEERLBENEG LEREE-

BUERE2020F BERIAF Ag tER ST r E5 M
AEBFTE AR —FARMNEEE CEERERIN)
ZARERIRIEE )

BEEH
REFER - BEBA DN LETT A FERT
AEERELIATANDEBNERRITES
FEOEYOR

BEFFRRERX
RAFEAREEAFHAML  FEFRARE
5 5 1 A5 BT A8 A B A A B E I A K
A ARG HEE BB  ZE DT
WARAR 2 ERMARARERE L EFR
BRERABEIRA-

N BUR

BE M ANEEeREFHESR2R—5
EEEHIRE (AR L TR A SHI R
TG A IS s BT R 40 [ LR Y
BET T -He 22 ESenEEERE
B T TLALL B A B B & - 147 B JE ST
=R RIE AR A 2 — B RS
REFBHANGH S B - SRS AIGA
TIB IR o WRARI A+ AT A AN & 2 B

A
e

EEFHMIORBEARSE - 7 % ke EREE
BA RS H KT METE - FrBiH S B4k (B15
AME) EAHS BF2HE  (EHRE RIKSF
B HRA N BN R (B B 75 R 3R M (B AR IR 8 2
BYBTEAL  Frpl 22 BB R B EERFE N 2
BIMER (INBERASRE) EENAKEAD
HEDHFHMA L2 HMFIERN R E B RKM
10



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EESRE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Securities

At 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company (“EIHL Securities Code”) were
as follows:

(a) Long position interests in the Company
(i) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the

EENRETBITRAEZRE SR

R202053HA31H  EERARAEEITHAER
AAE) REREEE (F&AEFBHFRPEGEG ([E
FREAE G ) EXVER) 2 B - HEEERR n M &
BRHB AR RBREES KB KROIEI2GET
ZERMATRE R Z e MR R SARIE AR B R AR
CESETELFR ST ETA ([REEKRES
SR D) ESITTME RN KRB R AT #Em AR
W

(a) RAEDFAzFAER
() FAFGMEBEOVETZZER ([

“Shares”) /)
Number of % of issued
Capacity/Nature of Shares interested voting Shares
Name of Director interests BEERZ HERTERER
EspnE B REEME ZRGOEE R 15 %
Ms. Semon Luk Interest of spouse 2,747,610,489 74.71%
B 22 & A B = (Note)
(Hfat)
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander Eligible beneficiary of a 2,747,610,489 74.71%
(“Mr. Alex Yeung”) private discretionary (Note)
BEEESEE ([HEE]) trust ) (Hfat)
MAZREEFEZEER
A
Ms. Vanessa Fan Beneficial Owner 10,500,000 0.29%
PeR EnEAA
Note: Haz -

These Shares were held by Emperor International Group
Holdings Limited (“Emperor International Group Holdings”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY
Holdings”). AY Holdings is held by First Trust Services GmbH
(“First Trust”) in trust for a private discretionary trust set up by
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). Dr. Albert
Yeung, as founder of the private discretionary trust, had deemed
interests in the said Shares held by Emperor International Group
Holdings. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung,
Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same Shares
whereas Mr. Alex Yeung also had deemed interests in the same
Shares by being one of the eligible beneficiaries of such private
discretionary trust.

(i) Debentures

Name of Director

Espe B0 EEHEE

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (“Mr. Bryan Wong”) Interest of controlled corporation
REESNEEZ s

asEEL ([EEE])

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Capacity/Nature of interests

ZERMBREEE (EER)ERERA A
([REEERBZR]FE EABINESE
ZERERAR ([BZREEZR]) 22EW
B R E] - 155K 4TI A First Trust Services
GmbH ([First Trust ) #5748 * M First Trust& 15
ZREL(BEL)RIZFAREETZ
ZEN BB EBRAZEETZENA
WRAEE RESEFBRERAEE LY
2D - ERELZTABELI RS BEE
BEARARKRMHNER  MiBEERZLAZ
BEAZAERIZTAZ — BREWEAES
TR B R o

(i) EREF
Amount of
debentures held
FsEEEER
HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 7T
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(b) AEBEE 2 EBR ZFAER

(b) Long position interests in ordinary shares of
associated corporations

Number of % of issued
shares  voting shares
Name of associated Capacity/ interested HERIT
Name of Director  corporation Nature of interests BFERERZ BRERE
EEps HEEEAE 5t/ BRtE REE B 12 %
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor E Hotel Interest of spouse 851,352,845 68.98%
B+ B IRGEHE F B s
Emperor W&J Interest of spouse 4,290,850,000 63.29%
REBRASE B s
Emperor Culture Interest of spouse 2,371,313,094 73.80%
REM(LESE Fo B s
Ulferts Interest of spouse 600,000,000 75.00%
Bt foiBfE s
Mr. Alex Yeung Emperor E Hotel Eligible beneficiary of a 851,352,845 68.98%
B HERERE private discretionary trust
MWAZREGTEZAEBTRA
Emperor W&J Eligible beneficiary of a 4,290,850,000 63.29%
HEERGE private discretionary trust
MAZREFEZAERIEA
Emperor Culture Eligible beneficiary of a 2,371,313,094 73.80%
REN(EE private discretionary trust
MWAZREETZAEBYRA
Ulferts Eligible beneficiary of a 600,000,000 75.00%
1t private discretionary trust
MWAZREGETEZEEBTRA
Note: B et -

ZERDARELAZEET (BELRREIZA)
BREHER - EREL T ABELT 2B SRR A
BEMRKRONERZ MBEERRZLAZER
REZABREMAZ — BMIRR S EABR K
7 BB 2 o

These shares were ultimately owned by the respective private
discretionary trusts which are also founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. By
virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had
deemed interests in the same shares whereas Mr. Alex Yeung also
had deemed interests in the same shares by being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of such private discretionary trusts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the K EXFTIFFEESN B2020F3A31H  EEZ Fak
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests ~ &AA &2 £ BITH A BRARQ G £ T8 A
or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures (EERBHFLIAEBROIEXVER) 2 EfIARD -
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the — FHBIAX (0 S EHEE P A TR TA A ©
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Options BB

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme on 15 August A2 7] FA2013F8 A15H B R4 — T8 BE I =1 &
2013 (“Share Option Scheme”). Particulars of the Share Option  ([FBAEHERTEI]) - BERABMET S 2 F15FH NG
Scheme are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial & B R ZR M 5E40 o B RS AE ST B IR NE B =
statements. No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or  2020F3A31H |t - BIEBERAERIEZT IR &
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up ~ 1T{F ~ FFEEE a0 -

to 31 March 2020.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EESRE

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at the end
of the Year and at no time during the Year was the Company, any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company or their spouse or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests

So far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 March 2020, the persons or corporations (other
than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had, or
were deemed or taken to have an interest and short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) or as
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

BERONEREE 2L

bR SRR BISh AR R A
AR AAR EERRAR HEAR
SARHBAETEE AR BEEFRE
ARAEBTBABRRE L EBIRHT/\HT
A AT U A A 7 SR AE AT EL At B R 1 o
R T A ER 2

FERRREMAL 2

2020F3A31H  EAEMESZ AR R EETH
ABFTE BRESS AR A EBITIABIN BRI
NSRRI PR SR A E (B A R
IRIRE A L S G0 33615 BTF B 2 &= ([
mERMNEBERITMEARRR IR RARZ
ATEEBNT :

Long position in the Shares R 2Z2HRE

% of issued

Number of voting Shares

Shares interested HERTE

Name Capacity/Nature of interests BHEERZ REERHG

2t e 2t B HntE RHEE %

AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 2,747,610,489 74.71%
BRKEZEZER REESEES 2 s

First Trust Trustee of a private discretionary trust 2,747,610,489 74.71%
FAABRETFEZETEA

Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of a private discretionary trust 2,747,610,489 74.71%

HBiET AZRETEZ ZEISLA

Note: These Shares were the same shares as those set out under Section (a)(i)
of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above of
which Ms. Semon Luk and Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interests.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to
have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the DI Register.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Group is engaged principally in property investments, property
development and hospitality in Greater China and overseas. As
at 31 March 2020, the following Directors are considered to have
interested in other activities that compete or are likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with the said core business of the Group, all
within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”):

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Ms. Semon Luk, being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung as
founder of several private discretionary trusts, is deemed
to be interested in various companies under such private
discretionary trusts which are also engaged in property
investment and development. As Ms. Semon Luk is not
involved in the Company’s day-to-day operations and
management, the Group is capable on its business
independently of and at arm’s length from such disclosed
deemed competing business;

Mr. Cheung Ping Keung (“Mr. Donald Cheung”) had
directorship role in several companies under a private
discretionary trust which are also engaged in property
investment business. Given (a) the properties held by the
Group are mainly for commercial purpose while those held
by companies under such private discretionary trust are
mainly for residential purpose; and (b) he cannot control the
board of the Company and the companies under such private
discretionary trust, the Directors considered the Group’s
interests are adequately safeguarded;

Mr. Alex Yeung, being one of the beneficiaries of a private
discretionary trust, is deemed to be interested in various
companies under such private discretionary trust which are
also engaged in property investment and development. He
also had shareholding and directorship interests in private
companies engaged in property investment. Given (a) the
properties held by the Group are mainly for commercial
purpose while those held by the companies of which Mr.
Alex Yeung has interests are mainly for residential purpose;
and (b) he cannot control the board of the Company and the
companies under such private discretionary trust; and (c) size
and dominance of the portfolio of the Group, the Directors
considered the Group’s interests are adequately safeguarded;
and

Mr. Bryan Wong and his associates and Ms. Vanessa Fan had
shareholding and directorship interests in private companies
engaged in property investment business. In light of the size
and dominance of the portfolio of the Group, such disclosed
deemed competing business is considered immaterial.
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Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs”) an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements,
Contracts of Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company:

A. Continuing Connected Transaction —
Master Leasing Agreements (“MLA”)

Date: 24 May 2018
Parties:
(1) Agreement 1: The Company and Emperor W&J

(2) Agreement 2: The Company and Emperor Capital Group
Limited ("Emperor Capital Group”)

(3) Agreement 3: The Company and Emperor Culture

—
™~
=z

Agreement 4. The Company and Ulferts

—
S

Agreement 5: The Company and Albert Yeung Holdings
Limited ("AY Holdings”)

(the above counter-parties are collectively as “the members of
Emperor Group”)

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Nature:

Each of MLA sets out the framework of the terms governing all
existing and future tenancy/licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transactions”) regarding leasing of certain office properties or
other properties (including retail shop, warehouses, carpark
spaces, signage or signboard space) to the members of
Emperor Group for the period from 24 May 2018 to 31 March
2021 with aggregate tenancy annual caps being set for each
of the financial years end/ending 31 March 2019, 2020 and
2021 (“Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the MLA, relevant members of the Group and
any member(s) of Emperor Group (as the case may be) may
from time to time enter into any definitive leasing agreements
in relation to any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive Leasing
Agreement(s)”). The terms of each of Definitive Leasing
Agreements shall be on normal commercial terms or on
terms which are no less favorable available to the Group than
terms offered by independent third parties. The terms and
rental shall be subject to arm’s length negotiation and be
determined based on the condition of the properties and with
reference to the then prevailing market rents on property(ies)
comparable in location, area and permitted use.

The Company and the members of Emperor Group were
all indirectly controlled by private discretionary trusts which
are also founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. As such, under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, each of the members of
the Emperor Group was a deemed connected person of the
Company and accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the MLA constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk and Mr. Alex Yeung had
deemed interest in the MLA by virtue of being respectively
an associate of the eligible beneficiaries and an eligible
beneficiary of the private discretionary trusts controlling the
members of the Emperor Group.

During the Year, the aggregate amounts of rental income of
the Tenancy Transactions with the relevant members of the
Emperor Group were as follows:—

HE:
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MAEYHEIHMYE (RETERH BE 25
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REEAE R NEEHABKE AR HRE2KME
ERKB AR (RIBRME) A TR LT AEER
S EANHE B ([ EXBERZE]) - &L
M E Wk 2 (R IR — AR R G SIR TN
MERZTTRRTARE ZFRET L R M S R
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B
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HK$

BTT
Emperor W&J HEERRE 118,966,746
Emperor Capital Group REFHFEE 11,127,823
Emperor Culture BENXLEHE 15,113,150
Ulferts Bt 8,327,192
AY Holdings X EFE R 34,141,214
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Announcement: 24 May 2018
Independent Shareholders’ approval: 9 August 2018

Completion:

9 August 2018, whereupon the Aggregate Tenancy Annual
Caps had replaced all the then annual caps previously
obtained by the Company for the Tenancy Transactions.

Continuing Connected Transaction —
Service agreement in relation to the operation
of the Grand Emperor Hotel (“Service Agreement”)

Date: 19 February 2010

Parties:

(1) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), a company incorporated in
Macau, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor E
Hotel which is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

(2) Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A., (‘SIM"), a
company incorporated in Macau, which is principally
engaged in gaming business in Macau and is one of
the six concessionaires/sub-concessionaires licensed
to carry on casino operations in Macau. SUJM has
19.99% equity interest in Luck United, an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor E Hotel, and is a
connected person of the Company within the meaning
of the Listing Rules by virtue of being a substantial
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.

Nature:

The provision of services comprising management services
and promotion services by Tin Hou to SIM in relation to the
operation of the Grand Emperor Hotel (“Services”) whereas
Tin Hou together with the nominated junket promoter (a fellow
subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly-owned by Emperor E Hotel)
shall be entitled to a share of the gross win and gross loss in
respect of the monthly operating performance of the gaming
area of the Grand Emperor Hotel and bear all necessary
operational expenses in relation to the operation of the
gaming area.

Term:

From 1 October 2009 to termination upon occurrence of
certain events, including the expiration of SUM's gambling
license under the Gaming Concession Contract on 31 March
2020 or any earlier termination thereof or winding up or
cessation of business of either party.

Amount received for the Year:
During the Year, the Group’s net receipt under the Services
Agreement amount to HK$723,282,594.

D& 2018F5H24H
B IR LA 1 201858 A9H

SR
2018F8 AR - B EFE FRE B AR A s
ERXRGRRAMBEZBEERFE LR

B. FEREXS - FRAKERERS
BIE 2 R ([ RIS ])

HH#A 1 2010F2H19H

EHESP

(1) RERBEBRAF([RF])  —HERRPFE
ek sz 2 AR - BAR A Z IR EM
BLAREEREEE  HE2EMBER
=

(2) BEFEREROHERAR (RIE])  —M[H
PR 2 AR TERBRPNE
BRER BARARAIFSRPIC LIRSS
KER 2 BEAR AT A AT Z
— o SBIEYEAR Luck United 19.99% 2 A% Zx
W BEEREHE 2 Mg EH B
NEZ FERRE - BULIR FR A2 RE
BERARIZEEBAL

HE:

VAR IAR IR (H B 28 S ARLETH 5 A L AR RE AR5
(BREERBLEERY) ([ZERB]) -
REBFRIEEZBEANTARE (BRFZF
AMBAR HERSREAE2ERF)BE
BESKERVEAEEYEEAZERR L
iR s BB ER - WRAREERY
B2 —YIfREER

FH:

H2009F10 A1 BB 25 TEMFE A 18R
BIERENEEEEHAARE N 2 BEL
EHEF2020F3 A 31 H Eim s i B 48 &1 1R
B4R IE > ST — B R E AR I 75 -

REEFRBEIEE:
RAFE  REER RS HEE N2 FRE D
723,282,504/ 7T ©

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%k




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Remark:

SJM had counter-signed the addendum to the Services Agreement
on 13 May 2020 for the continuation of the provision of Services to
SJM from 1 April 2020 to 26 June 2022, details of which were set
out in the announcement jointly published by the Company and
Emperor E Hotel dated 13 May 2020.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as “Rental income from related companies” (under the MLA)
in the amount of HK$187,676,000 for the Year as shown in note
51(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the transaction
as shown in note 51(c) to the consolidated financial statements
which constituted continuing connected transactions (“CCTs") of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other
transactions as shown in note 51 are connected transactions
exempted from announcement, reporting, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the above non-exempt connected
transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-Exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (the “Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the CCTs disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
Auditor’s Letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors
Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have

reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of its business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance which was significant in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$4,594,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers represented 52% of the Group’s
total revenue. The largest customer accounted for 39% to the
Group’s total revenue.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented 24% of the Group’s total purchases and services
received. The largest supplier accounted for 11% to the Group’s
total purchases and services received.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(to the knowledge of the Directors, owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued Share), had a beneficial interest in the share
capital of any of the above major customers or suppliers of the
Group.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 34 to 56 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the 2020 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Luk Siu Man, Semon

Chairperson
Hong Kong, 23 June 2020
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of the
Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For the Year, the
Company had fully complied with all the code provisions of the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2020, the Board comprised eight Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Board, four Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between
individuals on the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 18 to 20 of this annual report under the “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executives

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson since
1999 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information and are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities. She holds meetings
without the presence of Executive Directors with the INEDs at least
once a year.

Both Mr. Bryan Wong and Ms. Vanessa Fan have been appointed
as Managing Directors of the Company, and are responsible for
the Group’s strategic planning, business growth and development.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognized experience
and expertise in legal, accounting or auditing in business areas
who contribute impartial view and make independent judgment
on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of them has
been appointed for an initial term of one year and shall continue
thereafter on a yearly basis subject to early termination with written
notice being served by either party. The terms of the INEDs are
also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provision
under the Bye-Laws of the Company.

REEE () BRAR
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The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted by the
Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified as such
in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the
names of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (comprising all the Executive Directors of the Board)
who has been delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues.
The Executive Committee shall have all power and authorities of
the Board except the following matters as set out in a “Formal
Schedule of matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”:

e Determining the Group’s objective and strategies;
e Approving annual and interim results and financial reporting;

e Declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

e Approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

e Approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions under Listing Rules;

e Approving non-exempted connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place from time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the Listing Rules;

e Approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval as stipulated under the Listing Rules;

e  Approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

e Approving the establishment of Board committees;

e Approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited to
risk management policy, remuneration policy and corporate
governance policy;

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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e Approving financial assistance to Directors;

e Ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions; and

e Approving such other matters or transactions as specified by
the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as required by
all applicable laws, rules and regulations from time to time.

Induction, Support and Professional

Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity and business interest in the Group
and such induction materials will also be provided to newly
appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
All Directors have been updated on the latest developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by
the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses in order to assist them to perform their
duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshops/reading materials
on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors
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Topics on training covered
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Ms. Semon Luk (a) corporate governance
B 22+ rEER

Mr. Bryan Wong (b) regulatory
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Ms. Vanessa Fan (c) finance
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Mr. Donald Cheung (d) industry-specific
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Mr. Alexander Yeung
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Relationship between the Board Members

Ms. Semon Luk is the mother of Mr. Alex Yeung. Save as disclosed
above, there are no other relationship (including financial,
business, family or other materials/relevant relations) among each

other.

Directors’ Insurance BEEZ2RE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in  ANARIEHESAESEY AR FAELES
respect of any legal action against the Directors. ZIIREHE

ESECHERRRERRA
AEEERHFEERZBERFIIMT

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment
The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set

out below:
No. of meetings attended/held
tEeE/BneEY
Corporate
Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~ Governance Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
- £3:54 Eze  ENZEe  HMZEE  R4ZBe (¥ERZEE  yfzZEE kRxg
Non-executive Director FinEE
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon E)ext 6/6 N/A N/A NJA NJA N/A 11
TR iR ki R TR
Executive Directors #iEs
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Nate 1) EEBLE (W) 6/6 N/A pits NJA NJA 1313 il
1R ki 1R
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa ERRRL (Hi) 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 10 13/13 11
Noie 2) TR MR ki
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung FRALE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A NIA 13/13 i
iR MR ki &R
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, ARELE 6/6 N/A N/A 1h NIA 13/13 i
Alexander iR MEA 1R
Independent Non-executive BuyiEs
Directors
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu Note 3) gt (hi#3) 6/6 33 Pt 10 NJA N/A 11
1R 1R
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary BEWLE (i) /6 33 N/A il 1 NJA i
(Note 4) iR 1R
Mr. Chan Hon Piu (nofe §) REBLE (hik) 6/6 33 2L N/A 10 NJA 11
ki 1R
Total number of meetings held ESEE L 8 3 2 1 1 13 1
Notes: B
1. Chairman of Executive Committee 1. ITZREEEF
2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee 2. DBEEBRZEEXR
3. Chairperson of Nomination Committee 3. REZBEEXE
4. Chairman of Audit Committee 4., TBEREEEXRE
5. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 5 ¥FMEEEXRE
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During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and is
satisfied that each Director had been spending sufficient time in
performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting.
For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice was given. Board
papers and related materials which provide appropriate, accurate,
clear complete and reliable information are generally sent to all
Directors and relevant committee members at least 3 days before
each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting (on other
agreed period) to enable the Directors to make informed decision.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached, with
draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for their
comment and records respectively, within reasonable time after
the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being kept by
the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on
the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her
associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be counted
in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs who, and
whose close associates, have no material interest in the transaction
are present at that Board meeting.

REEE () BRAR
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate
Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out below.

1. Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all Executive Directors
namely Mr. Bryan Wong (Chairman of the Committee), Ms.
Vanessa Fan, Mr. Donald Cheung and Mr. Alex Yeung. The
primary duties of the Executive Committee are (a) formulating
business policies and making decision (including entering
into transactions) on matters relating to the management and
day-to-day operations of the Group; (b) making and reviewing
corporate/finance/treasury planning investment and operation
strategy of the Group; (c) discussing and approving any
financial, borrowing, charging and guarantee commitment
to be made or on behalf of the Group; (d) approving
transactions, including discloseable transactions, exempted
connected transactions and non-exempted continuing
connected transactions took place from time to time under
the master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be) under the Listing Rules;
and (e) having all power and authorities of the Board except
those matters specifically reserved for the full Board as set
out in the “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and
delegated by the Board” adopted by the Board from time to
time.

2. Audit Committee (set up on 23 September 2004)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Chairman of the Committee), Ms.
Cheng Ka Yu and Mr. Chan Hon Piu.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the external auditor's independent
and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting, risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee held three
meetings during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of the annual
financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2019 (“Previous Year”) and the interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2019;

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group during the Previous
Year;

ii. performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2019 annual general meeting of
the Company (“2019 AGM”); and

v. approved the audit plans for the Year, reviewed the
independence of the external auditor and approved its
engagement.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 July 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan Hon Piu (Chairman of the Committee) and
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu, both being INEDs, and Mr. Bryan Wong,
being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration Committee is primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on (a)
the Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors; and (c) the specific remuneration
packages for individual Executive Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of each of the
Directors for the Year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Remuneration Committee held two
meetings during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board; and

i. reviewed the remuneration structure/package of the
Executive Directors and senior management and
recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Cheng Ka Yu (Chairperson of the Committee) and
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary, both being INEDs, and Mr. Alex
Yeung, being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size and diversity
of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy;
(c) reviewing the policy for the nomination of Directors
(“Nomination Policy”) and identifying potential candidates for
directorship; (d) assessing the independence of INEDs; (e)
reviewing the time commitment of each Director in performing
his/her responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election
or re-designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i.  reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;

i. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors; and

iv. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors at the 2019 AGM.
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Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives to the business nature of the Company. Selection
of candidates on the Board is based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
will also assess the merits and contribution of any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to be
appointed as Director that will bring to the Board against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board that would complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted the Nomination Policy which
aims at assisting the Nomination Committee in identifying
and nominating suitable candidates for directorship based
on the Board Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination
criteria and the nomination procedures for (i) nominating new
Director to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making
recommendation to Shareholders regarding any Director for
election or re-election of Director at general meeting; and (iii)
nomination by Shareholders on election of new Director.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) consists
of five members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson
of the Committee), being the Managing Director, Mr. Wong
Tak Ming, Gary and Mr. Chan Hon Piu, both being INEDs,
a representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CGC is available
on the website of the Company. The primary duties of the
CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Company (“CG Policy”) and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and monitoring
the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements of the Company; (c)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and (e)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report. The CGC held one meeting during
the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the CGC during the Year
is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to
the Board;

i. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the said code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group; and

v.  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by the
Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for ensuring
good information flow within the Board and ensuring that the Board
policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible for advising
the Board on general duties and obligations of Directors and good
corporate governance issues, and has facilitated induction and
professional development of the Directors. She has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the Year, the Company
Secretary had duly complied with the training requirements under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EIHL Securities Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions on no less exacting
terms than the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions of Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings in the Model Code
and EIHL Securities Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The
management has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates on internal financial statements which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects as at the reporting date.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements
are prepared on a “going concern” basis (with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary) and showed a
true view of the state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The
management had provided sufficient explanation and information
to the Board on the consolidated financial statements to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before it for approval. The auditor of the Company
had made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor's Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company in
achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies and
procedures within the Group are with the primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control systems
(“Control Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the internal control measures
and procedures covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls; and (ii) risk management
functions in its principal subsidiaries for the Year as follows:

A. Goals and objectives

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective Control Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
The key objectives of the Systems include:
— safeguarding assets;

— ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial
records and reports;

— ensuring adherence to policies, procedures, regulations
and laws; and

— ensuring effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
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B. Internal Control

(1) Governance Control
The Board

responsible for the Control Systems and reviewing
their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of Audit Committee;

ensure maintenance of appropriate and effective
Control Systems;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
that the Company is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate the Group's risk
management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to maintain
effective Control Systems. This discussion includes
the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and
experience, and the Company's accounting and
financial reporting function; and

consider major findings on internal control matters (if
any) raised by internal or external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board.

The management (includes heads of business units, functional
departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Control Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or
external auditors; and

provide written confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems
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Internal Audit Department

carry out the audit checking and evaluate the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Control Systems
in respect of all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

alert the management on the audit findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the
internal controls of the Group; and

report results of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans to the Audit Committee and the Board
on regular basis.

The management is responsible for analyzing the control
environment, identified risks pertaining thereto, and
implemented various controls therein as follows:

Operational Controls

Approach taken: The management regularly review
and update the operational policies and workflow
procedures to identify areas for improvement and/
or amendments to cope with changes as necessary.
The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and internal control will be reported to
the Audit Committee annually;

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines
established to safeguard the assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; ensure consistency
of operational requirements; and ensuring proper
compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations;

Management information systems installed to
control the business activities and transactions
provide close tracking of various prescribed inputs
and outputs. It also provides audit trails in the
authorization system, under which permissions and
responsibility of authorization are clearly identified
and adequate records can be maintained in the
system;

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on regular
basis;

Information flow: The transparent information flow
alerts us promptly of any deviations;
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Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Safeguarding of assets: Insurance coverage
on various assets is periodically reviewed by the
management for sufficient coverage, and to ensure
compliance with the terms and conditions of the
insurance policies. Surprise physical count of
cash chips and client deposits held in casino and
coupons for casino are performed by internal Audit
Department to safeguard the assets;

Service quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of hotel and gaming business
segments to ensure the service quality; and
questionnaires are provided in different outlets to
welcome customers’ feedbacks for our service
improvement;

Control on leasing of properties: Policies and
checklists on control of rental revenue, lease
terms and conditions, appointment of property
management and leasing agent, asset security
and maintenance review are in place for leasing of
Group’s premises; and

Control on acquisition of properties: Internal
procedures on the acquisition of properties are in
place.

(3) Financial Controls

Policies, Systems and Procedures are in place to
ensure proper accounting records are maintained
which provide complete, accurate and timely
accounting and management information;

Financial management report are provided to
director and senior management which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of
various businesses performance and financial
position in sufficient details;

Financial budget and forecasts are prepared and
reviewed regularly to ensure any actions can be
taken promptly to mitigate any changes in conditions
and market accordingly;

Annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
and individual companies’ financial statements are
prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting
policies and the applicable laws and regulations;
and

24 month cash flow rolling forecast is regularly
reviewed to monitor the cash flows against budget
plan.
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(4) Compliance Controls

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for
the attention of the Board. The Board shall make
timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality
of inside information until proper dissemination of
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated
by the Board in order to ensure the Company is in
compliance with all the applicable laws, statutes,
rules and regulations; and to keep up on any legal
developments;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company and ensure proper compliance with
all relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
and disclosure requirements; and

Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. Such arrangement will be
reviewed by the Audit Committee which ensures
that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters.

Anti-money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Policy and Procedure establishes the
general framework for combating crime against
money laundering and financing of terrorism.
It provides guideline to prevent the Group’s
employees and clients/customers/suppliers/
vendors/contractors from being misused for money
laundering, terrorist financing or other financial
crime and has set out some indications of potentially
suspicious transactions/activities for employees’
reference.

Review of Internal Controls

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on timely basis.
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(1) EREEBE

C. Risk Management
(1) Risk Management Process

2

The risk management processes includes risk
identification, evaluation, management and control
measures.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risk are
evaluated by the Board and management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Group’s
financial results; and (ii) frequency and probability that
the risk will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:—

— Risk elimination — the management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

— Risk mitigation — the management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood
and impact of the risk to an acceptable level or
contingency plan for possible loss scenarios.

— Risk control and monitoring — it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not; accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks.

— Risk retention - the management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk
does not increase to an unacceptable level.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key
strategies/control measures as set out below:

Changes in social, economic and political environment:

Changes and volatility in general economic conditions
caused by China-USA tensions, social unrest, global
economic slowdown, increase/decrease in money supply
and foreign exchange issue would have impact on HK
property market. Any more adverse change in one of
the above situations would have significant impact to the
Group’s business.

e Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in mainland China and Hong Kong or
global economy and adjust business strategic plans
to cope with these changes.
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Occurrence of disaster events:

Any “Act of God”, natural disaster or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19 pandemic or
SARS, could adversely effect on the Group’s business
and operations.

Ensure all safety measures as required by the Hong
Kong SAR Government are fully implemented;

Contingency Management Committee is established
to take lead on all necessary precautions and
closely monitor the situations and development;

Implement business continuity plans which include
“Work from Home”, “Flexible Working Hours” and
“Split-team Arrangements”; and

Create a natural disaster recovery plan which
includes recovery instructions, procedures and a
quick reference guide for departments to use in
order to respond and recover from the disasters.

Investment strategy:

Acquisition of land, investment and development
properties carry inherent risks related to significant
amount of money, missing targets, poor project
management, design, development and sales or wrong
investment decision would have significant adverse
impact on Group'’s overall business.

Regularly review investment and business strategy
against overall business environment;

Investment decisions are subject to a robust risk and
return evaluation by executives and supervision by
the Finance and Investment Committee;

Potential projects are subject to an extensive due
diligence review by in-house specialists and external
advisers. Offers are only made for projects with
reasonable return or of strategic value;

Ensure experienced managers are in place to
manage projects; and

Completed projects are subject to continual
monitoring and internal audit, with regular
performance reports to the Management.
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Rental income sustainability:

Loss of major tenants or rental reduction either due to
changes in tenants’ own strategy, market situation or
competition among landlords would adversely impact the
revenue of the Group.

e  (Closely monitor any adverse market conditions, work
with tenants to mitigate the impact;

e Maintain a well-balanced and quality tenant mix;

e Maintain high property marketability by timely
renovation;

e Invite targeted tenants or anchor tenants to our
existing or new properties from time to time. Custom-
made arrangements are offered where appropriate
to cater to their specific needs;

e Propose short term lease restructure for quality
tenants in order to help sustain their businesses; and

e Carry out pre-lease campaigns to replace the
undesirable tenants.

Business/Portfolio concentration:

A significant portion of the Group'’s revenues is derived
from Hong Kong. Unfavourable events in the city could
disrupt our overall business, lower our revenues and
impact the valuation of our assets.

e The Group has a diversified portfolio of investment
properties across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland
cities and London, the United Kingdom. The Group
will keep sourcing quality investment properties
around the world; and

e The Group has expanded its investment property
portfolio to offices in recent years. This enables the
Group to mitigate the undesirable impact on retail
sector.

Property development risks:

Supply of land is subject to the change of land policies
in different markets. Acquisition of land in Hong Kong,
the PRC and other overseas markets may be subject
to various regulatory requirements and restrictions
and competition from other developers. Future growth
prospects of property development business are
therefore affected by the availability and price levels of
prime sites in Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas
markets. Failure to manage cost of construction, labour
and materials could adversely affect the competitiveness
of property development business.
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Participate actively in the land auctions;

Regularly update the Group’s long/medium/short
term strategic plans on property development
business;

Implement well established policies in our tendering
system;

Monitor project costs closely with strict adherence to
budget;

Extract advantages from economies of scale based
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on our portfolio size, if possible; and ERN N EERELEED &

e Monitor closely the labour cost and materials stock/ e MEHBESDAEINEZITEAN
price trends in the industry before awarding building ANEAR KRR ET, (BI85
contracts.

Cyber Security: HE L
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Loss of data and leakage of confidential information are
the largest costs from cyber-crime that the Company
is facing. The cost of recovering from cyber attacks, KABEREN EFBRERYRANGE
including reputational damage, where the trust in a ERERGEBEAEBEMSIBHEER
company decreases and their brand loses value, is B

considerable.

IT Security Committee established to review the
Group’s IT security policies and risks assessment;

The Company's IT infrastructure are regularly
scanned and patched;
Risky external IP addresses are blocked;

All servers and user computers are equipped with
antivirus or endpoint protection;

Emails are filtered for spam and malware;
Password control and user access to the systems
and network elements are regularly updated and

reviewed; and

System backup facilities provide addition layers of
protections.
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D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had a written confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board
had reviewed the Control Systems and were not aware of
any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Control Systems.

Dividend Policy

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting out
the principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and final
dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings attribution
to its Shareholders after taking into consideration of factors stated
in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements for
business operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities and
capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities. The
declaration of dividends or recommendation on such payment
shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations
including but not limited to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of
Bermuda and the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the
Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
and/or potential investors mainly in the following ways: (a) the
holding of annual general meetings (“AGM”) and special general
meetings (“SGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific
purposes which provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board; (b) the publication
of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or
circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press releases
providing updated information of the Group; (c) the availability
of latest information of the Group in the Company’s website at
https://www.emperorint.com; (d) the holding of press conference(s)
from time to time; and (e) meeting with investors and analysts on
a regular basis and participate investor road show and sector
conferences.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
such substantial issues, including re-election of retiring Directors.
The Company’s notice to the Shareholders for the 2019 AGM was
sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and notices of other general meetings will be sent to the
Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2019 AGM and the chairman/members of
the Board Committee and the external auditor were available at
the 2019 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting poll voting
during such meeting.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Right to convence/call a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a special general meeting to be called by the Board.
The written requisition (a) must state the object(s) of the meeting;
and (b) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for
attention of the Company Secretary, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.
Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day not more
than two months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
are to be convened by the Board.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended),
either any number of the registered Shareholders holding not less
than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to
the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next AGM notice
of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at that meeting; and (b)circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting any statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must
be deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses and not less than (6) weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
or not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition. Provided that AGM is called for a date (6) weeks
or less after the copy has been deposited, such requisition though
not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed
to the Investor Relations Department of the Company.

Constitutional Documents

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

Auditor’s Independence and Remuneration MBI ERENE

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the ZFEixZ%E B @EREREEAZ ELERE KERZ
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and effectiveness &l 2B 1% @ INEIRG A B IEHRETBIEZE
of the audit process of the consolidated financial statements in B4 RERE -BEREES 2 KERA NAFZ
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit %EiETiEZ)e =R H @ :tENITBIE AL WiE
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor, Messrs. HEE@A2020F B EHAFE AE FERE AARN
Deloitte Touche Tomatsu is independent and has recommended & Z A&l - AARNEE AR EH) e =R T @ =AM
the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the 2020 172 [AIANERBREZERFE LA T IFZERA - M
AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, has ARNEEDN FENTHZEBESEHHOT
rendered audit services and certain non-audit services to the

Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set

out as follows::

Fees paid/payable
Service rendered FriR AR %S B ENER
HK$'000
FAT
Audit services ZBUR TS 7,390
Non-audit services SERZBURTS
— Corporate exercise in accordance with Hong - BLETERBEE ST AEAT 348
Kong Standard on Investment Circular M EBIRE B IHERRE AR
Reporting Engagements 400 “Comfort Letters FA005: [ ERHHLREBEE &
and Due Diligence Meetings” issued by RERE
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY R R E

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuaa with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 63 to 201, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR E R S

Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matters
BRELEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYRZ1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, combined with the significant assumptions and
judgements involved in determining the fair value as set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

TR EMEZ HEHRR R —BAREZEE  REE
Rz B e BRREEMEEBEN BWEadt
BIRM T4 BEE AR BESRERRR R HE-

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$44,690,869,000, representing 74% of
the Group's total assets, with its change in fair value
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
During the year, the decrease in fair value of investment
properties amounted to HK$4,129,522,000.
WNRETBREMT14RE BEEBZREY
%¥844,690,869,000/8TT 1 EEBBEEL74%"
HARBEEZDFTAGEEBRRAN -NEAFE KEY
ERREBERD4,129,522,000/8 7T ©

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties are
carried at fair value based on the valuations performed
by independent firms of qualified professional property
valuers (the “Valuers”). The valuations are dependent on
key inputs, together with significant assumptions, that
involve judgements. The relevant inputs and conditions
include capitalisation rates and comparable market
transactions with adjustments to reflect different locations
or conditions for completed investment properties,
changes in market condition following the outbreak of
coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") and comparable market
rents and transactions, occupancy rate, discount rate,
developer’s profit and cost to be incurred to complete
the development for investment properties under
development. Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

WERE M MRMTAIREE - BSRECREMELE
MBI & BRBEMEMERT ([HERM])EERA
A BESR - BEGEDKREE 2R ABBARERR
RAETT - Hp g K # E AR B g A BUR KR B IR E AR ME
ERALBEMSER S (BEELABRUARREKITIREY
FZATARMESGRR) BRBESEE (120198 1k E =
W BERZTASEARAERMISHEE RS B
R -MRER EREEMNETKERPRENESE
ARERKA - BRGERMAZHERMREZHA
BRI S M SRR M s 1442 58
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ERNIEERRERER

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness
of the valuation of investment properties included:

AITHEREMEZAEREEZEFBRE:

e FEvaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;

o  FHEHMERMA B RE N REEIE:

e Understanding the Valuers’ valuation basis and
methodologies, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted and key
inputs used in the valuations; and

o TMRHEEMZMERERAE MEMBZRE E
EFFIREACERBREAER 2 EEGASE &

e Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuations by (i) checking the details
of rentals, on a sample basis, to the respective
underlying existing tenancy agreements; (ii)
comparing to relevant market information on prices,
rentals achieved and capitalisation rates adopted
in other similar properties in the neighbourhood
with the consideration of changes in market
conditions following the outbreak of COVID-19; (iii)
benchmarking the discount rates against historical
data, market trend and applicable market yields;
and (iv) comparing the budget costs approved by
management to actual development costs incurred
to evaluate the cost to be incurred to complete
the development for investment properties under
development.

o FBB()MBERERHERAEERRCESFE (i)
ER PR i B H A AR A SE PR EIS BV B4 - FH & S ER AN
WERNEER 2 BT S ER (B EREH2019E8 1B
BRI E B ) EITLLE (i) BRI R E LU R S
BB mHSBENERTSRRTETEESN : &
(VT HTRERPREDEBEENKR LR
REBEBIENTAEKRNEMESNERERAAR -
Nt ETAERZ T 2HABE BT -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR S

Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matters
AREREE

Valuation of properties under development for sale

HIEHEZRRETYEZIEE

We identified the valuation of properties under
development for sale as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the significant judgements
associated with the assessment of whether the
properties under development for sale were stated at
lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV”). As at 31
March 2020, the Group’s properties under development
for sale amounted to HK$4,858,713,000. During the
year, write-downs of properties under development for
sale amounting to HK$446,850,000 is recognised.
RTEHIEHEZ BERPYE 2 HEBNABRERZS
H - THEREREREEABREAERBMEBEEXN
NRFHEFRHER E 2 ERTPME R DR AR A E R
FE ([FTEBFE]) AP BIEE DRSS R EARHE -
R20205F3A31H - EXEERELEZERTYER
4,858,713,0008 L F N  EMARFRHIELEZEES Y
3£ 2 MURL 2446,850,00078 7T ©

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group's properties under development
for sale are stated at lower of cost and NRV. The
determination of the NRV is based on estimated selling
prices less estimated costs to completion and selling
expenses of these properties. The selling prices are
estimated by reference to the market prices of similar
properties in prevailing market environment with the
consideration of changes in market conditions following
the outbreak of COVID-19. The costs to completion of
the properties under development for sale are estimated
by reference to the development budget, actual
development cost of similar completed properties with
adjustments based on current market data.

BINGE M BRRMTATEE BEEERFELHEZ
ERPYERKNAERSERFEMEPREE R -E

B RELEZHRTYE L T IRAKL2EZRLUC T
ITYRZABAE BERMERAGE LRERTH
SHBEHAE-

BREXSEE &

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMuMEERAREREE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness
of the valuation of properties under development for sale
included:

AT ERERECBRPMEZHEREUEZEFE
&

e Assessing the management’s process in estimating
the costs to completion of the properties under
development for sale, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to the development budget, actual
development cost of similar completed properties
of the Group and comparing the adjustments made
by the management in the estimated costs to
completion to current market data;

o MEFHEREENMEGEARELHEZERPYE
AR BHE SRESRTHRMUMECE
ERE BRERKETLER REEEELH T
TERK AN B 8 B B B B T 95 BUB ELL B

e Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of the
properties under development for sale, on a sample
basis, by comparing the NRV to market prices
less estimated costs of selling expenses achieved
in the same project or comparable properties,
based on the current market development trend,
government regulations in the real estate industry
and our knowledge of the Group’s business with
the consideration of changes in market conditions
following the outbreak of COVID-19; and

o MREENMSERBY BHETRHOBERNAN
RTH BEEEBHTH WEEIEE2019EM
RERE 2 TREE)  F iR ] I FE EAE R IE B
AT LR 2 BRI h AT S S S AT

&

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of the assessment
performed by the management of the Group on the
key inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their impact
of the market value and adequacy of impairment
being made.

e Mt ESEEEEEMREIZHABBETHNGEN
BB UeHhEmEXENEE RMEHRET S HE

AN
A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY %A R E

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

REEE () BRAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY R R E

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY %A R E

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

2020 2019
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FHET
Revenue WA
Contracts with customers BEFAH 5(a 1,357,663 3,244,566
Leases HE 5(b) 1,007,719 1,107,820
Total revenue FERI N 2,365,382 4,352,386
Cost of properties sales )3 SHE R (119,328) (1,031,389)
Cost of hotel and hotel B E KO8 5 AE B E RS AR
related operations (603,426) (635,051)
Direct operating expenses HERBEME BEEKLERY
in respect of leasing of
investment properties (135,975) (149,464)
Gross profit E 7 1,506,653 2,536,482
Other income E e A 184,076 148,280
Fair value changes of REMEAREBEZE
investment properties (4,129,522) 1,749,284
Other gains and losses H bz K E1E 7 170,704 720,570
Impairment allowance Bo (%R BHEWRIEZ
reversed (recognised) for BB E
trade receivables 289 (35,826)
Selling and marketing expenses 5% N5 #E & A (290,457) (426,110)
Administrative expenses THER (502,570) (522,583)
Finance costs MBER 8 (674,886) (715,627)
Share of result of an associate DG —EEE QR EE 19 65,339 38,836
Share of result of a joint venture i —EAECEZEE 20 (109) (72)
(Loss) profit before taxation BrELRT (E518) & 7 9 (3,670,483) 3,493,234
Taxation credit (charge) MIEH R (X)) 11 127,121 (165,472)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(EE) & (3,543,362) 3,327,762
(Loss) profit for the year EIEFE (BE)RH :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIES PN (3,644,359) 3,136,289
Non-controlling interests FE15 AR 2 100,997 191,473
(3,543,362) 3,327,762
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (EE) &
Basic A 13 HK$(0.99)5% 7t HK$0.85/% 7t

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEaREAEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense)
income

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or l0ss:

Revaluation surplus of property,
plant and equipment transferred to
investment properties, net of tax

ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations:
— subsidiaries
— an associate

Fair value change on hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge

Fair value change of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Reclassification adjustments for
amounts transferred to profit
or loss upon disposal of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Release of hedging reserve upon
disposal of hedging instruments in
cash flow hedge

2020
HK$’000
FER
R (BR)EH
H2E (%) K
TRENHEE
a2 B
EDENE L
SRR A £

BEA% HRHEA

R EHAE
i 2 A E

I B 5 S 1 T
3 2%
~HBAR
——RBE AR
B B 2 B
TARREEEH
EBA M2 E ST B
AREEZEFTA

R EEBEM2EH KRS
AEAABEZER
TERBRERDZ
ENOBHAESR

REEREREE D Z
b T AW AR 2 $
5 18

Other comprehensive expense
for the year

FEEMEMEMAX

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

FEzEA (FAx)KE

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EEEERES (F%) K

ZN/NCIEZ 2N
FEIR R R

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z2%£E (EIFR) GRAF
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2019
HK$'000
THET
3,327,762

10,941

(660,960)
(5,380)
(5,331)

329

854

(659,547)

2,668,215

2,478,246
189,969

2,668,215




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRE

At 31 March 2020 7202053 A31H

2020 2019
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
By aE FTHER FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties HEYE 14 44,690,869 49,101,784
Property, plant and equipment ERE Y 15 3,185,297 3,278,973
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEIRE M
investment properties/property, R EERES N2
plant and equipment e 15,734 50,321
Receivables related to B—EHEEER 2
a development project e FRIE 14 162,519 173,112
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 16 556,404 -
Prepaid lease payments BNHEEFE 17 - 513,822
Debt instruments at fair value through BRAMEERGEE 2
other comprehensive income ARnBEZEBIA 18 35,959 372,025
Interest in an associate N /NCI - oy 19 170,162 113,485
Interest in a joint venture R—EeErE2#E 20 813,970 735,374
Goodwill (EES 21 56,683 56,683
Other assets HEmEE 22 4,052 4,092
Derivative financial instruments TTESmMIA 23 - 11,415
49,691,649 54,411,086
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 3 15,676 14,687
Properties held for sale BIERE 2= 24 315,497 405,032
Properties under development for sale BIEREZBERPhYE 25 4,858,713 3,257,951
Prepaid lease payments BNHEEFE 17 - 18,102
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A IR 26 1,417,187 1,544,129
Debt instruments at fair value through FERAMEER R 2
other comprehensive income ARnBEZEBIA 18 46,415 96,783
Taxation recoverable AR B IE 17,987 43,073
Deposit in designated bank account for  BLER Y EF RN IETE
development properties RITERP 273 27 9,194 9,696
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRITER 28 348 44,040
Short-term bank deposits RHERTTE X 28 980,656 300,662
Bank balances and cash IRITHBNIRS 28 2,943,493 3,643,816
10,605,166 9,377,971
Assets classified as held for sale DEARRKELECEE 29 - 455,147
Total current assets BREBEE 10,605,166 9,833,118

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%k




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRE

At 31 March 2020 7202053 A31H

2020 2019
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FAT
Current liabilities nRBEE
Trade and other payables B o NEMENTE 30 970,763 1,146,091
Contract liabilities AHEE 31 16,420 7,500
Amount due to an associate JEAS — e B & R B I8 32 87,556 33,652
Amounts due to related companies e B8R R FUB 33 1,105,010 484,436
Amounts due to non-controlling ERWEARZ 34
interests of subsidiaries PR BE R TR 41,090 46,200
Taxation payable FESFRIR 330,774 407,229
Unsecured notes — due within one year — EEAZE ——FRIE 35 1,092,563 1,298,357
Bank borrowings — due within one year ~ $R17fEE ——F R E|H] 36 4,540,971 2,968,580
Lease liabilities — due within one year MEBE-——FAIH 37 4,790 -
8,189,937 6,392,045
Liabilities associated with assets HYBABFELEZ 29
classified as held for sale EERBLAE - 412,875
Total current liabilities wREaE 8,189,937 6,804,920
Net current assets REEETFHE 2,415,229 3,028,198
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 52,106,878 57,439,284
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Contract liabilities AHEE 31 18,870 -
Amounts due to related companies JE < & A B I8 33 - 744,792
Unsecured notes — due after one year ERHEE - —FREE 35 4,069,203 4,622,690
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE——FREIE 36 16,238,421 15,479,807
Lease liabilities — due after one year HERR——F%&IH 37 39,569 -
Deferred taxation EERIE 38 2,018,611 2,234,155
22,384,674 23,081,444
29,722,204 34,357,840
Capital and reserves BEXRR G
Share capital % A< 39 36,775 36,775
Reserves il 27,163,460 31,798,299
Equity attributable to owners of RARHEE ANEEER
the Company 27,200,235 31,835,074
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR HE 2 2,521,969 2,522,766
29,722,204 34,357,840

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 201 were  $638 £ 5201 H T 2 74 B HE 1202056
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23~ A23HA&E =i RIRET|E WH THIES
June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: REEE:

Wong Chi Fai Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
DIRECTOR £% DIRECTOR 2%

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ALRERARE
Assets Investments Non-
Share  Share Translation revaluation revaluation Hedging ~ Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserves  profits Total interests  equity
BE hE

Bx ROER EXGE EHRE EGRE WG 0GR REEN o ERER 48R
HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
TR TEr TEr TR TR TEn TEx TR TR TEn TEn

(Note)
(H)
At 1 April 2019 R2019E4818
(Loss) proft for the year EF (BR)EH
Exchange differences arising on ranslafion &S5 EHATE LS 28
of foreign operations:
- subsidiaries - HERE
- an associate - —AEAR
Fair value change on hedging instrumenisin - & & HH T &
cash flow hedge MrEERD
Fair value change of debt instruments EREMZENG
measured at fair value through other HEARBEZEHIA
comprehensive income AR BEEY

Reclassfication adjusiments foramounts ~ RHERBEM2 NS
transferred to profitor loss upon disposal -~ 5T ER R EEZER
of debt instruments at fairvalue through T EFEBEZER
ofher comprehensive income ENARAEEE

Release of hedging reserve upon disposal of R ER 2 REL 2
hedging instumenis in cashflowhedge ~~ HH T ABER 7 HhEE

Total comprehensive (expense) income  EE2EA (B E
for the year

Depreciafion atrbutable to assets BEERRBERTE
revaluation surplus

Release of assets revaluafion reserve upon I EMBAFIAER 2
disposal of subsidaries BEERRE

Acquistion of addiional nterests in WEEME AT BIVER
subsidlaries (note 42) (i)

Capital contribution from non-conroling ~~ —FHBLAEZ
interests of a subsidlary FERERTE

Avising from changes in cash flow mERBERAREL
esfimates on amounts due to Refefnsy
related companies (ot 39) FEL (#3)

2019 final dividend paid EIR019ERER S

2020 interim dividend paid EIR00ERER S

At 31 March 2020 20203831 A

Emperor International Holdings Limited R25%E (EIF) BRAE S
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 F &




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADAREAES

Assets - Invesiments Non-
Shae  Share Translation revaluation revaluation  Hedging Other  Retained controling Total
captel premium  reseve  reseve  reseve  feserve  reseves  profits Total interests  equiy
BE R
R RDEE EXRE EREE ERRE DREE HbRE REEN A HERER  GEs
HK$000  HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Thr TEr TEr TAr Thr TEr Thr TEr  TEr  TEr TEn
(Notg)
(Hiz)
At 1 April 2018 20185471 36,775 4563248 809384 202,048 (544)  (7.236) 604,499 23,247,199 29455373 3,303,207 32,758,580
Proftfor the year R - - - - - - - 313280 3136280 191473 3327762
Exchange differences arising on ranslation &AM EHATELES 28
of foreign operations:
- subsidiaries - iBna - - (660,960) - - - - - (660,960) - (660,960)
- an associate - —HBERF - - (530 - - - - - (530 - (530
Revaluation surplus of property, plantand ~~ E#1% BERHEER
equipment ransferred to invesiment AREMENER
properies, net of tax B REE - - - 1094 - - - - 1094 - 1094
Fair value change on hedging instrumentsin- B REHA 2 S TA
cash flow hedge NMEEEY - - - - - (633 - - (3 - (53
Fair value change of debt instruments EREMZENGHE
measured at fair value through other MEBEZERIE
comprehensive income LDAEEE - - - - 236 - - - 236 (2017) 39
Reclassfication adustments foramounts R EBBEM2ENE
transferred to proft or loss upon disposal B A% BEZ ER
of debt instruments at fair value thiough T EBEBEZERY
other comprehensive income ENNERELE - - - - 34 - - - 341 513 854
Totel comprehensive (expense) income ~~ £EAE4A (H3) i
for the year - - (E630) 10941 2687 (531 - 313289 2478246 18099 2668215
Depreciation aftributable to assets BEEREBENTE
revaluation surplus - - - (1800) - - - 210 304 - 304
Acquisiion of adaffional interests in WERBAR 2 BiMER
subsidiaries (nofe 42) (hia) - - - - - - 294662 - 204662 (933273) (638611)
Avising from changes in cash flow BEAEEAANEL
estimates on amounts due to ReNEmiED
related companies (ot 35) FEE (Hd33) - - - - - - 3664 - 366t - 366
2018 inal dividend paid ER0IBERERS - - - - - - S (224330) (224330) (5104) (249434)
2019 interim dividend paid EIR019FRERS - - - - - - - (172845) (172845) (12,033 (184878)
At 31 March 2019 Ro019E3A31H 36,775 4563248 143044 211,189 2143 (12567) 902,825 25988417 31,835,074 2522,766 34,357,840
Note: The other reserves of the Group arose from (i) acquisition of additional Mzt : AREEZ EMEEBIRG)RIEEEWB A A UKE

interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries; (ii) dilution of interest in a
subsidiary from allotment of shares by a subsidiary; and (iii) deemed

capital contributions from owners of the Company.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 fF#k
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREMNER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z£202043A31H I F[Z

Operating activities
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expenses
Release of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Share of result of an associate
Share of result of a joint venture
Fair value changes of investment properties
Write-downs of properties under
development for sale
Write-off of an amount due from
an associate
Impairment allowance (reversed)
recognised for trade receivables
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Gain on disposal of derivative financial
instruments
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Unrealised exchange (gain) loss
Foreign exchange difference on
intercompany balances

2020
HK$°000
FHT
@ED
BB AT (E51R) )
BE:
FlBIA
Flems

R TENEE A
WE BERRBZFE

EREEEZIE
NIE—FBERR 2 EE
NE—HARELEZRE
BREMEAABEZED
FELEZBREPMEZHA

i 5 e s — Rt 2 R R 2 BB
(B @) R E 5 R KR ZRIE
B

HENE BRRRBZER
HEMES BT Az s
HERB ARz

HEEREMEZEKETERA
BEZEHIAZER

ETZEJJQW*MTZFEJZ%%

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Decrease in properties held for sale
Increase in properties under
development for sale
Decrease (increase) in trade and
other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities

A2 EES BRI EERS
mE

FRZ (BmRL

RIELEZMEZRD

SEREZHRPYERZEM

5 MEMEYGRIAEZ R (EI)

\

B 5 RAMENFRZRD
aRaEZEMORD)

Cash generated from operations
Income tax (paid) refunded
- in Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region
- in Macau Special Administrative Region

KEEEZRE
(BB BREMEH
—REBERITHRE

—ORFIR R TR

—in People’s Republic of China —RPEARLME
—in United Kingdom —RNEH
Net cash from operating activities RELE LSRR

2019
HK$'000
FET
3,493,234

(102,830)
697,803
18,104
175,632

(38,836)

72
(1,749,284)

35,826

184
(785,305)
854

2,163

71,742

1,819,359
308
1,012,925

(753,140)
(72,172)

(50,174)
(455,902)

1,501,204

(120,072)
(1,243)
(12,876)
(1,990)

1,365,023

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z2%E (BFE) GRAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

2020
NOTE HK$’000
B st FTET
Investing activities REREH
Acquisition of investment properties W EME R ERT
and costs incurred for investment KREMERESE KA
properties under development
Placement of short-term 7 i R 1T K
bank deposits
Acquisition of property, plant LGt ERY =Y B
and equipment
Advance to a joint venture m—FEEhEERR
Deposits paid on acquisition of WEEREME M-
investment properties/property, plant WRRSEASZ Nz RE
and equipment
Acquisition of debt instruments WEERBHM 2 E RS
at fair value through other EAnBEZEBIA

comprehensive income
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEERRITER

Payments for rental deposits EE R s ANEN
Placement of deposit in FREERYEFHR
designated bank account for BERITERP 277K

development properties
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits 2BV HAIR 1717 X

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HENBABAERIE 41

Proceeds from disposal of debt HEBBEMEEKENE
instruments at fair value through other MhEECEBIA
comprehensive income Z PG 5RIE

Interest received YR A 2

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RREERRITER

Proceeds from disposal of derivative HEMEERIAZHE
financial instruments PIA

Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEERIE
investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BB REREME
plant and equipment ;A

Proceeds from disposal of other assets & B B E P IE

Deposit received in respect of RIEHE 2 BEMBEERZ
assets held for sales e

Addition in prepaid lease payments AEEMNEERE

Net cash (used in) from investing (AR)REEREES 2 HS
activities HEE

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z2%£E (EIFR) GRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &k

2019
HK$'000
THET

(1,310,622)
(676,430)
(83,299)
(69,601)

(46,911)

(367,990)
(44,287)

(98)
851,284
1,209,108

165,109
99,975
31,616

338,800

352

165,000
(2,773)

259,233




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z£202043A31H I F[Z

2020 2019
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
(i FET FTET
Financing activities MELT
Bank borrowings raised HEEIRITEE 8,813,466
Proceeds from issuance of BOIEERERMEHE
unsecured notes -
Advances from related companies BB N F 2 BH 742,783
Advances from an associate —HBE AR 22K 46,631
Advances from non-controlling interests ~ Fif/8 A Bl 3EHE A2 2 B 3K
of subsidiaries _
Capital contribution from — B AR 2 IR
non-controlling interests of a subsidiary & -
Repayments of bank borrowings BRBFIEE (6,562,833)
Redemption of unsecured notes BEEKHAZE (859,649)
Interest paid for financial liabilities TEREEFE (863,628)
Repayments to related companies ERTHERR (1,529,272)
Dividends paid to owners of RARBEAEAZNZIRE
the Company (397,175)
Acquisition of additional interests WS BT A B 2 FESME 42
in subsidiaries (638,611)
Dividends paid to non-controlling Bl PNGE g £
interests of subsidiaries TRZEE (37,137)
Repayments to non-controlling interests & 7 T Mt B X 7) JEHR ik i 25
of subsidiaries (61,400)
Repayments of lease liabilities ERHERE -
Interest paid for lease liabilities THEEEERE -
Net cash from (used in) RE (AR)BEES
financing activities BT (1,346,825)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash & FBREEEM 2 (Rd)
equivalents N 2] 277,431
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning  R|REHIN2RE KEE
of the reporting period EEW 3,374,910
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXE &) v & (8,489)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of REEHRz A& kRS
the reporting period, representing ZEY ARTESRRRS
bank balances and cash 3,643,852
Analysis of the balances of cash and RekReFEMBHR AN
cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRRS 3,643,816
Bank balances and cash included in FASBERRKIEHEZLE
a disposal group classified HA 2 BITREBR RS
as held for sale 36
3,643,852

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z2%E (BFE) GRAT
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72

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

1.

General

Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company’s immediate holding company
is Emperor International Group Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).
The ultimate holding company of the Company is Albert
Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the BVI which is in turn held by
First Trust Services GmbH, being the trustee of The Albert
Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), the settlor and founder
of which is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”).
The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 53.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“‘HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with

HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment
HKAS 19 or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

2. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year —
continued

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS
17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with
the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a
contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid lease
payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative information has not
been restated.

FERFIE RAEFT BB B MwE
ZR ([FBMBREEL]) -

——
(==1

4

/1=

T 7S 4 B 5 1 A 32 HT 18 IR ARAE R
LERBYBRELE—Z

B XAt E S - AN R AT S AR ERT
HFEMBREENHAEERANEE BT
FEZBBARRARKER R RERE M ERE
P&l BN EBEATE -

BB BEHEERF16% [#HE] ([ ZEH
BHEERE165])
AEBERAFEERERBTBUHEREE
A 165% - B BN IS MELER B 1R E L
SEHERIEA7SE [HE] ([FBgRTERIE17
55 ) AR

HEZEH

AEEDEANRATTERE A AEREER
%53 & 22 Bl 1657 A ST Al 2R A AE B X e
BRGREAETHR LTS (BHRYHRER
BLZEE) RERMRET HLHEEE
SHEZEK AR AU RN SR 5T
A ABEEHEZAH At AEE T
ENHERERAEARHREFEZEES
#e

ER2019F 4 A1B S 2 BT SERTHE 4 -
AEBIRE R B ISIRE LR F165RFTEAR
TEAAETE  UWIHAYREGREHE-

TEAATA
AEBBBPEADBYIEREERE165E -
HEZRFFEREXNERBE (BN2019F4 A1
B)#ER-

2019F4 A1 - ANEE @B IE A B B %HR
5 7 B 551657 C8(b)(ii) 2 BIE 1R & FEREEIN
HEBERFRAREE SBESRIEEME
NHEERERARZ AEAEaE -REXER
HE 2 E R =R VR BAFER - B E
BB ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year —
continued
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) — continued

As a lessee — continued

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ending within 12
months from the date of initial application;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
a similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying
assets in similar economic environment. Specifically,
discount rate for certain leases of properties in Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) and
Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) was
determined on a portfolio basis; and

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension and termination
options.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2. ERMIBREZEITEBUMERE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ZR ([HEVKREFER]) -
(“HKFRSs”) — continued F=]

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are N EERENER 2N &IEET

mandatorily effective for the current year - ZERBUBEREER 2

continued

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) — continued BB BHEEREI6H [HE] ([EEH
HIHEERF16% ) —#&

As a lessee — continued TERATNA —#&

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously TERERL S EAKRESHE 7HEAGER K

classified as operating leases, the Group has applied EBDRgRERARERREER TR Y

incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities 18 & (SRR o & Y 2 DNt 118 e B TR &

at the date of initial application. The weighted average EFF35%

incremental borrowing rate applied is 3.5% per annum.

At 1 April 2019

A20196481H
HK$’000
FER
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 20193 A3 AR 2 & EHE
31 March 2019 HHE 3,912
Add: Extension options reasonably certain to m: AEERERTITECEMR
be exercised B 40,834
Less: Short-term leases and leases with lease term 5 2 i E LA & X JEA
ending within 12 months from the date of RN BHRELERFE165%
initial application of HKFRS 16 HEEET 12 AAER 2 HE (2,301)
42,445
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental HEEEEENERUR AEEE
borrowing rates (14,779)
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases recognised 7201964 A1H ER B A KRS
upon application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019 HRIF 1R B ERELCEHERHE
ZHEAE 27,666
Analysed as: DT :
Current &N 634
Non-current JEmED 27,032
27,666
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2. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year —
continued

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) — continued

As a lessee — continued

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1
April 2019 comprises the following:

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases

FE P8 R S T B B B RS
R ([ B BB HEE])

——
(=—==]

4z

/1=

TR B2 5 Rl A 382 HT 18 IR RS ET
ZERBUBHREER &

BENBHEERF16% [ #HE] ([ ZEMY
BHEEREI67%]) —#&
TERATEA—2

R2019F4 418 At E R EAEEE R
HEEESENTEHE:

HK$’000
FTHERT

RIERE B HmEERIFE 165 1&

recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 REBKEHEZFRAEEE 27,666
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments (Note) BIENEERBEFTE (HiF) 531,924
559,590

By class: RHER -
Leasehold lands HE LT 558,046
Land and buildings T REF 1,544
559,590

Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in Macau were classified as
prepaid lease payments as at 31 March 2019. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the current and non-current portions of prepaid lease
payments amounting to HK$18,102,000 and HK$513,822,000
respectively were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16,
the Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition
for leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these
leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial
application and comparative information has not been restated.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts entered
into but commence after the date of initial application relating
to the same underlying assets under existing lease contracts
are accounted as if the existing leases are modified as at 1
April 2019. The application has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 April 2019.
However, effective from 1 April 2019, lease payments relating
to the revised lease term after modification are recognised as
income on straight-line basis over the extended lease term.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits
received were considered as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applied under trade and other
payables. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the
right-of-use assets and the discounting effect is insignificant
at transition.

MisE: 201943 A31H BFIAE + i T~ 5
BESEAEMNMEEFNIA - EREBIMIE®R
HERF165 % ENHERB 2 RBE D
18,102,000/ 7T M IE 7 )63 513,822,0007
TR EH D EEFRELE-

TER LA

RIBB BV 5 HREERF 165 IBIRF - AR
SEERHEA  ERHHEBRRETEMNR
B ERBEEBMGHREERF 1658 8
A AMHZEEET AR UEFTHLEER
#EITES -

REEREBYIEREERFE165RE  BERA
HEAHETR—HEEEZERIYERS
RERBHERARZFHESLOTUAR B
WR2019F4A1B ZIREHER FIEM - 74 E
YR EER2019F4 818 2 428 BIS R N
RWESE AT B2019F4818 #£ &2k
B ETHEERE 2 B EFIERIERE N
HIGEERERERA -

RIERE B RELERFE165%AT - DUATR
EEEZRS R REE G EF175RER
ZHEBR TN EEE (BE 5 KA
JHIAT) - REBBU B RS ELFE16REE
Nz EE ZFReWIFAEREEERTH
ZHEAR @R 2 MRTEY TEAX-
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mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2. ERMIBREZEITEBUMERE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ZR (BB EREER]) —
(“HKFRSs”) — continued F=]

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are A 2 4F 38 ) A Rz H 3 I BB RT

mandatorily effective for the current year — ZERBUMKREER—Z

continued

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) — continued BB BHEEREI6H [HE] ([EEH
BHEERE1655 ) —#&

As a lessor — continued ERILA —#&

The applications of HKFRS 16 has had no material impact REBIEAETBATERS M ERE AL

on the Group as a lessor on the consolidated statement of F1658 A B R2019F4 A18 2 &2 A BT RN

financial position as at 1 April 2019. RITEERTE-

The following adjustments were made to the amounts 20194 A1 B G MBI R PR 2

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position BEERUTHAZE - RXBEBEEEHTE AR

at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected by the WEBFEENA -

changes have not been included.

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts under
previously HKFRS 16 at
reported at 1 April 2019
31 March 2019 120194 81H
el BREEBYK
A201963H31H Adjustments & ZERIFE165E
ERZEEE FE R ZREE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE - 559,590 559,590
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 513,822 (513,822) -
Current asset REBEE
Prepaid lease payments AR E K8 18,102 (18,102) -
Current liability REBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE - (634) (634)
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE - (27,032) (27,032)
For the purpose of reporting cash flows for the year ended MR EHE2020F3831H INFEEZIRERE
31 March 2020, movements have been computed based on m= - Z&) ke A ER2019F481H
opening consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 CENGE AR R Z B Rt E o

April 2019 as disclosed above.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year —
continued

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”), including the impairment
requirements, to long-term interests in a joint venture to which
the equity method is not applied that form part of the net
investment in the investee. Furthermore, in applying HKFRS
9 to long-term interests, an entity does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by HKAS
28 (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term
interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee or
assessment of impairment in accordance with HKAS 28).

As at 31 March 2020, amount due from a joint venture of
HK$814,405,000 (2019: HK$735,700,000) is considered as
long-term interest that, in substance form part of the Group'’s
net investments in the relevant joint ventures. However,
the application is not expected to have impact as the
Group’s existing accounting policies are consistent with the
requirements clarified by the amendments.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendment to COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions®
HKFRS 16

Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 and an Investor and its Associate or
HKAS 28 Joint Venture®

Amendments to Definition of Material*
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?*

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39

and HKFRS 7

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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A SN RERE U R E R FRRE
REELE BRI E REB SRR
SRR 2 REERE (AREEESERSE
285 D LR & 77 B IR S AT (R (E < = B
o FREEAE)

R2020F3A31H Bl —FHIA& S ¥HKTEA
814,405,0007% 7T (20194F : 735,700,000/ 7T )
W ARELR BE FERASEREREE
BREZFREN—ID A ARAEE
AR BOREZ S SR FMER 2 RE—
B BHIRZER T T e EA T E-

B 5810 {B [e 7R 4 Rz 3798 R R4S 7T
BRAMBREER

758 B30 92 8 A LA T E B A8 M R A
2 RIS FT BB R A AR

EREUBRESERL REREH

E175E

BB BHRELER 2019F B SHAABEA
F165k 2 17T SEE
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EKLivd )

BRI MEER WEEEEBE QR
FIRREB BETCEMZBEEN
SEHERIFE8R BaEEe
ZIERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective — continued

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
The amendments:

e add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election
on whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

e clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired
set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs;
and

e narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers
and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce
costs.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to all
business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 April 2020.

FERFIE RAEFT BB B MwE
ZR ([FBMBREEL]) -

——
(==1

4

/1=

© B A0 1B 16 R 4 Rz 348 R AEAERT
ERMBHREEN—Z
T R20214 1 B1RRZ ERIA 2 F A

2 B ARIEE HHA2020F 1 A1HS 2 B2
BEFEHEMAE B2 BETZEBKESH
MAEWE -

5 REETBRHzaFABFEIHMER-

4 R2020%1 A1 B sz 18 e 2 S E BRI AR

5 R2020F6 1B 2 & Fim 2 FEHRER -

Br B2 IS RS ET 2 BB B SRS 2ER
SN 2018EEMEM T IUEET BB B E 2B
EZ - HEARNER]  BEMBERELEN S
MEZR$5 3| 2 15T #5122020F1 A 1B 8k 2 14 53
hZ FREER AR -

R TRt 2 $Ti8 MR E R BB s 2
AN RABER([EF))BHERMAH
b1 R B R F AR B3R & BRI A R
KREFEMHRRABEATE -

BB BHEERFIRZICFT RBEZEE

AHER] -

o NINANERSEF RIS - SOBE A FTEAT
WiEN— B MEER DL IFRIE
TTRMERHE - BN G R A& SRR
AHPEEAIZRERFHETT

o ERHNEAERERZ —RICWEA
BNEEEVMABIRIRANELER
ZRANEE M ER AR AEE LD
EESELEXRER: K

s MIEBMRELNER BIRAETFRE
HEVEWRARTS - A RBUESFREA A BE
j] o

ZRES B #1521 E A A A IR B HR 22020464
A1Hskz BBz FEREHRES 2 & 2 FT
EXGEHMEERBRERBZEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective — continued
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgements. In particular, the amendments:

e include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

e replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

e include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too
broad when deciding what information to disclose in the
financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 April 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework™) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:
e reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

e discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

RIS E BB RS
R ([& B RS2 ) —

——
(=—==]

4z

/1=

C M40 {8 o AR £ 30 2 37 8 I A4S /T
BRAMBRERER &

EEB RIS RE BB ERAE8H
BITEAZES
REETHEARBAMRM T BARESIR
FRTR DA ST B IR 2 B Bk - AR

5 REER]

e BRIEZEIZE2EMNMS HEER

s NMFEEREZEMMEE[AIAIEE
Mg MR IAZE] R

s BEEMFAMAIEEEME] MmIFER
[MERE]  WRERTHHRRBNERNEFE
P AR BN B -

SEEREFBMBHRELNNTER 20
I A A SR B R202054 A 1H B 46 80 E 51
BRI LR - TEHIE M F B T e B AEE
ZHBEARR R RIVERE R E - HER e &
KGR BHRERT 2 LK -

2018F A IR HERHER ([ HHEH ) R B
BRI EERIB R HERIE S| Z 55T

FAEDR -
o EHSIATENEHIFMSE:

o SIAZERNNMEETEANBER
RELLPTRERE B AETES T
eXEEBEEERT A ZHNERA:

o FIMESLAANIRERE - WA R
—EEXBEEEFTEEERMEIMNE
5l
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2. ERMIBREZEITEBUMERE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ZR (BB RELELD]) -
(“HKFRSs”) — continued F=]

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but C M85 1B 8 R A R 2 3718 B I8 5T
not yet effective — continued BEEMBREEN—~F
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the 2018F I B EWE=HEZE ([FTHESR ) R &
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References BB EER S ESIES 2165 — 42
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards —
continued
e states that the primary measure of financial performance o FEHBERIRTFEAEEEREZ AR
is profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances BHREL T AeEREfme2mkE ([H
other comprehensive income (“OCI") will be used and only ermkzsl) BERREEXRABRBR
for income or expenses that arise from a change in the BEEEFHHBASFSZ &
current value of an asset or liability; and
e discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the o M THEREZE KLILHER 258
reporting entity and combined financial statements. METB LA HMESRE-
Consequential amendments have been made so that HEEEIIE L BuF B TEBUBHE
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the ZERHIES| B B ERFEHIELR B ES
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the ISR R EZIE SRR AR AR - 525
previous versions of the framework. These amendments are (EETASEB B 202054 A1 Ak 2 B FIARF
effective for the Group'’s annual period beginning on or after SRR AR - BRI Z ZIE LR L BT AR A B E
1 April 2020. Other than specific standards which still refer RGN NEE AR A B BHEZRTE
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely SHEE  LTHESHEIRERENXZ S -
on the New Framework on its effective date in determining EHSIEEF-

the accounting policies especially for transactions, events
or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards.

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEEFEE
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in AR RIDIRBEEESTMASEMZ
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, BB EER MRS o I A BT &R
the consolidated financial statements include applicable RINBIRE R FraE4s FmRAI ([ Em#RAl])
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of REBANTEE (TABUEE ) PR E 2 A
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Wik o

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on SAMBERRTVIRES AR ERE IR
the historical cost basis except for investment properties, debt BYENNFEREMEERSTEAAEE
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income ([FEREMEIEWRSTEAARBE]) ZER
(“FVTOCI") and derivative financial instruments that are TERTESRTIANSERBRIEALE
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, E:tE (R T T Y 2 @B FRfEE) -
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the FEERA—BARBEREREZREZRD
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. K EBEAEE-
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e |level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

TESHHRE—~&
FEIREEE
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B (MEMERR]) 2 M H5 ik - BUSIE 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Basis of consolidation — continued
Changes in the Group’s interest in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group's relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in OCI in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values. The remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on pro-rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or groups of cash-generating units).
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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3.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Investments in an associate and a joint
venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate and a
joint venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of the associate
or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/joint
venture other than profit or loss and OCI are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Investments in an associate and a joint
venture — continued

The Group assess whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the an associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution
of assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the
transaction with the other parties to the joint operation,
and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint
operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets),
the Group does not recognise its share of the gains and
losses until it resells those assets to a third party.
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3.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is
highly probable. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9, investment properties
which continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’'s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers —
continued

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including bundle sales for hotel accommodation
and food and beverage, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group's performance in
transferring control of services.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers —
continued
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. For contracts
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised property or service exceeds
one year, the transaction price is adjusted for the effects
of a financing component, if significant, and is included in
contract liabilities before the transfer of the promised property
or services. A significant financing component may exist
regardless of whether the promise of financing is explicitly
stated in the contract or implied by the payment terms agreed
to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.
The asset is subject to impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers —
continued
Revenue recognition

Sale of properties is recognised at a point in time when
control of the completed properties is delivered to buyers.
The Group receives deposit from buyers when they sign the
sale and purchase agreement. The deposits received from
the contracts prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are recognised as contract liabilities.

The Group provides services to a gaming concessionaire in
Macau under service arrangements for gaming operations
in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall. The
performance obligation represents provision of gaming-
related marketing and public relation services to the
gaming concessionaire. Revenue from such services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group is entitled to receive its service income
according to the relevant operating performance from the
gaming concessionaire and the gaming concessionaire
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.

The Group provides hotel room to customers. The performance
obligation represents provision of hotel accommodation
services for customers. Revenue from hotel room is
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time
as the Group is entitled to receive its income according to the
relevant operating performance from the customers and the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.

The transaction price of food and beverage is the net amount
collected from the customer for such goods and services. The
transaction price for such transactions is recorded as revenue
when the good is transferred to the customer. There is no
other separate performance obligation identified except for
delivery of goods. The revenue on food and beverage sales
is recognised as revenue when the food and beverage are
delivered and titles have been passed.

The Group has other contracts that include multiple goods
and services, such as packages that bundle food and
beverage and other services with hotel stays. For such
arrangements, the Group allocates revenue to each good or
service based on its relative stand-alone selling price. The
Group primarily determines the stand-alone selling price of
hotel rooms and food and beverage based on the amount that
the Group charges when each is sold separately in similar
circumstances to similar customers.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation including investment properties
under development for such purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accounted operating
lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under development.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Property, plant and equipment — continued
Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as ‘“right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
“‘prepaid lease payments” (before application of HKFRS 16)
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost, deemed
cost or revalued amount of items of property, plant and
equipment less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item (including the relevant leasehold land under HKFRS
16 or prepaid lease payments under HKAS 17) at the date of
transfer is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the assets
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the property, the relevant assets revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Transfer of assets revaluation reserve to retained profits is
made in relation to: (i) the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued item; and (i) the excess of the depreciation based
on the revalued amount of the item over depreciation based
on the item’s original cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. For investment properties
under development and properties under development for
sale, the Group ceases to capitalise borrowing costs as soon
as the properties are ready for the Group’s intended use or
sale.

Effective 1 April 2019, any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating units
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) — continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of leasehold land and buildings and motor vehicles
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leases — continued

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) — continued

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leases — continued

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) — continued

Lease liabilities — continued

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leases — continued

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) — continued

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leases — continued
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Inventories

Catering goods

Catering goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance
with the accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon the
application of HKFRS 16, properties held for sale and are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred
and where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
the properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale in the ordinary course
of business are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost model
in accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-use
assets upon the application of HKFRS 16, properties under
development for sale are carried at the lower of cost (or
deemed cost for those transferred from investment properties)
and net realisable value. Costs relating to the development of
the properties include land cost, construction cost and other
direct development expenditure. Cost is determined on a
specific identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties held for sale upon completion.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FESTHE -~

Financial instruments — continued SRMIAE-—~&

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured CREERERABBVSEAANBENE
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from EEREEFEHNZE SRR TIIZREE
contracts with customers which are initially measured in WSS R E15TR W) 5T 2 FRIN o Y =K 3
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are TeREERERABBEREEENRIAA
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial RIS HEREMAEREENEREEY
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from AREBEEIECREESIEHABBECZARE
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as BNk (RERBRAME) ©

appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating ERNEER—RBEEERRARRGES
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability BEENSRA RS HEM AL LD BEF]
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over BUWARNEFZ 2% BREMEZR K&
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate mEENER A ARG FRz (WER) B8E
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and HIR 2 et AR RBR SRR R AR (BEERE
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that BHNXBBIHINMEENIERER 5
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction BN R B s B s i 8 ) FE AL IR 2 H R HER
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected BAREFEZ = -

life of the financial asset or financial liability or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEEMSEREEE

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are e ToRMG 2 2 /& EH R IRE A ARG
subsequently measured at amortised cost: =

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose HERMEECE¥BKEXBHREEIE
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and HBEERE: R

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash BHMERNETAEAEARASNAR
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on EREREERENMNEZREME -
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are FaTogtnem TAREEEBERHME

subsequently measured at FVTOCI: RS E AR EE:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose e SHMEENHERKMEHNUEREERE
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting ERAENEBREREE &
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash e SAMKERNIETANMELEEAXMNAR

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on EREREERENMNEZRERE -
the principal amount outstanding.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes
in the carrying amount of these debt instruments
are recognised in OCIl and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the
carrying amounts of these debt instruments. When these
debt instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including
receivables related to a development project, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, deposit in designated
bank account for development properties, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank balances),
and other items (lease receivables and financial guarantee
contracts) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group'’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables under simplified approach. The ECL on these
receivables are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default; ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term; and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

3. TEEHHE &

EWMIB—~&

SREE2

IRIE B 5B T IR A 22 B 0% B 1T (B 57
T EBEERAMBEZ AE—E

() REERBEZREIN—F

ARTE - S RERRTEEE I
EELTAR

o ERTAZING (IB)XAFEE
FHRER t AR emERL

. BT BEBRETESAREES
fb- mEE B EEEEM EHAZ
EER R R NS

o AX TRSEEERENER I
SHIMAMESC - HIRHAREHUER
ANEEEER 2 AR T

o EBAKLEEER LRTEHSHE
ER(b:

o EBAFEZBE EHRRITE
SEE PR BNE LIRS AT
fb - AT AR B 4

HRbE TP o
Ao L G 2 SR B A KR

HitBB30 R - ARER BT EERAR B
IRIERAREREBE N FRIFAREE S
BAEBEZENEHEEL I -

BE _ECpri - (wER T AR ER B B
EAERKEERR  ANEEBBRRES
TAZEERK B VAR AR E 78
EHMe MR TER BT AR
ETAEAREEERE: )\ AERELR
S INERABEHEE - TR EHR
BITEAYREREEM: Ki)EEKRE
EAR 2 RETF|E )] gt (BER M E)
HISSERABITEANREREET

ok,
Be /J °

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 — continued

(i)

(i)

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default
on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 — continued

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets — continued

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 — continued

(v)

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Measurement and recognition of ECL — continued

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1
April 2019) or HKAS 17 (prior to 1 April 2019).

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses is
the present value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the
extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls
being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 — continued

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL — continued

Except for debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial
guarantee contracts, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve without reducing the carrying amount of these
debt instruments. Such amount represents the changes
in the investments revaluation reserve in relation to
accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FESTHE -~

Financial instruments — continued SRIA—4&Z

Financial liabilities and equity — continued THEBREZ &

Financial liabilities at amortised cost EEEA A B 2FE R

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, TR E (BEBS NEMENFIE BN —
amounts due to an associate/related companies/non- M E N FBEAR B AR 2 IEER
controlling interests of subsidiaries, unsecured notes and EEmHIE BERERRIBTEE) HEHE
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised RERAMN R IRE ST 2

cost, using the effective interest method.

For the amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries BLIET I A B 2 FE4E AR 25 50 18 % FE 1T R
and amounts due to related companies, if the Group revises ERRFIEMS  MAKEETAEEREZ
its estimates of the timing of repayments, the carrying amounts st - BIBREERE L AR A RMIEETTERT
are adjusted to reflect the revised estimated cash flows. The RenE - ANEBEBREBEHRNRERN
Group recalculates the carrying amounts by computing the EHEMRFARKREREZRESNTER
present value of estimated future cash flows at the balance’s H{E - B lAEENERNIERIEERER KA
original effective interest rate. The difference is adjusted as NRAEEAZRIEHEEITHE-

deemed capital contribution by the non-controlling interests
and the owners of the Company in equity.

Financial guarantee contracts HBERS A
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the MBRERENIBEITAENEB AREEES
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder A RBERIRE S T B AR B BA s IE M
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make SRIBXRE MFBAENEBEERENEL -
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially REEMAENMBEREOVFIRALE
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at fair BFt 2 M RIETE ABEABERIRA R EET)
value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at the IR AIBERE TR ERTE
higher of:
e the amount of the loss allowance determined in o REFBYVBHMELENEIRET 2EE
accordance with HKFRS 9; and BEesE &k
e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, o UIHXEHMRTER (WEE)EREARNE
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee WRRTEE-
period.
Derecognition of financial liabilities ZH B EER
The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only REERREREBAREERE TR - BUS
when, the Group'’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or FEHF R B EER FTERSRAER
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of HERENRENREZ ZENBRER

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities and equity — continued
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of
the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedging relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments for cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management
objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and
on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk.

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers
whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging
relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness
requirements:

e there is an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument;

e the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value
changes that result from that economic relationship; and

e the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same
as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the entity actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge
effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but
the risk management objective for that designated hedging
relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge
ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so
that it meets the qualifying criteria again.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FESTHE -~

Financial instruments — continued eRIA—4Z

Hedge accounting — continued HrEs—2

Cash flow hedges B & E

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives EERNREHRENREHHNTEER BN
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are oo n e BEZ SN ERN A M2 E RS
recognised in OCI and accumulated under the heading of WA RETRED i » BB FrE 4+ 2 i
hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective i BT 1B 7 BN 1B 2 A B ELAth W 2R s B 1R T
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss and is Bk

included in the other gains or losses line item.

Amounts previously recognised in OCI and accumulated EWEIHIE B BB REN SRR I
in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods B R e BamkaViE R R BERRR
when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same Hith 2 E G R AR 2 AR ER
line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss as the HREF DB EEZ - AR - W HTEAIR 5
recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast BHHRAFEREESIFERAE  RILAE
transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset R HAM 2 E W= R R G2 W=
or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously NEES B R RER L YR 8RS
recognised in OCI and accumulated in the hedging reserve AEERBEEIFEMBBEIKNARA - EEE
are transferred from the hedging reserve and included in Bregf MmN WAKETE
the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset HE @ RMETREET RANH DR EE
or non-financial liability. This transfer does not affect OCI. B rglE - AZeEglRNEN EER
Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss e

accumulated in the hedging reserve will not be recovered in
the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to profit or

loss.

Discontinuation of hedge accounting AR A%

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively only AEBETHAHER (KE &) TBHE
when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to BHEEBEARTELK ISR ER (K&
meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). BHAE (WER)E) - BEBEABESEHT
This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires BRI E R IEKBITE - R B 5T
or is sold, terminated or exercised. Discontinuing hedge ER A RN 2SR ER —5 (R
accounting can either affect a hedging relationship in its AIER TER SRR EEE AN R ER
entirety or only a part of it (in which case hedge accounting B HEH I D)

continues for the remainder of the hedging relationship).

For cash flow hedge, any gain or loss recognised in OCI RIS MEBE PM S AAEFEREMEE
and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and WA Rt S e v B /AR TR &
is recognised when the forecast transactions is ultimately EHEHAR S HEN B RN BEER o WE
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is TEEIR ZIEE %A - A| 25 Emm s
no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in BB RN B 2R TR o

equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation Bi1E
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently FRS BT e AN E RN A 18 SRIEER 18 2
payable and deferred tax. BN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Taxation — continued

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
interest in an associate and interest in a joint venture,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Taxation — continued

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 Investment Property, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. Such a presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax liabilities and assets for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 Income Taxes (i.e. based on the expected
manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Taxation — continued

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
OCI or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in OCI or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be used by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in the
income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of
each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in OCI, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly
in OCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

3.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Foreign currencies — continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchanges prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. For share options
that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
other than the costs directly attributable to the development
of the properties, which are capitalised as part of the cost
of qualified assets, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty —
continued

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies — continued

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties located in the People’s
Republic of China (“The PRC”) and Macau in the aggregate
carrying amounts of HK$12,067,700,000 as at 31 March
2020 (2019: HK$13,117,000,000) are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
such investment properties located in The PRC and Macau
are recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
has recognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$1,869,258,000
(2019: HK$2,066,582,000) on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is subject to income tax
in the respective jurisdictions, on the assumption that these
investment properties will be recovered through use.

In respect of investment properties that are located in Hong
Kong and the United Kingdom (“UK”) with aggregate carrying
amounts of HK$32,623,169,000 (2019: HK$35,984,784,000),
the Directors concluded that these investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in these investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
in investment properties, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of the investment
properties located in Hong Kong and UK measuring using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the investment
properties situated in Hong Kong, as it is expected that the
Group will not subject to any income taxes on disposal of its
investment properties situated in Hong Kong. From April 2019,
the Group’s investment properties in UK will be subject to UK
tax on gains arising from disposals because of the changes
in UK tax rule. As a result, the Group has considered the
impact of deferred tax on changes in fair value of investment
properties as the Group is subject to income tax in UK. As
fair value losses have been recognised on the investment
properties in UK during the year ended 31 March 2020, no
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to unpredictability
of future profit streams.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty —
continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The investment properties of HK$44,690,869,000 at 31 March
2020 (2019: HK$49,101,784,000) are measured at fair value.
The amount is based on a valuation on these properties
conducted by the independent firms of qualified professional
property valuers (the “Valuers”) using property valuation
techniques which are dependent on key inputs and significant
assumptions that involve judgements. The relevant inputs and
condition include:

e capitalisation rates and comparable market transactions
with adjustments to reflect different locations or
conditions for completed investment properties with the
consideration of changes in market conditions following
the outbreak of coronavirus disease (“COVID-19"); and

e comparable market rents and transactions, occupancy
rate, discount rate, developer's profit and cost to be
incurred to complete the development for investment
properties under development.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 14. Changes
to these assumptions and inputs would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the profit or loss.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages the Valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, a designated team works closely with the Valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.
The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will
adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

4. EREFTHE R AT ABEMAREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key 4. BERE ‘I'%JI%ETE:.‘IJF BREAAE =
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty — ZEERERE—Z
continued
Key sources of estimation uncertainty — A THBAEEZTERIFE =2
continued
Estimated net realisable value on properties under FEHEZREPYEZ (F7 /&858 FE
development for sale
The Group's properties under development for sale are stated KREB ZHERE 2B RE P Y EIRK AL D]
at lower of cost and net realisable value. The determination of IR EMER 7 BEEY R - B E ] #IR)F
the net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices BNERZEMHE 2 HTEERMFITT I
less estimated costs to completion and selling expenses RNZIEEER - EEBAERTMISRE N EL
of these properties. The selling prices are estimated by M 2 TS BRI WERD2019E MBS
reference to the market prices of similar properties in RER BTN EE I EHEZBRERYE
prevailing market environment with the consideration of ZRIKAKZEBLUB T I WEZRETE
changes in market conditions following the outbreak of g BREENAG WREIRITH S8R
COVID-19. The costs to completion of the properties under 1’5&&% HWEEHE 2 BRPYE B A]
development for sale are estimated by reference to the SIFEEMSRR 2B R RTEEERE
development budget, actual development cost of similar KANEE RS ORTER  BIRJE/EHE X
completed properties with adjustments based on current HURL o

market data. If the actual net realisable value on properties
under development for sale is less than expected as a result
of change in market condition and/or significant variation in
the budgeted development cost, material write-downs may

result.

The carrying amount of properties under development HIEHE 2B R DY ENR2020F3A31H
for sale as at 31 March 2020 is HK$4,858,713,000 (2019: Z AR E{E £A4,858,713,000/% 7T (20194 :
HK$3,257,951,000). During the year, write-downs of 3,257,951,000/& 7C) e R ANFE - B HERFFE
properties under development for sale amounting to 2 B R AR W) 2 2 OB 5446,850,0008 7T
HK$446,850,000 (2019: nil) is recognised. (2019%F - )

Impairment assessment of trade receivables B 5B 8 2 6 B

The management of the Group estimates the amount of TEEEREL2ESRKS IEZ}E,*KE B%
lifetime ECL of trade receivables individually, after considering R SEm iR EEEE S  E8 R
the financial background, creditability, ageing, and likelihood sk z ATRE 1% - ERIEETE %FELBZ KIEZ 2
of collection with reference to repayment history and/or past HATEHRZ BB S %E o (hEHE R REAEU R
due status of respective receivables. Estimated loss rates are BB F RN 2 E L EEEAR  WIRERIIE
based on historical observed default rates over the expected MEREITHE

life of the receivables and are adjusted for forward-looking

information.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The TEEMEEEER AL AT 2 FEEUX - BRETE
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables HZEEELEANERE FERFIE 2 B
are disclosed in note 45. B MIEE45

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of trade R2020F3A31H B Z NGB 2 BREEA
receivables is HK$43,101,000 (2019: HK$107,645,000) 43,101,0007% T (20194 : 107,645,000/ 7T )
(see note 26 for details), net of impairment allowance of (FE15 B MI5E26) - FOBR JRLE 1 #46,202,00058
HK$46,202,000 (2019: HK$46,587,000). 7T (20194 : 46,587,000/ 7T ) °

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

4. EREFTHE R AT ABEMAREE

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty —
continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty —
continued
Deferred tax assets

At 31 March 2020, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$126,233,000 (2019: HK$97,845,000) (see note 38
for details) in relation to unused tax losses have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$1,413,763,000
(2019: HK$1,246,388,000) due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax assets
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In
case where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal takes place.

ZEERR—E
HE RABERZETERRE—#&

BEHBEE

20203 A318 - BB A A IERIE 2
i FE 7 18 & FE #9126,233,0007 7T (20194F
97,845,000/ 70) (FF18 R M #H38) ERERE
BARSAR S 3R PO RE AR o B A oK A3 A 38 2 R
AJFERIE - 82T 2 B IEES181,413,763,000/8 7T
(20194F : 1,246,388,0007% 7T ) I EFERR IR
RBEE - BEEHRBEEZAEREEETER
TRKRBER TH A HENA 2 KA F ek ER
REREER - WATEEZ BB RGN DR
TEHY - BIRJREEEIRETBE E 2 EARE
WS AL B 138 4~ BAR AR B RS N FERR ©

Revenue A
An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows: REBZWADHTAT :
(a) Contracts with customers (@) EF &K
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hotel and hotel related operations: & JE & B /5B £ :
Recognised over time: R— B RERER
Service income from gaming TR 2 RIS
operations 926,845 1,136,856
Hotel room income BIERERA 151,497 250,316
Others HAith 1,444 4,283
1,079,786 1,391,455
Recognised at a point in time: P IE R RE AR -
Food and beverage sales BRHE 129,747 154,196
Others HAith 2,880 3,143
132,627 157,339
1,212,413 1,548,794
Sales of properties recognised REERERIAZ
at a point in time MEHE 145,250 1,695,772
Revenue from contracts REEFEHNZBA
with customers 1,357,663 3,244,566
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

5. Revenue — continued 5 WA—#&
(a) Contracts with customers — continued () EF &4
Transaction price allocated to the remaining PBRE @FQ%EIJZ?HE%E%‘JE{IE@?C
performance obligations for contracts with customers ZE

The transaction price allocated to the remaining PEREFBKBHNEENXZE (KET
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially HEBDARETT) AR TEFHHER YA B E 20
unsatisfied) and the expected timing of recognising Nk

revenue are as follows:

Sales of properties

MEHE
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Within one year —FN 82,100 75,000
In the second year F_F 139,840 -
Over two years A LA E 65,237 -
287,177 75,000
All sales or services rendered from hotel and hotel FTE B S &OBTE MR SR 2 SHE B
related operations are for contracts with an original AR R IREABR A — S ARII G K o 1
period of one year or less. As a practical expedient REBVBHRELEAE1R 2 AITEE
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these 5 DEEZER TRARE LR 5E
remaining performance obligations is not disclosed. BARTHE -
(b) Leases (b) HE
2020
HK$’000
FExT
Total revenue arising from leases: HEELEZHRA:
For operating leases: RECEHEMS:
Lease payments that are fixed or depend on & KRB I Bk MR 2
an index or a rate HEHIE 993,822
Variable lease payments that do not depend on TTZWE RIEE A E 2
an index or a rate A EFIE 13,897
1,007,719
2019
HK$'000
FAT
Total revenue arising from leases: BHEEEZBBA:
Operating lease income — property KEHEWA—E 1,107,820
Included in the operating lease income is contingent KRB WA BIE AT £13,082,000%8
rental of HK$13,082,000. JCe°

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

6.

Segment Information

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are lease
of properties, properties development and hotel and hotel
related operations for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance.

The segment information reported externally was analysed
on the basis of their products and services supplied by the
Group’s operating divisions which is consistent with the
internal information that is regularly reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company, the chief operating decision
makers (the “CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of performance. This is also the basis of
organisation in the Group, whereby the management has
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products
and services.

Principal activities of the operating and reportable segments
are as follows:

Lease of properties — Completed investment properties
held for rental purpose

Properties development — Properties development and
redevelopment for sale purpose

Hotel and hotel — Hotel and hotel related operations
related operations in Hong Kong and Macau

including mass market hall,
VIP room and slot machine
hall operations and provision
of gaming-related marketing
and public relation services for
Grand Emperor Hotel in Macau

The CODM review the hotel and hotel related operations in
Macau along with that in Hong Kong and hence they are
grouped and identified as a single operating segment — hotel
and hotel related operations.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the profit
earned by or loss suffered from each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, interest income,
finance costs, loss on disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI,
share of result of an associate, share of result of a joint
venture and unallocated other gains and losses including gain
on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on disposal of derivative
financial instruments and write-off of an amount due from an
associate. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020%3A31H I F[Z

6. Segment Information — continued DEER -
Information regarding the above segments is reported below: A EﬁJ:L""‘EZQMEﬁZIDT :
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B E2020F3H31H IF FIZ
Segment revenue and results PEWBAREE
Hotel and
hotel related
Lease of  Properties operations
properties development EJE &EJE Total
MERE  YERRE  HBEHR ok

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TER

Segment revenue kL ON
— from external customers —REBINBEP
Segment results DREE
Interest income FEWA
Loss on disposal of debt HEBBEMEEKE
instruments at FVTOCI AEARBEZES
IEZEE
Unallocated other gains and losses &% fig 2 Z A ez & B 18
Corporate expenses, net TEER-FH
Finance costs HBER
Share of result of an associate PME—FBEAT 2 EE
Share of result of a joint venture DM —EE & E 2 EE
Loss before taxation PR AT E 18
Taxation credit WMIER R
Loss for the year FEBE
Other information Hih &R

Amounts included in the measure st & D iBEER A
of segment resullts: ZFIA

Depreciation of property, plant ME MERZEIINE
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# FEEE 2T E

Fair value decrement in REMERABERE
investment properties

Impairment allowance (HER) BB & 5 e k18
(recognised) reversed for Z/}‘WET&%

trade receivables
Loss on disposal of property, plant & %% « #28 & &

and equipment ZEE
Write-downs of properties under  #F{EHEZHEHRMEZ
development for sale WAL
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included EHRHETEELERKEEBFEDRER
in the measure of segment results (included in corporate Rl ARETAZFIB (FTAREEBR—F58) -
expenses, net):
HK$°000
TR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, TREEFA IR HER
at corporate level BE IS

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z2%£E (EIFR) GRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

6. Segment Information — continued DEER &
For the year ended 31 March 2019 %652079¢3ﬁ37 Eut FEF
Segment revenue and results HUWAKRES
Hotel and
hotel related
Lease of Properties  operations
properties development B JE KB E Total
MEME MEER el e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHAT FET
Segment revenue DEBA
~ from external customers —KBINFEP 1,107,820 1,695,772 1548794 4,352,386
Segment results DEEE 2,655,977 576,422 310,962 3,543,361
Interest income FEHA 102,830
Loss on disposal of debt HEBBEMEEKE
instruments at FVTOCI FEAABEZES
TAZER (854)
Unallocated other gains and losses &7 fic 2 E bl zs & g5 18 785,305
Corporate expenses, net TEBR-FHE (260,545)
Finance costs BBER (715,627)
Share of result of an associate DME—FEBERT 2 EE 38,836
Share of result of a joint venture D — AL ¥ ¥E (72)
Profit before taxation B 250 Al A 3,493,234
Taxation charge I H (165,472)
Profit for the year FEHF 3,327,762
Other information Hfth & x
Amounts included in the measure T EDEEERTA
of segment results: 2R
Depreciation of property, plant M HERZEINE
and equipment - - 133,498 133,498
Fair value increment in REMELABELE
investment properties 1,749,284 - - 1,749,284
Impairment allowance recognised T2 E 5 & U
for trade receivables 2R ERE 703 - 35,123 35,826
Loss on disposal of property, plant H &3 - #2525
and equipment ol = - - 184 184
Release of prepaid lease payments & 78 {1 & 3B - - 18,104 18,104

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included

EHRETEIRLLRREEAELBRE

in the measure of segment results (included in corporate Bl RFTAZKRIE (BTAREER—F8) -
expenses, net):
HK$'000
FHET
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, TEEERBEIME HER
at corporate level BT E 42,134
No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating AR ASBEZREEDBED 2 EERAED
segment is disclosed as they are not regularly provided to the M 4 B T B R VR i
CODM for review. S IR TR R S T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

6. Segment Information — continued

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, The PRC,
Macau and UK.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets, other than receivables related to
a development project, debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest
in an associate, interest in a joint venture and derivative
financial instruments, by geographical location of the assets
are detailed below:

Revenue from customers

DEER &
b i3 & #
AEBMAES PEH CRPIREEGLER-

AEBERBINDEF ZWARBREIFRS
BE (TBREAM—BEREAR 2 RUGIR
FREMEmREEARBEZEBIR
R—RBE QRS RN EhE 2 HE
DRTESRTRE) 2ER (REE2HIEN
EE7) R

Non-current assets

REEFZWA FRBEE
For the year ended 31 March As at 31 March
BZ3A31BLLEE M3A31H
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Hong Kong & 958,292 2,671,096 = 80,907,870 34,017,454
The PRC & 125,957 166,322 9,753,432 10,726,563
Macau i ds 1,184,896 1,416,903 4,489,743 4,626,169
UK % 96,237 98,065 3,357,994 3,635,489
2,365,382 4352386 48,509,039 53005675
Information about major customers FEEFZER

During the year, revenue derived from one (2019: one)
customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group’s revenue amounted to HK$928,218,000 (2019:
HK$1,139,510,000). The revenue is related to the hotel and
hotel related operations.

RAFE  REEAREBRIWAI0%A EZ2—
% (2019 : — &) B P 2 W A ##928,218,000
BT (20194F : 1,139,510,000/8 7T ) © s% YR A B2
G OB EA RSB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

7. Other Gains and Losses 7. Hhlkm R EE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B ARz
(note 41) (K1iE41) 639,789 785,305
Gain on disposal of derivative HETESRMT A W
financial instruments 19,977 -
Write-off of an amount due from 88 FE I — R B A B 2 BB
an associate (12,979) -
Net exchange loss b H B HEFE (29,233) (64,735)
Write-downs of properties under FIEREZB#RFPWEL
development for sale (Note) WOk (H7aE) (446,850) -
170,704 720,570
Note: During the year, the Directors reviewed the recoverability of Msr: RAEE BEELXRERTWSEIBIERYEER
the properties under development for sale with reference to EZERPMENRDO ATITHE TR I
the current market environment and recognised write-downs of SRR 446,850,000/ 7T (20194F « #&) ©

HK$446,850,000 (2019: nil).

8. Finance Costs 8. MIBEH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Interests on: A :
— bank borrowings —RITEE 647,296 511,191
— lease liabilities —HEAE 1,031 -
— unsecured notes —EIRREE 288,691 304,464
— amounts due to — B AR
related companies 35,385 45,583
— amount due to a shareholder —EN—E#BE QT
of an associate A& R FKI8 - 721
972,403 861,959
Imputed interest expense on amounts S BAE R G A Z
due to related companies FERTA BRI - 17,314
972,403 879,273
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost & : INE B REEKAF
of qualifying assets Z B ERFIA (318,808) (181,470)
653,595 697,803
Bank charges R1TEH 21,291 17,824
674,886 715,627
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the RNAREEZENMUEBERATIR—REER
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying SR EL  WEFIRE RN E376%24.08%
capitalisation rates ranging from 3.76% to 4.08% (2019: from (20194 : 3.30%E4.14% ) EH& o

3.30% to 4.14%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

9. (Loss) Profit Before Taxation 9. Br¥iAl (B1E) aA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

(Loss) profit before taxation has been FRFiAT (&8 i@ FIE kK -
arrived at after charging:

Staff cost, including directors’ BEIXAK (BEESHE)

remuneration 704,402
Retirement benefit scheme RIREHMET B

contributions 21,201

725,603

Auditor’s remuneration % EREN BN & 8,321
Commission expenses in gaming BREB2AERA (BE5TA

operations (included in sellingand  $4&EMTHERER)

marketing expenses) 227,748
Cost of properties held for sale EHERAAX ZIHIELE

recognised as an expense S/ EJDFN 1,031,389
Cost of inventories in respect of ERERBAS ZBIEREE

hotel and hotel related operations HEAZBEFEEKAR

recognised as an expense 51,956
Depreciation of property, plant VI B REBEITE

and equipment 175,632
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE -
Loss on disposal of debt instruments  H&FBEMEE K ETE

at FVTOCI ARBEZEETAZEE 854
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME WS NREH BB

and equipment 184
Operating lease rentals in respect of FEWMEZKEHEHRS

rented premises 2,863
Release of prepaid lease payments &R 8 (& 8 18,104
and after crediting: REstA:
Interest income from a joint venture  [A]— A& & 1 ¥ WELZ F S U A 14,125
Interest income from debt instruments & BE M 2 ERFTE A

at FVTOCI BEZEBIAEZFMIKA 30,282
Other interest income HAth F) B A 58,423

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z2%£E (EIFR) GRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

10. Directors, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ 10.EF - FETHAEZHERE

Emoluments I=Ed0)
(i) Directors’ and chief executives’ () EBERFETHAEME
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the year, AAREE  EEZNTETHRASMESIEE
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and EALEMRARATHERHEEDT
COQ, are as follows:
Non-
executive
director
¥ Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
iz 7€z BUEHTES
Yeung
Luk FanMan  Cheung Ching Wong

Siu Man, Wong  Seung, Ping  Loong, Tak Ming, Cheng Chan
Semon  ChiFai  Vanessa Keung  Alexander Gary KaYu  Hon Piu Total
B)g  ESE  EE 0 RPE 0 BuE  EE®  BEH  RER 8E
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Téxn fEn TEr Tz fEx TEr  TEx  TEx  TER

(Note a)
(Hiita)
2020 2020F
Fees i - 500 500 250 250 280 280 280 2,340
Other emoluments: Afpis:
Salaries and other benefts & R EMEF
(Note b) (Hiin) - 4731 2,631 5,663 2,421 - - - 15,446
Performance related incentive ~ ERBAMH 8
payment (\ote ¢/ B (i) - - - 45500 - - - - 4500
Refiement beneft schemes  ERBRIz2IEE 5
contributions - 332 184 60 60 - - - 636
Total emoluments BHe - 5,563 3315 10473 2731 280 280 20 292
2019 019%
Fees we - 500 500 250 229 280 280 280 2319
Other emoluments: e
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER
(Note b) (Fiin) - 4890 2790 5412 2460 - - - 1552
Performance related incentive ~ ERIEHE 2128
payment (\bte ¢/ FB(Wite) - 3000 3000 9,000 800 - - - 15800
Retiement benefit schemes KGRI EIE S
contributions - 342 195 57 57 - - - 651
Total emoluments ams - 8,732 6,485 14,719 3546 280 280 280 34322
Notes: B 5
(a) Appointed as an executive director with effect from 2 May (a) BZEERINITES H2018F5H2H8
2018. g e
(b) Other benefits include non-exclusive use of motor vehicles, (b) HEFBEFEAIEERAE HE &
yacht, club debentures and membership. FiiEs Refs-
(c) The performance related incentive payment is determined (c) BERBEBMZEBBAENZRBREEAZ
with reference to the operating results taking into REEEWEEFERNETHE BAR
account certain adjustments, individual performance and BRAILEMSEIEET -

comparable market statistics for the year.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

10. Directors, Chief Executives and Employees’
Emoluments — continued

(i)

(ii)

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments - continued

Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
are also chief executives of the Company and their
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by them as chief executives.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as Directors.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2019: three) were Directors whose
emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments
of the remaining three (2019: two) individuals were as
follows:

EE FETHAEZHMEKE

EFHM—42Z
() ESRTETHAEME Z

BSEEENEBELLEMARRRZ
ETETHRAR  BEREXHBEZMEE
ERFIER/REEITHABREREE
BHBME -

AEFTRATEEMERRERE R
AR A RN B A PR G ARTS 2 B -
AEFRIFMITES B IFRITES
M ERERREFEEESRHZR
TEEERE o

(i) IEEFH
EAREESEZSFHIMALTF 24 (2019
F:3R)AES BEZMEERN X
BTR3E (2019F 28 ) mEHFMA T2
IR T

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Salaries and other benefits e kEMmER 11,938 9,311
Retirement benefit schemes RRREFIFT &R

contributions 314 57

12,252 9,368

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEHMNFATEE:
Number of individuals
A8

2020 2019

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000  4,000,0017% 7T & 4,500,000/ 7T 3 1

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000  5,000,0017% 7T &5,500,000/% 7t - 1

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the five
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
for both years. None of the directors and the five highest
paid individuals has waived any emoluments during both
years.

REEE () BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

10. Directors, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ 10.EF - FETHAEZHERE
Emoluments — continued B —~Z
(iii) Retirement benefit schemes (iii) R R BRI

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme)
and the mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
independent trustees. Employees who were members
of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within
the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after
1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to profit or loss
represents contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme for all qualifying employees of a subsidiary of
the Group in Macau since 1 September 2014. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under control of independent trustees.
The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss
represents contributions payable to funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there are
employees of the Group who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau
and The PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the Macau and The PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of its payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is
to make the required contributions under the schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefit schemes contributions
were HK$14,771,000 (2019: HK$21,201,000).

AEBEZHEMERTEHRETE DRIAIR
BEBBERNKGTEEAIFM 2 BEER
KT8 (B ERIRETE]]) & H2000F 12
ARBEEBEH M ATES T BEHIRL
ZBH M RAESEE ([RESETE]) -
ZEBCEERARBECEENFE
B WAERSFEAFEEABIEEA
B LR BELFTEIRIAIBEER
KREtEIK B 2 BB RZREBERE
RIRFFEIRSE MR MaiES T8 R
2000F12 1B AE BT A B A S E
ZREHAESINBRESTE -

RIBIRAHBR 2R IRERER T RAE
BiZAR BIRAEE Z LR HREFE
IR 2 5K - fWE R BNER T 28U
AR BR8] AREASZ
R AT (A 8 102 Ui AH R B T 14 Hh 08T -

AEBEB2014F9A 1B IR AR EBE L
PRz —FEHEBARNMERERE
BT BHRINGT S - 2B B E
MBS AL 2 ESHE  WHEAE
B2 BENF - MBS NER ZERTE
AR A S BIRET B8R RIFTET L R B [A)
BESAT1E 2 B - WA BB B NERCE

SEAR N AEBEEMAHRAE
B2 U IR BB 1 B

AEEZRFNHENERRZEETS
7 B A BRI BURT M BRI B 3 2 B
RELRAEFNEZKE - AR EAR
BEHM 2 X E B D L RZFRKER
RIS URBEBREMEHRES A%
B ZERINENEIAAREZEEE
RAIZIRET 8 2 REETTHK

RAFE RREHAEEREER
14,771,000 7T (20194F : 21,201,000/
L) e

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

11. Taxation Credit (Charge)

M.BEER (ZH)

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
Taxation credit (charge) comprises: ~ FiIEE R (X H) BIE:
Current tax REAR IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH (43,701) (128,712)
Macau Complementary Tax BPIFT S (26,662) (40,545)
UK Income Tax EETSH (1,415) (1,332)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax R TS (1,071) (1,166)
(72,849) (171,755)
Reversal of Macau Complementary #6811+ R PIFr {5
Tax provision in respect of ARG
prior years 91,769 111,605
Over(under)provision in respect of TEREREZ (TE)
prior years
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBENEH 413 598
Macau Complementary Tax RIS R DA = 33
UK Income Tax REI RS (11) -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS (70) 4,650
332 5,281
Deferred taxation credit (charge) BEERER R (ZH)
(note 38) (#1:538) 107,869 (110,603)
127,121 (165,472)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

The Macau Complementary Tax (“CT”) is calculated at the
applicable rate of 12% of the estimated assessable profits
for both years. Pursuant to the CT Law, the statutory right to
issue CT assessment on the estimated assessable profits in a
year of assessment will expire in five consecutive years after
that year of assessment. At the end of the reporting period,
the Directors reassessed the adequacy of the CT provision
and determined to reverse part of the Group’s relevant CT
provision of HK$91,769,000 for the 2014 year of assessment
(2019: HK$111,605,000 for the 2013 year of assessment)
accordingly.

UK Income Tax is calculated at the applicable rate of 20% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of The PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of The PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

11. Taxation Credit (Charge) — continued M. BERR (ZH) &
The taxation credit (charge) for the year can be reconciled to FAMIBER () JEEGEERKRATE 2
the (loss) profit before taxation per consolidated statement of BrAEAT (E51E ) S AR T

profit or loss as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHT
(Loss) profit before taxation BrEiAT (B & A (3,670,483) 3,493,234
Taxation credit (charge) at Hong Kong & & B F158i16.5%:1 &
Profits Tax of 16.5% HIEE R () 605,630 (576,384)
Tax effect of share of result of DE—REEERARERL
an associate mBTE 10,781 6,408
Tax effect of share of result of DE—HEEEREXEL
a joint venture b2 (18) (12)
Tax effect of income not taxable HBBME BERBBMAZ
for tax purpose W E 184,981 521,183
Tax effect of expenses not deductible B E A Al IR H 2
for tax purpose W E (762,339) (172,653)
Utilisation of tax losses previously AL EER
not recognised MIBEE 21,828 6,536
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERREEBIBZ RIETE (52,610) (37,633)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  Fff B 22 RIF EAth B A KE 1@ 45 &
operating in other jurisdictions MEARTE 25,970 (26,909)
Reversal of CT provision in respect of BB F 475 5 B
prior years 91,769 111,605
Overprovision in respect of prior years ~ EF##i1B% 332 5,281
Others Hitb 797 (2,894)
Taxation credit (charge) for the year FRRIEE R (ZH) 127,121 (165,472)
12. Dividends 12. R 2
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividends recognised as distribution  F ATERIED K 2% 8
during the year:
Final dividend paid in respect of B R2019F R EARR B,
2019: HK$0.063 per share F/%0.0637% 7T (20194 :
(2019: HK$0.061 per share in B2018F 2 REARE &
respect of 2018) &/%0.061%E7T) 231,685 224,330
Interim dividend paid in respect of 2 k2020 # HARR B, -
2020: HK$0.035 per share F/%0.035% 7T (20194 :
(2019: HK$0.047 per share in B2019F 2 HHIRE &
respect of 2019) F/20.047%7T) 128,714 172,845
360,399 397,175
The final dividend of HK$0.035 per share in respect of the BERSESREHE020F3A3HILFES
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: final dividend of HK$0.063 1%0.0357% 7T (20195 : R HA % & 3 A%0.0637%
per share) amounting to approximately HK$128,714,000 has TT) 2 R HEARY B - H 49128,714,0007 7T 1A
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by EIEAEERRBEF RS b ERFAIE
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. Fo

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

13. (Loss) Earnings Per Share
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

13. 81 (BR)BA
AR A NE SRR (B1R) BRI
AT B -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Loss) earnings (]| &R
(Loss) earnings ((loss) profit for the  BistEEHREAR (FB) &BF 2
year attributable to owners of the (B8 B (KAREAA
Company) for the purpose of basic ~ FE(LFE (EE)EF])
(loss) earnings per share (3,644,359) 3,136,289
2020 2019
Number of shares K48 E
Weighted average number of ordinary statE &M ERK (E18) BT 6
shares in issue for the purpose of FRzZEBETERK
basic (loss) earnings per share i & 3,677,545,667 3,677,545,667

Diluted (loss) earnings per share is not presented as there
were no dilutive potential ordinary share for both years.

14. Investment Properties

The Group leases out various offices premises, industrial
premises and residential premises and retail shops/
complexes under operating leases with rentals receivable
monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 15
years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial
period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts
contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated
in the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

REEE () BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

14. Investment Properties — continued

14 RENE—E

2020 2019
Investment Investment
Completed properties Completed properties
investment under investment under
properties  development Total properties development Total
EEH BR% BN ET
RENE RENE &g Ranx RENE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TR THR TR Tén Thn TR
At fair value BONEE
At beginning of the year REA 44,332,384 4,769,400 49,101,784 44,348 173 4,806,590 49,154 763
Exchange realignment SNERE (717,028) (140,303) (857,331) (817829) (159,223) (977,052)
Additions E 1,422,338 233,600 1,655,938 1,285,592 164,788 1,450,380
Disposals e (21,000) - (21,000) (338,800) - (338,800)
Disposal of subsidiaries (noie 47) ~ HEWBRE (Hit41) - - - (1,800,000) - (1,800,000)
Transfer from completed BERRRENFER
investment properties to ZRELECER
properties under development 1% (fita)
for sale (Nofe g) (1,059,000) - (1,059,000) (110,000) - (110,000)
Transfer from property, plant aME BERZEE
and equipment to completed BECERRENE
invesiment properties Vote )~ (#ib) - - - 73209 - 73,209
Transfer to assets classified as ~ BEENEAR{ELE
held for sale (ot 29) LEE (W) - - - (100,000) - (100,000)
(Decrease) increase in NAEECHD) &
fair value, net B8 (3,636,123) (493,399) (4,129522) 1,792,039 (42,755) 1,749,284
Atend of the year RER 40321571 4360008 MG0BED 4303 476040 49101784
Notes: B 5T
(a) During the year, certain completed investment properties (a) RAFE BETVHEBEEHEREZEEK
originally held for rental purpose were classified to properties REMENRBZERBEREBEEHALLEBE
under development for sale upon commencement of construction 1,059,000,0007% 7t (20194 : 110,000,000/%
at fair value of HK$1,059,000,000 (2019: HK$110,000,000) at the TP BRRFIELECERFTME -
date of transfer.
(b) During the year ended 31 March 2019, certain property, (b) REZE2019F3A31HIEFE & TR E

plant and equipment originally held for owner-occupation
were classified to completed investment properties upon the
change of use to rental purpose as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation at fair value of HK$73,209,000 at the date of transfer.

The carrying amount of investment properties comprises

properties situated in:

BRAZYE BERZERNCETARERE
HEAREFEHERREREEASEAARE
673,209,000/ R A E EKRITEWE -

REYE 2 FRMEBRERLNA T IR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Hong Kong 5 29,265,175 32,349,295
The PRC s 9,431,700 10,342,800
Macau B P 2,636,000 2,774,200
UK e 3,357,994 3,635,489
44,690,869 49,101,784

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

14. Investment Properties — continued

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
the end of each reporting period and at dates of transfers
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on those dates by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited,
Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited and Cushman
& Wakefield Limited in accordance with the HKIS Valuation
Standards 2017 issued by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
or International Valuation Standards 2017 issued by the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The Valuers are not
connected with the Group.

For completed investment properties, the valuations have
been arrived at with reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties and rental income
using the applicable market yields for the respective locations
and types of properties.

For investment properties under development, the valuations
have been arrived at assuming that the investment properties
will be completed in accordance with the development
proposals and the relevant approvals for the proposals have
been obtained. The valuations include key factors such as
the market value of the completed investment properties,
which are estimated with reference to recent sales evidence
of similar properties in the nearest locality as available in
the relevant market with adjustments made by the Valuers
to account for differences in the locations and other factors
specifically to determine the potential sales proceeds,
and deducting the development costs and required profit
margin from the investment properties which are derived
from the interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations at the valuation dates.

During the year, the net interest capitalised in investment
properties under development amounted to HK$87,218,000
(2019: HK$71,819,000).

The unrealised loss (2019: unrealised gain) on property
revaluation included in profit or loss of the year is
HK$4,146,932,000 (2019: HK$914,242,000).

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use. The fair
values of certain investment properties have been adjusted to
exclude prepaid or accrued operating lease income to avoid
double counting.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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AEERIREMEM S MENREBEYE
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IERPEMEMS - (HEDBRSEDE
HaRBEERASERMEL  BRRFEC
EMRRRHLE - (ERREERREYME 2T E
FETEERZR W2RAHMBET S A
BB MR 2 FAEY R 2T HH S aiixiE
TTHOR MitEMeRELEZR K HM AR
R=EHFE  UEEEEHE ZMSRIE
BHBRE YR Z BRRAN K22
R (WFEHBFIRBEREREENHERYZ
ERFFAHMMAESL) -

RAFEE BRPREMROEDCHNEF
# /387,218,00078 7T (2019%F : 71,819,00078
TT)

HARFEBEZYESH 2 ARIBEER
(20194 : R & IR UL 25 ) 54,146,932,00078 JT
(20194F : 914,242,000/ 7T ) °

WIEFHIEZ AR EBER MR &S MRRE
Rz /RS BFRZ - A TREVERNAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

14. Investment Properties — continued 14 REVFE—~Z

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both
years.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

REFER - BHEE AR 3% -

FA - HERMLEZS - TREHRGALS
REMEZ 2R BENEEE2ERN (LR
ERAZGHERMEI2EARE) UK
REAARBEAECBABBZTERREE

RABEFEMBAZ

3%) °

DABESF (F12

consolidated statement of Fairvalue ~ Valuation techniques Sensitivity/relationship of
financial position Fair value hierarchy ~ and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RESHERRZAAR ‘ TIRERAHBHAARE
BffRzRENS MfEE MEBESR HEHARIEBARE EATTRRBANE Z8RE/BR
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TiEn T
Hong Kong
Bt
Retail shops/complexes 15,502,280 17,887,670 Level3 Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking info Asignificant increase in the market

with market unit rate as the

key input

TEEHR/ B R BELEE 5

DRF
T3t

account the time, location, frontage

and size, between the comparables,

which ranged from HK$4,100 to

HK$560,000 (2019: HK$4,300 o

HK$680,000) per square foot
sENEE T REHRALEN

unit rate used would resutt in
a significant increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FRAmAEM R AR

EfiERERT $H7BE B BEARA Bol R ENEL DA RE
EE N1 P ENTEEARL00ETE KM Rz ke

560000787 (2019 - 4 300E T E
6800007 7C)

Retail shops/complexes 906,000 1,155,000 Level3 Direct capitalisation method ~ Capitalisation rate, taking into account  The higher the capitalisation rate,
with capitalisation rate as~ the capitalisation of rental income the lower the fair value, and vice
the key input potential, nature of the properties, versa

prevailing market condition, which
ranged from 3.4% t0 3.9% (2019:
3.2% 10 3.7%) per annum

ZE@R/ 55 £330 BREMUE N AAE EAREERSUAZER  ERLEER ARAEBEY
A XERTR {t-0xzME RAMERR B Rz
BARE ENTEEI4NEI9% (20195

Emperor International Holdings Limited

32%Z37%)

REKE (B BRAF
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14. Investment Properties — continued 14 REYFE—~Z
Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Sensitivity/relationship of
financial position Fair value hierarchy ~ and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RESHERRZDAR TURERAHBHAAREE
BfEE RENR MfEE MEBESR HERARIEBARE EXATUERBANE ZHBE /B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK§ 000
TEn T
Retaillcommercial 2,360,000 2462000 Level3 Residual method
properties under The key inputs are:
development ‘
BRHTE/EEYE B8 BER
B3N IR
(1) Gross (Gross development value on completion  The higher the gross development
development basis, mainly taking info account e~ value, the higher the fair value,
value time, location, design, frontage, layout  and vice versa.

and size between the comparables
and the properties, which ranged
from HK$41,800 to HK$0,000 (2019:
HK$42,000 to HK$95,000) per square
foot
(1) REQEE REREENRRAEE TELHR RELEELER AR EEM
HENFRGENERE I ER B Rz
fr® it BEE HRERA
I ENTFET AR B0ETLE
90,0007 7C (20194 : 42,0008 L E
9,000 7T)

(2)  Developer's profit  Developer's profit at 10% (2019: 15%)  The higher the developer's proft,
faking into account the construction the lower the fair value, and vice

progress of the property versa,
(2 HREEER SRELENAI0% (0195 :16%)  EREENES ADAEEHM
Rz IRER B Rz
Offices premises 5,874,570 5860,930 Level3 Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into Asignificant increase in the market
with market unit rate as the  account the time, location, quality, unit rate used would result in
key input floor level and size, between the a significant increase in the
comparables, which ranged from fair value of the investment
HK$7,500 to HK$54,000 (2019: properties, and vice versa.
HK$8,700 to HK$48,100) per square
foot
BRENE 30 BRLRE D5 MEENER FREHARTLERN  HRETSELERABLN
BRI ERIER LFBR U E2 BER RalBREN% L AL ER
IZRARE NENFEEARTS0ETLE AR Rz
54,0007 (2019 : 8,700% 702
18,100 7C)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME
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14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
RERHBRRRAEE
BfEE RENR

Industrial premises

I%0%

Residential premises

FENF

The PRC
il

Retail shopsfcomplexes

TERS/B5

Fair value

MEE
2020 2019
HKS$'000 HK$’000
TR THL
2,973,835 2,555,545
1,648,490 2428150
112,800 104,900

Fair value
hierarchy

MEBESS

,

Level 3

R

Level 3

30

Level 3

30

:l:

14 REYZE—

/‘/ ~

Valuation techniques

and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs

HERGRIERARE EXATUERBANE

Direct comparison method  Market unit rate, mainly taking into
with market unit rate as the  account the time, location, quality,
key input floor level and size, between the

comparables, which ranged from
HK$3,800 to HK$9,300 (2019:

HK$2,700 to HKS$9,700) per square foot

BELEE U5 MRENER IE?&#&MW

BlERIEAT %12% g % BER
BN ¢ A ENFETHRIB0E T2
9,3005%73 (20194 : 27008 L2
9,700%7)
Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into
with market unit rate as the  account the time, location, quality,
key input view, floor level and size, between

the comparables, which ranged
from HK$5,700 to HK$39,600 (2019:
HK$5,800 to HK$41,900) per square

foot
ERUBE TR MRENER TELHRALENE
BN ERERT FERNE E5 582
LNt ERAN ENTFHEHRS 7008
TLE39,6007% 7T (20195 :5,8007%
T2 00T
Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking info
with market unit rate asthe  account the time, location, frontage and
key input size, between the comparables, which

ranged from HKS1,900 to HK$3,600
(2019: HK$1.900 to HK$3,700) per

square foot
ERNBE IR MHENER TELHRALBNE
B ER{ERT Epdd ‘ME Eunﬁmw
EE PN ( ENTETAR00ETES600

A7 (20195 190078 L 23,700
BT

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Sensitivity/relationship of
unobservable inputs to fair value
TUREBAHBHAAEE
ZHBE/BE

Asignificant increase in the market
unit rate used would result in
a significant increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

AT BLBRAELN
TR EEL DB
KEI &2 k-

Asignificant increase in the market
unit rate used would result in
a significant increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

ARRDAEMERAREN
RAARENZ L DA EE
RN RZfhe

A significant increase in the market
unit rate used would result in
a significant increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

AR R AREN
RATRENR DA EBE
RN 2

REKE (B BRAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

14. Investment Properties — continued 14. REYZE 4=
Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Sensitivity/relationship of
financial position Fair value hierarchy ~ and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RERHBRRRDESE TUREBAHBHAAEE
BfEE RENR MEE MBESR HERGRIZBARE EXTUERBANE ZHBE /B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TERL
Retaillcommercial 1,696,000 1,989,000 Level3 Residual method
properties under The key inputs are:
development
BROTE/BENE 23 BEL
B NI

(1) Gross development  Gross development value on completion  The higher the gross development
value hasis, mainly taking into account the value, the higher the fair value,
time, location, design, frontage, layout  and vice versa.
and size between the comparables
and the properties, which ranged
from HK$2,745 10 HK$9,761 (2019:
HKS3 314 to HK$11,408) per square
foot
() RE0EE REREEMRRAEE TELH  RELEEMER ARAEEM
RAtENZELENER K B R2H%
BfiE # BEE KRR
K ENFETAR2 7458 E
076187 (20195 :3314E L E
11.408% )

(2)  Leveladustments  Level adjustment on individual floor of the  The higher the upward level
properties ranged from about 50% o~ adjustment, the higher the fair
95% (2019: 50% 10 95%) on specific ~ value, and vice versa.
levels

O BEEE SESEMZENER,9BAT  LEENUR ALARELR
N FEraEIE0E B2

95% (2019% : 50%295%)

(3)  Developer'sproft  Developer's proft at 30% (2019: 30%),  The higher the developer's profit
taking into account the construction the lower the fair value, and vice

progress of the property Versa,
(8) EEEZEN YRMEFIR0% (019F:30%) - ERBENES LA BEML
T RINF TRER B RZMRe

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

14. Investment Properties — continued 14 REVFE—~Z

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Sensitivity/relationship of
financial position Fair value hierarchy ~ and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RERHBRRRAEE TUREBAHBHAAEE
BfEE RENR MEE MEBESR HERARIEBANE EXATUERBANE ZHBE/BE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$000
TEn T
Retail shops/complexes 1,296,000 1512000 Level3 Direct capitalisation method  Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area The higher the monthly rent, the
with market unit rent and using direct market comparable and ~ higher the fair value, and vice
capitalisation rate as the faking info account of time, location, ~ versa.
key input and discounted  frontage and size of properties, which
cash flow analysis with ranged from HK$56 to HKS72 (2019:
market unit rent and HK$63 to HK$92) per square foot
discount rate as the key
input
TEHH/ 55 ER BREME I AR BETAERINENE, AEER HALBEES R
SEESRE TEEAAE TAHRIELR 2R
M EfERIRE BE BERERAN ANT
MNIEREAASRE BV IRGETEET (0195
M UmHRELEER  63ETENET)
BREEATIZHATE

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation rate,
capitalisation of rental income potential, ~ the lower the fair value, and vice
nature of properties, prevaling market  versa.
condition, which was 4.25% (2019:

4.25%) per annum

EMeE @ REEREUAZER  AALEER URLEEY
b nEHE RAmain £ & Rk
BEF25% (20195 425%)

Discount rate, taking into account the et The higher the discount rate, the
capitalisation rate and stabilised annual  lower the fair value, and vice
rental growth rate, which was 6% versa.

(2019: 6%)

BRE W RFEMERERFRE BRZHE ARABEEE R

BRE EAGEe (019F:6%) ik

HELEE (BR) BRAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

14. Investment Properties — continued 14. REYZE 4=
Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Sensitivity/relationship of
financial position Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RESHBRRARIEE TURERAHBHAAREE
BfEE RENR MEE MEBESR HERARIEBARE EXATUERBANE ZHBE /B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TEn
Office premises 6,316,000 6,724,000 Level3 Direct capitalisation method ~ Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area The higher the monthly rent, the
with market unit rent and using direct market comparable and ~ higher the fair value, and vice
capitalisation rate as input - taking info account of time, location, versa,
and discounted cashflow  frontage and size of properties,
analysis with market unit prevailing, which ranged from HK$56
fent and discount rate as~ to HK$75 (2019: HK$59 to HK$76) per
the key input square foot
ROENE 3 BREALE I GRS BEmAERTURYE, RRES ALABEER R
mEEfEE R EERAE TAHRIELE 2R
AR EEREA BE BERERAN ANT
UBERERRCREN  BYHRGETETORT (20195
HiaBAEe RERRE  S0BTET6ET)
RIBBATE

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation rate,
capitalisation of rental income potential,  the lower the fair value, and vice
nature of properties, prevaling market  versa.
condition, which was 4.25% (2019:

4.25%) per annum

EMeE @ REEREUAZER  AALEER URLEEY
b g e RAmain- £ & Rk
BEE45% (20195 : 4.25%)

Discount rate, taking into account the et The higher the discount rate, the
capitalisation rate and stabilised annual  lower the fair value, and vice
rental growth rate, which was 6% versa.

(2019: 6%)
BRE W RFEMERERFRE BRZHR ARABEEE Ry
ERE EAGE, (019F:6%) ik
Residential premises 10,900 12900 Level3 Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into Asignificant increase in the market
with market unit rate as the - account the time, floor, building unit rate used would result in
key input condition and size, between the a significant increase in the
comparables, which was HK$7,500 fair value of the investment
(2019: HK$8,900) per square foot properties, and vice versa.
i 23 BREAE W5 WEENER IREARILER  HRETEELERARELN
BlUERIEAT NERIER BE ETHAR BolakENR 2 AnBE
EEINL K BETART 08T B k278

(20192 :8,900/57T)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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14. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of
financial position Fair value
RESHERAZDAR
BB RENR MERE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK§ 000
Tén TiEn
Macau
A
Retail shops/complexes 2,595,100 2,731,700
IERE/B5
Residential premises 40,900 42500
fremz
UK
L
Retail shops/complexes/ 3,044,696 3,317,089
offices/residential
premises
TERE/ B/
WAE/fEmE

Fair value
hierarchy

MEBESS

,

Level 3

30

Level 3

230

Level 3

R

14 REYZE—

/‘/ ~

Valuation techniques
and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
HERGRIERARE EXATUERBANE
Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking info
with market unit rate asthe ~ account the time, location, frontage
key input and size, between the comparables,

which was ranged from HK$6,000
to HK$172,000 (2019: HK$6,500 to

HK$181,000) per square foot
ERLBE IR MRERER TEEHRALEN
BN ERERT Epdd R ME BEERX
EL PN M ENTEFHR6000ELE
172,000% 7T (20195 : 650052
181,000 70)
Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking info
with market unit rate asthe  account the time, location, quality,
key input view, floor level and size, between the

comparables, which was HK$7 400
(2019: HKS7, 700) per square foot

BRUEE U5 m%imﬁt R RALEN
BUERERT FECRR B E2 2B B
ELIN L ERAN 7%#%)37400/%7&

(20194 : 770057

Direct capitalisation method  Monthly rent, based on internal floor area

with market unit rent and using direct market comparables and
capitalisation rate as the taking into account of time, location,
key input frontage and size of properties, which

ranged from HK$37 to HK§520 (2019:
HK$38 to HK$576) per square foot

ERENE M BARE RETAERTLENZE,

BENHSRE RBBARE TEHENEL
A EEATEY Ry ﬂ@&ﬂ
AEH ENFETRRITET 50T

(20195 : 388 L E57657T)

Capitalisation rate
capitalisation of rental income potential
nature of properties, prevaling market
condition, which ranged from 2.95% to

4.5% (2019: 2.75% to 4.5%) per annum

BRk EHREARSNAZER
b nEHE BaMERT
ENFEE95%245% (20195 -
2T5%E45%)

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Sensitivity/relationship of
unobservable inputs to fair value
TUREBAHBHAAEE
ZHBE/BE

A significant increase in the market
unit rate used would result in
a significant increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FRAmEELER AR
RARENRL DL BE
KB 2

Asignificant increase in the market
unit rate used would result in
a significant increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FrR AR B E KRN
BoldRENE D1 BE
REEM R2MA

A significant increase in the market
unit rent used would result in
a significant increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

AR RS AREN
RATRENR DA EBE
REEM Rk

, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation rate,

the lower the fair value, and vice
versa.

AR s AR EEY
B R2mike

REKE (B BRAF
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14. Investment Properties — continued 14 REYFE—~Z
Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Sensitivity/relationship of
financial position Fair value hierarchy ~ and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
RESHERRZDAR TURERAHBHAAREE
BfEE RENR MfEE MEBESR HERARIEBARE EXATUERBANE ZHBE /B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK§ 000
TEn T
Retail shops/complexes/ 313,298 318400 Level3 Residual method
Offices under The key inputs are:
development ‘
YRITERR/ MR/ 230 Bz
WAZ IEGAER:
(1) Gross (Gross development value on completion  The higher the gross development
development basis, mainly taking info account the ~ value, the higher the fair value,
value time, location, design, frontage, layout  and vice versa.

and size between the comparables
and properties, which ranged from HK
HK$64 to HK$520 (2019: HK$68 to
HK$597) per square foot
(1) RELEE REREENRLABE T2AHR FRLEEYS MLABEM
THENFRGENER I ER B Rz
i &t BEE HRRAN
ENFETARe4B T 250 T
(20195 : 68 T 2507 TT)

(2)  Developer'sprofit  Developer's profit at 8.5% (2019: 8.5%),  The higher the developer's prof,
taking into account the construction the lower the fair value, and vice

progress of the property versa.
2  EE®ZEH BEWEFE85% (2019F:85%)  EEELHES BLLEEY
W RIMEL TRER & Rk

(3)  Capitalisationrate  Capitalisation rate, taking into account the The higher the capitalisation rate,
capitalisation of rental income potential,  the lower the fair value, and vice
nature of the properties, prevaling versa,
market condition, which ranged from
2.85% 10 3.85% (2019: 2.75% 0 3.9%)
per annum

(3) EnkE BMeE @i REERENALZ EMEdR AAREES
B NEZME R Rz
R BN FBE285%%385%

(20195 : 2.75%%3.9%)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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14. Investment Properties — continued

Joint operation relating to investment
properties under development in The PRC

Some subsidiaries of the Company, Expert Pearl Investment
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Expert Pearl Group”) entered into a joint venture agreement
(the “JV Agreement”) with Shanghai Zhangxi Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (the “JV Partner”) to jointly develop
investment properties under development located in Shanghai
(the “Shanghai Property”). Expert Pearl Group and the
JV Partner intend to develop the Shanghai Property into
a commercial complex (the “PRC Project”). Under the JV
Agreement, the saleable floor area would be split between the
parties in equal shares after the completion of the development
of the PRC Project. Pursuant to the terms of the JV Agreement,

the PRC Project is accounted for as a joint operation.

There was litigation between Expert Pearl Group and the JV
Partner since 2006. In 2012, the Group received the Court’s
judgement that the JV Agreement shall continue to have
effect. Details of these are disclosed in 2011/2012 annual

report.

As at 31 March 2020, the major asset in the PRC Project
is the investment properties under development with fair
value of HK$1,696,000,000 (2019: HK$1,989,000,000). The
site preparation work had been completed at the end of
the reporting period, the valuation has been arrived at by

adopting residual method.

As at 31 March 2020, the receivables related to a
development project of HK$162,519,000 (2019:
HK$173,112,000) represent the construction cost incurred by

the Group and receivable from the JV Partner.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s investment properties with
fair value of HK$39,068,214,000 (2019: HK$42,833,949,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group (details are set out in note 47).

14 REYZE &

FERTERREIREYEZRE
E S

NN B 2 Bt B A FlExpert Pearl Investment
Limited 2 E Bff 8 A 7] (5518 4 [Expert Pearl
£ @ |) #2Shanghai Zhangxi Investment
Development Co., Ltd ( BEBHRINES
ek ([Eathal) UWHRZBEACK EEhme
BRAREYE ( U:xi%%J ) ° Expert Pearl
SEREERYRE LEMERRARER
AGXRE ([FEIEE]) -RIFE & FINE
F R R BIE B 2 B RERER D EE
HAEEEEE BB E & HHE 2GR RE
HEARRE &K

B 20064 #E - Expert PearlfE B A& & B 1
2 B EA - FA20124F - AN B B 0E e
HR AL MBEELR - BRABRER
2011,/ 20124 5 °

F20209F3A31H FEIBENEBEE A%
EHIREYZE - H A xEER1,696,000,0007%
7T (20194F : 1,989,000,000/8 7T ) © Hi AR EHE T
VEE RS EIR TR - W B IRARE AT
@ °

F2020F3A31H - B — BB RIBE 2B
FXIE162,519,000/8 7T (20194 : 173,112,000/5
T IEASEEEENEERN AR ERE &R
e 5RIE -

MR2020F3A31H AEBEAAEE
39,068,214,000/% 7T, (20194F : 42,833,949,000
B 2 B MECIEMEAAEBERIETT
SEZER (FIBENHE47) ©

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. W3 - HAEE N 3R 1
Leasehold
land and Hotel Leasehold
buildings properties  improvements Others Total
HETHRET BENE  HENERE 2 g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT Thn Tén Thr Tén
cosT A
At 1 April 2018 H2018%F4A1H 603,115 3,815,095 405,154 555,385 5,378,709
Exchange realignment SHERZ (1012) - (247) (656) (1915)
Additions AE - 652 48225 39,042 87919
Transfer to assets classfied as held for sale EEZHEARIELEZEE
(note 29) (Wi29) - (401,702) - (2.246) (403,948)
Transfer to properties under development BB ZH{EHE 2 EBHE
for sale _ (18477) (10457) (0.75) (438,690)
Transfer to completed investment properties EBZEEMEENE (63,749) - - - (63.749)
Disposals irf = - - (593) (3640) (4,239)
131 Merch 2019 HO019F 3831 5834 209552 2082 819 455400
Exchange realignment HERE (51,720) - (405) (610) (52,735)
Addtions AE - 31,365 58,273 48,452 138,090
Disposals = - - - (5,856) (5,856)
At 31 March 2020 R20203531H 486,634 3,026,893 499,950 620,115 4,633,592
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TERAE
At 1 April 2018 R2018%4A 18 47,366 565,711 325,648 483,039 1,411,764
Exchange realignment HNERZ (%47) - (245) (20) (1212)
Provided for the year RERZBE 16,911 60918 30617 58,186 175,632
Elminated on ransfer to assefs classfied as ~ ERZABAR{ELE 7 EEBEHE
held for sale (roe 29) (Hi#29) - (47.278) - (1,839) (49.117)
Eliminated on rangfer to properties under ~ BREZR{ELE 7 RERNEREH
development for sale - (232,910) (10.456) (9,756) (263,122)
Eliminated on transfer to completed BRSOANRENERES
investment properties (5,128) - - - (5,128)
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - - (679) (3.118) (3,697)
A3 March 2019 R019E3A31 5202 336,41 353,965 642 125120
Exchange realignment HERE (1,165) - (323) (230) (1,718)
Provided for the year KEE2 B 15,966 75,921 37,83 50467 180,192
Eliminated on disposal (h R - - - (5,299) (5,299)
At 31 March 2020 A2020%3F31H 73,003 412,362 391,500 571,430 1,448,295
CARRYING VALUE REf
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3531H 413,631 2,614,531 108,450 48,685 3,185,207
At31 March 2019 Ho19E3A31R MR 26908 8,007 516 3278973

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

15. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued 15. % HeERRE 2

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of FETNIRYISE MR REE 2 ITE 2 ETAlE
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value over RFEABREIR THIGF L RHER - LA
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at HA AR A RE
the following rates per annum:
Leasehold Over the estimated useful lives of etk fhET Al (e A HAPY -+ sk A
land and buildings 40 years or the unexpired terms BF B2 TR IEmEER
of the relevant leases, whichever (ARG E /%)
is shorter
Hotel properties Over the estimated useful lives of N ES fhET Al {2 A HAPY -+ sk i
40 years or the unexpired terms BFRA) 2 82 T R E M A
of the relevant leases, whichever (ABREE /%)
is shorter
Leasehold improvements 10 — 20% HMEWERE  10-20%
Others 10 - 33's% HAh 10 — 33'%
As lease payments for land and buildings elements cannot BN T REFHD 2 MERIBMER it
be allocated reliably, the entire lease includes in the carrying At BHAHNE SR EE L RMEF ZRE
amount of the leasehold land and buildings. B
The locations of leasehold land and buildings and hotel TS T REFEBEYE MBENT
properties shown above are as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Leasehold land and buildings BEBEZHEL W RIETF
in Hong Kong 34,318 35,585
Buildings in The PRC REZEF 312,353 375,260
Buildings in Macau B ZEF 66,960 69,307
413,631 480,152
Hotel properties in Hong Kong BB BIEYE 1,527,757 1,536,233
Hotel properties in Macau SRS 2B E 1,086,774 1,122,854
2,614,531 2,659,087
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

16. Right-of-use Assets 16. FHAEEE
Leasehold Land and
lands buildings Total
HEL#H LTHREF waE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
cosT A
At 1 April 2019 (note 2) #2019%4 818 (Ht22) 558,046 1,544 559,590
Addition NE - 18,598 18,598
At 31 March 2020 7202063AH31H 558,046 20,142 578,188
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2019 7201954818 - - -
Provided for the year AREE 7 Bl 19,673 2,111 21,784
At 31 March 2020 7A202063AH31H 19,673 2,111 21,784
CARRYING VALUE AREE
At 31 March 2020 7A202063H31H 538,373 18,031 556,404
For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z202053A31HLLFE
Expense relating to short-term leases AR HAAERHHE HX
and other leases with lease terms fE BB B RE 2R
from the date of initial application #1655 B HiB AT
of HKFRS 16 ZHMIEE 2 X 1,543
Total cash outflow for leases MEZRe R 2R 4,333

For both years, the Group leases certain leasehold lands,
office, warehouse and carparks for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term from 1 to 25 years.
Certain leases of leasehold lands in Macau are negotiated for
an initial term of 25 years with extension options exercisable
by the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns certain hotel and commercial
properties classified as property, plant and equipment
and investment properties respectively. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are not presented
separately as the payments made cannot be allocated
reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for office.
As at 31 March 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-
term lease expense disclosed above.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

17. Prepaid Lease Payments 17 AN HEERIE
2019
HK$'000
FHET
CARRYING VALUE ARE E
At beginning of the year REH) 547,255
Addition =S 2,773
Release for the year F AR (18,104)
At end of the year RER 531,924
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEREHOTME 294
Current mEh 18,102
Non-current JE B 513,822
531,924
18. Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through 18. BBHMEENATEAAEE
Other Comprehensive Income ZEHTH
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
TR TR
Debt instruments at FVTOCI comprise BREMEZARGIELABEY
debt instruments: EETARENTERIA:
- listed in Singapore/Hong Kong — R/ EELT BE
with fixed interests at the rates FFENTF4375%Z6.750%
ranging from 4.375% to 6.750% per REE BN F2019F4A1H
annum and maturity dates falling between 22020534318
1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 - 96,783
~ listed in Singapore — RF I3k (20195 : # sk
(2019: Singapore/Hong Kong) BH) L EEEHE
with fixed interests at the 91 5.700%%6.875%
rates ranging from 5.700% to 6.875% (2019 : 4.250%%£8.375% )
(2019: 4.250% to 8.375%) per annum REH AN T2020F4 718
and maturity dates falling between £202143A318
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 46,415 286,584
- listed in Cayman Islands/Hong Kong -RASHS /BB
(2019: Singapore/Hong Kong) (2019%F 37 h03% /&5) £
with fixed interests at the rates EIEFHEN T4.875%%
ranging from 4.875% to 6.000% 6.000% (2019 : 4.875% %
(2019: 4.875% to 6.950%) per annum 6.950% ) REI B ENT
and maturity dates falling between 2021F4R1HE
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 202293 H31H 35,959 85,441
82,374 468,808
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERBOME 29 :
Current ik 46,415 96,783
Non-current e 35,959 372,025
82,374 468,808
The amounts are carried at fair values which are the quoted BRASBEERRERR 2 AR EE (BVER
bid prices in active markets at the end of the reporting period. MHME) FIER

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

18. Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income — continued

Included in debt instruments at FVTOCI are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than functional

currency of the relevant group entity:

United States Dollar (“USD”)
Renminbi (“RMB”)

ESAE D)

AR (TARE])

18. ZBRHEMEEWSEQANEE
ZEBTAR—4&

BREMEERSHEAABEIEBLTA
BRETIIZARSEER ZNEER AN
BETHEMN &
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
TRER FTHT
82,374 397,657
- 71,151

19. Interest in an Associate

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group disposed
of 50% of the equity interest in Xinhui Hongsheng Property
Development Company Limited (“Xinhui Hongsheng”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to an
independent third party. In view of the composition of board of
directors of Xinhui Hongsheng, the Directors consider that the
Group has significant influence over Xinhui Hongsheng. After
the disposal of the 50% equity interest, Xinhui Hongsheng
became a 50% owned associate of the Company. Xinhui
Hongsheng is established in The PRC and is engaged in

property development in The PRC.

10. R —EEE N 2 R
RELE2018F3A3B I FE  REE R —F
BYE=ZAHEARRNF—HEEE2ENER
AFERRMERRAER AR ([FEBEK])
Z50% S iE - BN SRR EES 24K B

REAEBETERREEEATE -
BN HES0%IHE - FTERBEBARARESR
50%R% 1 2 Bt N R o FT 2 B AR AR BIAK ST
RARBIREYHEERER-

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Cost of investment in an associate, A — & QT 2K E KA

unlisted JEETH 75,978 75,978
Share of translation reserve BOIE N B (9,727) (1,065)

Share of post-acquisition profits LU m A 103,911 38,572

170,162 113,485

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in

those consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in associate’s

financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

19. Interest in an Associate — continued 19. R —REBE QAR 2 ERm—~&
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Current assets MEEE 460,904 544,361
Non-current assets EREBN B E 16,623 339
Current liabilities mBaE (248,225) (435,988)
Revenue WA 674,332 276,451
Profit for the year FEHF 130,677 77672
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information AR E BT ISRk R RER RO — B & 8 B
to the carrying amount of the interest in an associate and w2 BREE RS RENRE PR EERRE
share of result recognised in the consolidated financial HERLT
statements:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net assets of an associate R—EEERB 2 FEE 229,302 108,712
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 752 @A — B4 N B
interest in an associate ERERZFMEED X 50% 50%
114,651 54,356
Effect of fair value adjustments WHER QA BEARZ
at acquisition FE 55,511 59,129
170,162 113,485
The exchange loss of approximately HK$8,662,000 (2019: HE2020F3B31H IFFE - & —RE 2N
HK$5,380,000) arising from translation of financial information BB R AT EE A TE N, B 18 498,662,000/ 7T
of an associate for the year ended 31 March 2020 is (20194F : 5,380,000/ 7T ) JhA Efth 2 T U 257
recognised in OCI| and accumulated in translation reserve. BRE N HEERT-
20. Interest in a Joint Venture 20— REEhE RS
Interest in a joint venture represents interest in Superb Land R—EE &% 2z R Superb Land
Limited in which the Group holds 40% equity interest. All Limited~ # 2 © 2N 5 B35 B E40%% 1 - 1878
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous EEN T EREASHE R A EE
consent of all the joint venture partners sharing control. BB E—B[EE - Superb Land Limited# A
Superb Land Limited holds 100% interest in Talent Charm BERRA R N A ([EERE] ) 2 100%HE %S » e
Corporation Limited (“Talent Charm”), being the property BYEERAT HERBRUNEE=ERELL
development company of a development project located at B B E R E5 11985k
Rural Building Lot No. 1198, Shouson Hill Road West, Hong
Kong.
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Cost of investment in a joint venture, R—HEAEDEZIREKAE
unlisted JEE™ - -
Share of post-acquisition losses BhEREE (435) (326)
(435) (326)
Amount due from a joint venture B —MEEaEtE A 814,405 735,700
813,970 735,374

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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20. Interest in a Joint Venture — continued 20.

As at 31 March 2020, the amount due from a joint venture
carries interest at 2.2% (2019: 2.2%) per annum. It has no
fixed terms of repayment and the Group has no intention
to exercise its right to demand repayment of the advance
within the twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the amount forms part of net investment and it is
shown as non-current.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in
those consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in joint venture’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

R—EBeEbE R~
202053 A31H - Rl — A &% 2 718
TR E F| 22 2% (20194F : 2.2% ) 51 B o 5% K
B EE B MASEESRHREER
#B12ME A AT TR EL AR A B SR BB o
It SR BT BN — D W BIER
Ej) o

PN

ABOE TR ARERA MR

AEEEZREIHWBERMEHN T T
AMEATEE R BIERIBE BV RS AR
A B EMBHRRATIR ZBE-

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Current assets mMBNEE 4,110,934 3,493,137
Current liabilities mBaE (4,112,022) (3,493,952)
Revenue A - -
Loss for the year FEEIE 272 180

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture and
share of result recognised in the consolidated financial

RIFE P RRTERNN —HE & hXEE
@ BREE R BERE R F A B E R R
HERINT

statements:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET
Net liabilities of a joint venture —HaErEsABFE (1,088) (815)

Proportion of the Group's ownership ~ AEBR—HAE &

interest in a joint venture BERERZFIMEE DX 40% 40%
(435) (326)

Amount due from a joint venture Y —FH& &2 FIE 814,405 735,700
813,970 735,374

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has given a corporate
guarantee of HK$941,600,000 (2019: HK$941,600,000) to a
bank in respect of banking facilities granted to Talent Charm,
of which HK$829,357,000 (2019: HK$642,400,000) has been
utilised. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the
financial guarantee is not significant.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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21.

22.

Goodwill

COST
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and
31 March 2020

B A

21,

GE

HK$°000
TET

A2018F4 818 ~ 20193 A31H &
202043H31H

56,683

For the purpose of impairment test, goodwill of HK$54,743,000
(2019: HK$54,743,000) has been allocated to hotel and hotel
related operation of Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
(“Emperor E Hotel”) (a single cash-generating unit “CGU").

During the year, the Group performed an impairment review
for goodwill of Emperor E Hotel's gaming operation based
on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years. Cash flows beyond the
five years are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of
3% (2019: 3%). The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate
and expected changes to revenue and direct costs during the
year. The forecast is discounted using a discount rate of 20%
(2019: 18%). The discount rate was determined with reference
to weighted average cost of capital of similar companies in
the industry and adjusted for specific risks associated with
Emperor E Hotel's gaming operation. The growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past
practices and the management's expectations of future
changes in the market. As the recoverable amount of the CGU
is higher than the carrying amount of the CGU, the Directors
consider no impairment loss need to be recognised for both
years.

Regarding the remaining goodwill of HK$1,940,000 (2019:
HK$1,940,000), it has been allocated to the CGU for the
lease of properties for the purpose of impairment test, and no
impairment is considered necessary.

Other Assets

SESFRERE
A

Club debentures and memberships,
at cost

22.

4% #154,743,00078 7T (20194 : 54,743,000/
T ZEE ENRERSREBEERAR
(TREREAENE ] ) B S MBS AR (5
—REELBN [REELEN]) - LETTH
BRI -

RAFE  AEBRIBERSRERAEHER
R EERER B ETRERN - BHEaR
SEEATVENRRAF 2 &M EEE - AF
#ZBRERENFERBEIEREI% (2019F
3% ) (HE - AUGTEFEREEZ T E/RRHE
FAZIEE  BERRIEFWAREEKARN
2 BB - ZTER T91220% (20194F : 18% )
ZITEET AR - BE N2 RBZER R
RNEIZIMEFERKAR R R BIRET)E 2
BEEBREERBETAEREH ERER
BRRHFHEFIERTE - WA R E KA
ZEETIRBBAENREREEMISZARK
B2 FEEIMS L - AR RS EA BN AR E
WeEanReEESM RAE  HESR
AR EFE BT ERRERES-

Bt &4 1,940,000/ 7T (20194 : 1,940,000/
)2 ERME  AEITRENS ZEEE
HEEWLBE Y REE LB AMRE
2EE-

H&EE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi# T
4,052 4,092

The club debentures and memberships have indefinite life.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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23. Derivative Financial Instruments 23.0TEEm I A

S e ARIE 2
TETREE

Derivative financial assets under
hedge accounting

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THET
- 11,415

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered
into cross currency swap contracts as part of the Group’s
treasury operation for the purpose of minimising the exposure
to foreign currency risk and to hedge economically against
the foreign currency unsecured notes. The terms of these
contracts were negotiated to match with those of the hedged
unsecured notes with the same notional amounts to principal
amounts of unsecured notes, currency and interest rate index.
The Directors consider that the cross currency swap contract
are highly effective hedging instruments and have designated
them as cash flow hedging instruments for hedge accounting
purpose.

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow
exposure to exchange rate movements. During the year, fair
value gain (2019: fair value loss) on hedging instruments in
cash flow hedge of HK$32,544,000 (2019: HK$4,711,000)
had been recognised in OCI, of which HK$2,741,000 (2019:
HK$620,000) was reclassified to profit or loss, and the net fair
value change on hedging instruments in cash flow hedge of
HK$35,285,000 (2019: HK$5,331,000) had been recognised
in OCI and accumulated in equity. During the year ended 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2019, there was no gain or loss
arising from ineffectiveness on the cash flow hedge.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the cross currency
swap contracts were disposed of and a gain on disposal
of derivative financial instruments of HK$19,977,000 was
recognised in profit or loss. Upon the disposal, the hedging
reserve of HK$22,718,000 was reclassified to profit or loss.

The notional amount of the outstanding cross currency swap
contracts to which the Group was committed as at 31 March
2019 was as follows:

B E2018F3A31H ILFE - AEBFI LR X
SRR NERASEES XL 8D U
PRAK SN [\ B AE AR | b SN I SR R R
1% W E AKX 2 G0 R AT E KRR
B2 RMAE - A BEEMRRAS RN
Rzazxdd BB RN EB-EFAR

XX EBEREN T AR TE WE K
HIEERAEE gt IR REL P TR -

ZEH MM N EREH I MR D
MERR RAFE BEREL P2 EH
TEARBEKZ (20195 AR BHEER)
32,544,0005 7T, (20194F : 4,711,000/ 7T.) &
REAM 2 E RS A ER - H2,741,000% 7T
(2019%F : 620,000 L) E EFM D fBE1B%

RESRSE D 8 T EFAABEED
35,285,0007% 7T (20194F : 5,331,000/7T) &7
Efh 2R NERT RN R REE
202093 A31H K2019F3A31HILFE - i
AR & m = P R EE A (T AUk e sl e o

REE2020F3A31B I FE XX EH¥E
HEHERE mMEETESm T Az E
19,977,000 L E N B EER - REE%
22,718,000/ L 2 ¥ P REEEN D =B -

R2019F3A31H ' AEE B EHAFE R M AR
ENRYEBESHENZESHIT:

Receive fixed Pay fixed
Notional Amount Maturity interest rate interest rate Exchange rates
EREH EIERS K ER Y B E A 2R XAHEER R E=x
Buy USD200,000,000 16/09/2021 4.00% 3.84% USD1: HK$7.75
& 200,000,000 7T 1R 77587
Buy USD200,000,000 27/03/2022 5.00% 4.88% USD1: HK$7.75
& A200,000,000% 7T 1R 77587

The above derivatives were measured at fair value. The
classification of the measurement of the above derivatives at
31 March 2019 was Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy (see
note 45 for details).

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%

oA T AR AR EEFE - ElITET
H 27812019331 A AR AEBE
SRR (FHIB RPRE45)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

24. Properties Held for Sale

The carrying amounts of properties held for sale comprise

properties situated in:

24.

FEME 2=
BRI E 2 W32 BEEBERN A T
GlES

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Hong Kong BE 315,061 404,570
The PRC h 436 462
315,497 405,032

25. Properties Under Development for Sale 25 FEHECBREPYE

The amounts represent projects of properties under

development for sale in Hong Kong.

Included in the amounts are properties under development
for sale of approximately HK$3,642,768,000 (2019:
HK$3,257,951,000) which are expected to be recovered after

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

During the year, the net interest capitalised in properties under
development for sale amounted to HK$231,590,000 (2019:

HK$109,651,000).

26. Trade and Other Receivables

An analysis of trade and other receivables is as follows:

26.

BRSBEREERFLEZRRTYE-

HZEFBBBZFIELEZRRTYED
3,642,768,000/% 7T (20194F : 3,257,951,0007%
7U) BRI R M E AR S+ AR AR
=5

RAFEE FHELE2EREPIMEZENRN
b F B % 8 A231,590,00058 7T (20194 :
109,651,00078 7T ) °

B 5 Kk H YRR
H 5 RE MR DI T -

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Trade receivables (Note a) B S WA (Hita) 43,101 107,645
Chips on hand (Note b) 515 (Witb) 69,277 122,888
Other receivables (Note c) H bW FRTE (M ite) 343,209 416,852
Deposits and prepayments (Note d) & & N FafFRIE (Aatd) 961,600 896,744
1,417,187 1,544,129

As at 31 March 2020, trade receivables comprise receivables
from contracts with customers and lease receivables of
HK$23,991,000 (2019: HK$102,756,000) and HK$19,110,000

(2019: HK$4,889,000) respectively.

As at 1 April 2018, trade receivables from contracts
with customers and lease receivables amounted to

HK$122,469,000 and HK$7,350,000 respectively.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

R20205F3HA31H EZEUFIEBRIERER
FAHZEWZIE L ERHEERIE D55
23,991,000 7t (20194F : 102,756,000/% 7T, )
1219,110,0005 7T (20194F : 4,889,0005 7T) ©

R2018F4F18 - B S ERFZBIEREERFE
49 2 FEMR N & FE U ZR D Bl 122,469,000
7677 ]27,350,000% 7T
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26. Trade and Other Receivables — continued

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of
impairment allowance) based on either the date of credit

26. 5 R HAMBWFIE &
Rk 8K - IR 5 B (%
RIERE) 2B (S8 B I3 5 A A e

granted or the invoice date at the end of the reporting period ZERER DA
is set out below:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FETT
0 — 30 days 0£30H 25,493 91,339
31 -90 days 31290H 3,447 1,287
91 - 180 days 912180H 1,261 1,335
Over 180 days 180H A 12,900 13,684
43,101 107,645
Notes: B 5T

(a)

(d)

No credit period was granted to tenants for rental of premises.
Before accepting any new tenant, the Group will internally assess
the credit quality of the potential tenant. No credit period was
granted to hotel customers generally except for those high credit
rating customers to whom an average credit period of 30 days
were granted.

For gaming operation, the Group normally allows credit periods
of up to 60 days to its customers, except for certain credit worthy
customers with long term relationship and stable repayment
pattern, where the credit periods are extended to a longer period.

As at 31 March 2020, included in the trade receivable balances in
respect of other operations are debtors with carrying amounts of
HK$19,110,000 (2019: HK$4,989,000) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period.

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming concessionaire
in Macau which can be exchanged into their cash amounts.

As at 31 March 2020, included in other receivables are
amounts due from related companies of HK$44,741,000 (2019:
HK$50,988,000). These related companies are indirectly
controlled by private discretionary trusts which are also founded
by Dr. Albert Yeung who is the deemed substantial shareholder
of the Company. The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year.

As at 31 March 2020, included in other receivables are deposits
received for sales of the Group's properties of HK$20,601,000
(2019: HK$32,599,000) under the custody of the independent
lawyers on behalf of the Group.

As at 31 March 2020, included in deposits and prepayments are
refundable stamp duties in respect of redevelopment projects of
HK$778,433,000 (2019: HK$778,061,000).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in
note 45(b).

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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(a)

(c)

(d)

AEEYEABENEZABARBEEDR-
RENERFABAZA NEE KA E
BEFEAZEEEAR AREBERTERN
BERFPEHUGEEDR HEEERFZEPR
S MATER M Z FHEEH/I0A -

MEREBM S AEE—RETEEPET
RZ60AZEEHR EETABERPBAERE
EEFEANGEERIEF, REZEEHA
BERE-RBREHH-

MR2020F3A31H Kt ¥ 2 & 5 B E
e B FEBR T (E19,110,00058 7T (20194 -
4,989,000/ 70) Z FEMGRIE  ERBREHRE

LS5 RRPIFR AR AR ETT WA RS Y
HSREFA-

202053 A31H - E fib B IR 5K 18 B 35 B UK
788 N Bz FIE44,741,0005% 7T (20194 :
50,988,000/ 70) cZ EHE LRI ABE L
R Z FLA B S L R H - M 1E T I
WARRRZ TERE - FERIA B
BERBER—FREE-

20203 A31H » H b & W 5018 B 15 Bk 8
EARNEE 2 Y E W E Z 3 420,601,000/ 7T
(20194 : 32,599,000 7T) * H BB 2K
RALERE -

MR2020F3A31H e RTENREBRRER
18 B 2 7] 3R 38 ENFE F{778,433,0007 7T (2019
778,061,000/ 7T ) °

HZE2020F3A31HILFE2E S M EMEU
B 2B FHE B SR KTRE45(D) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

27.

28.

Deposit in Designated Bank Account for
Development Properties

The amount of HK$9,194,000 (2019: HK$9,696,000) (equivalent
to approximately RMB8,401,000 (2019: RMB8,317,000)), was
deposited to a bank account designated under 1t 585 &
EEE¥ER as deposit for resettlement for the investment
properties in The PRC. Such bank deposit is restricted for
settlement in relation to the resettlement work and carried
interest at 1.0% (2019: 1.0%) per annum. The deposit is
expected to be released within twelve months from the end of
the reporting period and classified as current assets.

Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term Bank
Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

As at 31 March 2020, pledged bank deposit represents a
deposit of HK$348,000 (2019: HK$340,000) pledged to a
bank to secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided
by a third party to the Group. As at 31 March 2019, the
balance also included a deposit of HK$43,700,000 pledged
to a bank to secure a bank facility granted to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The pledged bank deposits carry
fixed interest rate at 2.40% (2019: fixed interest rates ranged
from 2.20% to 2.40%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2020, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of over 3 months carry interest at fixed
interest rates which ranged from 2.05% to 2.80% (2019:
2.30% to 2.70%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less, and carry interests at prevailing market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 2.50% (2019: 0.01% to 3.05%) per
annum.

Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currency of the
relevant group entities:

usD ET
RMB AR
Pounds Sterling (“GBP”) ESES D

27.

28.

MERVEGFHNRIEERITRP
ZFER
AEBCEMILRESAGEEEERE BIEERIT
R P15 A9,194,0007%8 7T (20194F : 9,696,000/%8
70) (#9488 1 A R ¥58,401,0007T (20194 :
AR®8,317,0007T) ) fEREFBEHE R EK
BEMEZIEZS ZRITFRERRAERH
ENBEETEZHEERS  WIRFHNE1.0%
(2019%F : 1.0% ) T8 ° TRFT & T A P R 5 5
KRBT+ ZEANBRRIL B ERREEE -

SRR ITER R TR
RITEHESBREAS

20203 H31H + 7K £ B 35 #1348,000/%8 7T
(20194F : 340,000/ 7T ) RT3 T — AR
T ER—RE-FRBEAEEFAMEES
F i 2 - 20193 A31H 2 &% T B
54K 3043,700,0008 TR 1T 38 T — R 1T -
EBARR—HE2ENB AR ERRITHE
2 B3 o B IR IR 1T 1F 7R B E S F) R 2.40%
(20194F : 12 & & F F| K 1 F2.20%£2.40% )
TR

R2020F3A31H  REIHHA A=A A £
Z R ERIR TR SR B E F A E N F2.05% 2
2.80% (20194 : 2.30%%2.70% ) st E R 8 »

IRITEHB LA BIEAEERFZHE MR
BB E A3E A SAT - WIRBITH IS F A X
NF0.01%ZE2.50% (20194 : 0.01%%E3.05% )
B ZIRITER

EHEMRITER  EERTT IR T AR
Rl NN EREEER ZEEE I
SNEEEEZ TR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
998,504 655,237
48,355 2,907
198 318

Emperor International Holdings Limited

HELEE (BR) BRAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M mRmE
For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

29. Assets (Liabilities Associated With Assets) 0. HEARBELECEE (HEE

Classified As Held for Sale

On 8 February 2019, Emperor Property Investment Limited
(“EPIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with the purchaser, an
independent third party, pursuant to which the purchaser
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital in Keenrise
Holdings Limited and its subsidiary (“Keenrise Group”),
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company which
holds a property located at No. 60 Portland Street, Hong
Kong, and all obligations, liabilities and debts owing or
incurred by Keenrise Group to EPIL at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$1,100,000,000 including consideration
for the settlement of bank borrowings at disposal date.
Details of the disposal were contained in the Company’s
announcements dated 10 December 2018 and 8 February
2019. The disposal of Keenrise Group was completed on
10 June 2019 and a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
HK$639,789,000 (note 41) is recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The assets and liabilities attributable to the disposal of
Keenrise Group, are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019 as follows:

HEz8E)

MR2019F2 A8 - REYFEIREARAR] ([H#
EMERE] ARRZEEWBRAR)EE
F(—BBULE=R)LEEHZE BILE
A= AR & R{E#91,100,000,000/8 7T (‘BFE
HENNEEBBRZRITEECRE) WEHA
ERBERARMEWNBAR (HRER] A
ARRZEBEEZENBARBFEURES
HEHEe0R 2 W) 2 2B BITRAKRE
BT AERYAEREREEYERERE
FREA B - BELEFEZFRHNAR
7 H 81 A2018512A10H K&2019F2H8H ~
NE - HEHFEBHN20196651085EHK B
RELE2020F3A31H IEFE  HE— B
A7) 7 W %5639,789,00058 7T (MiT41) B
Wﬁﬁgfm"

HEHIEBEEIGEERBER2019F3H31
B2 GAMBMRRERAD I T

HK$'000
FHET
Investment property wEYHE 100,000
Property, plant and equipment LIERY Ty 354,831
Deposits and prepayments e RIBNRIEA 280
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB NS 36
Total assets classified as held for sale S RPHIELHECAERE 455,147
Deposit received from the disposal HESEMKRZEZS (165,000)
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A ER IR (375)
Bank borrowings RITEE (247,500)
Total liabilities associated with assets HYBARIELE CEENER
classified as held for sale ZBEBE (412,875)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

30. Trade and Other Payables

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out

30.

B 5 K HEAEARRE
RIPEER  SEEE SN FAREEEA
IR R Z BB DTN T -

below:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
0 -90 days 0£90H 54,930 45,636
91 — 180 days 91F=180H - 165
Over 180 days 180H A £ - 37
54,930 45,838

Amount due to a shareholder of JE T — R EsE & A R ER
an associate (Note) SIB (K7at) 1,299 1,349
Construction payables and accruals  fEft TI2RIB K BT E A 352,655 509,324
Rental deposits received BWHEELS 320,516 325,104
Other payables and accruals H et 5E R e E A 241,363 264,476
970,763 1,146,091

Note: The amount due to a shareholder of an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

31. Contract Liabilities

Pre-sales proceeds received on sales $H& ¥ 2 FTUkEL 2
of properties T8 & PT1S 58

31.

st : N — RS R RBCRFUAREIER 8
-

REEREE
BHEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
35,290 7,500

As at 1 April 2018, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$463,402,000.

During the year, the amount of HK$7,500,000 (2019:
HK$462,702,000) which was included in contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the year was recognised as
revenue.

The Group averagely receives 10% of the contract value
as deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided that the
customers agree to pay the balance of the consideration
early while construction is still ongoing. The deposits and
advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction period until
the customer obtains control of the completed property.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

R2018F4 518 « & 4 & & /£463,402,00075
7T|: o

RAFE REVGFAGNEELESHZEE
7,500,000/ 7T (20194F : 462,702,00058 JT ) #E
F=1 N

AEEBEFERR B B il —REEE
F10%a W BIERRE - AT REMIHE
R NEFPRBEEBIETHRREE X HRE
2R BEEEELR N AEE AR
Freftirg - e RANFGEEEE 241
BEREEYMETIRRHER EETPIS
EIERI R 2 R ilRE -

HELEE (BR) BRAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

31.

32.

33.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Contract Liabilities — continued

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contain significant financing component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted for the
effects of the time value of money taking into consideration
the credit characteristics of the relevant group entities. As
this accrual increases the amount of the contract liabilities
during the period of construction, it increases the amount of
revenue recognised when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customers.

The Directors considered that the balance of contract
liabilities in relation to sales of properties of the end of the
reporting period will be recognised as revenue to profit or loss
as follows:

31.

BHRNEE—#F

AN REBR AN KB AEABEMR
KB BB SENREEETEAER
B EFt MRS EERNEERH-
RN ZER B RIS INNEEBHRNEHAE
TR BIENIN R RIS E TR
R HERR 2 WA B 78

E=AR RBSHRERMEZANAERS
SRR AR AWALT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current mEh 16,420 7,500
Non-current ERB 18,870 -
35,290 7,500

The changes in contract liabilities are due to i) changes in
the progress of sales of properties when the Group satisfies
the performance obligations under the contracts, or ii)
increase in advance payments from customers for unsatisfied
performance obligation under the contracts.

Amount Due to an Associate

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Amounts Due to Related Companies

The amounts are unsecured and carry interest ranging from
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") + 0.67% to
HIBOR + 1.27% per annum (2019: HIBOR + 0.46% to HIBOR
+ 1.56% per annum). The interest payable to the related
companies, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the AY Trust, are
calculated at 2.80% (2019: 2.30%) per annum at the end of
the reporting period.

REEE () BRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 fF#k

32.

33.

BRREESHIHEN)NEEETANEA NE
WEIRYEHEERZHNITLIE A
NAREITEAEEM IR RFKIBIE DFTE

BN —EEE 2R E
BRREAEIER 28 RIREREE -

B REE N B FRIE

BREAFRTY AERR  MEFBEEBETR
2IFE ([BEBRITRAERE]) I0ETRER
BIRTTRIEIR B I .27% (20195 : FEFH
RITRIEI B IN0.46% 2 BB BITRIES BN
1.56% ) T EFI 8 - RSB - R RAEAR)
(AY Trustz 2 EMIBAR)) 2 F BIREF2.80%
(2019%F : 2.30% )5t & -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

33.

34.

Amounts Due to Related Companies —
continued

During the year, further advances from the related companies
amounted to HK$462,838,000 (2019: HK$742,783,000) and
the Group partially repaid the principal of HK$619,305,000
(2019: HK$1,529,272,000) to the related companies. The
principal amount outstanding as at 31 March 2020 was
HK$1,105,010,000 (2019: HK$1,261,477,000). It was agreed
with the related companies that the Group will repay the
amount based on the sufficiency of its operating cash flows.
Therefore, the Group revises its estimates on the amounts of
repayments to the related companies and adjusts the carrying
amount to be stated under current and non-current liabilities
in accordance with the revised estimated cash flows with the
related companies on regular basis. At 31 March 2020, the
total carrying amount was classified as current liabilities. At
31 March 2019, total carrying amounts of HK$484,436,000
and HK$744,792,000 were classified as current and non-
current liabilities respectively. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
calculated the estimated future cash flows at effective interest
rate of 3.16% per annum. During the year, these carrying
amounts have been adjusted by HK$32,249,000 (2019:
HK$3,664,000) because of changes in cash flow estimates.

Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Interests of
Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2020, the amounts represent unsecured
and interest-free shareholders’ loans due to non-controlling
interests of Luck United Holdings Limited (“Luck United”) and
Able Elegant Development Limited (“Able Elegant”) (2019:
non-controlling interests of Luck United).

In accordance with the contractual terms of the shareholders’
agreements, the amounts are to be repaid from surplus
fund, which represent cash available in Luck United and its
subsidiaries and Able Elegant, indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, after payment of all operating
expenses and payables including but not limited to bank
loans and third party loans which are due for repayment
together with the accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2020, the management of Luck United and
the management of Able Elegant (2019: the management of
Luck United) determined that Luck United and Able Elegant
(2019: Luck United) had adequate available surplus fund
for the repayment of all principal amounts outstanding to its
shareholders. Accordingly, the amounts are shown as current
liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

33.

34.

FEASERE N B RRIE — 45

RAFE REBEQRRZE—TERE
462,838,000/ 7T (20194F : 742,783,000/
70)  ANEE B EE D AN £619,305,00078
7T (20194F : 1,529,272,000/& L) F @& A
A) e A2020F3A31H M AEEZ AT A
1,105,010,0007% 7T (20194 : 1,261,477,000/%
TL) S EREAE A RE T AEBEIGRERLE
RemERCREEEFRE Bt NERT
HIRIE RS R A 2 SR ET IR e mER
RIHEEEEEQR B2 ireE AR
BES AR RIERBEBE EEREBER
AIFIE 7 BRE{E - 7220204538318 » BRE4E(E
DI AREBE - N201993A318 - IR 42
{E484,436,00078 7T }2.744,792,0007% 7T 7 Bl 5>
HAMREMIEREAE - R2019F3H318 -
NEBILEREFRRI16%:TE bzt AKE S
ME-RAFE BARREREMHFT2ED:
ZE R ED F9%32,249,0007%8 7T (20194 :
3,664,000/ 7T) ©

FEAS B B 1 B) 2 FF IR IR s FROR

720203 A31H * A # & 58 45 JE {I Luck
United Holdings Limited ( [Luck United | ) } %=
BERAR AR ([ZERE])IEERER (2019
%+ Luck United,Z 3F1ZE iR i 5 ) 2 fRAEIR 2
BZBRRER

BB R Wk 2 B LG ZE 2B AR
BEoEE MAKRESIEARABEIEZEMN
J& 2 FlLuck United & E M@ A A R EZERR
SAAAK LRI REMNFIE (BIEETRR
FHEB ZIRTTERNE = FER GERERT
FE) )& zAIEARE -

20203 H31H » Luck United® 12 8 & &=
BEIEE (20194 : Luck UnitedBIE[E )R A
Luck United & 258 (20194F : Luck United ) &
FRAAZBHBRESAEEERNERE Y
2EAREREARSTE - At - ZFRIER202063H
318 N2019E3A31 B R AREBE-

HELEE (BR) BRAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

35. KR EE

35. Unsecured Notes

2020 2019
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
P& TR TAT

HK$200,000,000 unsecured notes
carry fixed coupon rate of 3.15%
per annum, payable semi-
annually with maturity in 2023 at
carrying amounts

200,000,000/ JTI% & TE
FERB315%:tE B

T BAMN20235F

B 2 KRR
ZEREE

HK$80,000,000 unsecured notes 80,000,000/ JT iz [E &

carry fixed coupon rate of 4.88%  F 2 E4.88%xF & A

per annum, payable annually FFH B HK2029F

with maturity in 2029 at carrying B mEAER

amounts Z BREE (b) -
HK$40,000,000 unsecured notes 40,000,000/ JTiZ & &

carry fixed coupon rate of 4.4% FEBA4%:18 B

per annum, payable semi- FFF B R 20244F

annually with maturity in 2024 at % Hi 2 EK A E 4%

carrying amounts ZBREE (c) -
HK$260,000,000 unsecured notes 260,000,000/ 7T 12 & E

carry fixed coupon rate of 4.5%
per annum, payable semi-
annually with maturity in 2024 at

FEBE45%2 A
FHF B HR2024
FRH 7 B ERE

carrying amounts ZERHEE (d) -
HK$400,000,000 unsecured notes 400,000,000/ JT 1% &l &

carry fixed coupon rate of 4.7% FEBAT%T R BE

per annum, payable semi- FF B R2022F

annually with maturity in 2022 at 2| Hi 7 S ZE

carrying amounts ZREE (e) 398,681
USD200,000,000 unsecured notes  200,000,0003< 3% &l &

carry fixed coupon rate of 5% EE5%T R AE

per annum, payable semi- FF A B AR 2022F

annually with maturity in 2022 at 2| H 2 EIK =%

carrying amounts Z AREE ) 1,562,102
USD200,000,000 unsecured notes  200,000,0003% JT%Z [ &

carry fixed coupon rate of 4% FEBA%TE AT

per annum, payable semi- FF B R2021F

annually with maturity in 2021 at I Hi ~2 EK K

carrying amounts ZHREE (9) 1,567,669
HK$800,000,000 unsecured notes  800,000,000/% 7T 1% [E &

carry fixed coupon rate of 4.4% FEBA4%:T 8B

per annum, payable semi- F¥FREWLR2021

annually with maturity in 2021 at ~ F 2| 8 7 S A= 4%

carrying amounts Z AREE (h) 795,944
USD38,000,000 unsecured notes  38,000,0003 JTi% & F

carry fixed coupon rate of 4.4% FR4A%TE - BAE

per annum, payable semi- FF B R2021F

annually with maturity in 2021 at 2| H 2 BEIKHE &

carrying amounts 2 REE (i) 298,294
HK$300,000,000 unsecured notes 300,000,000/ 7T 1% &l 7E

carry fixed coupon rate of 5% FREES%TE Al

per annum, payable semi- FF B A7 2020F

annually with maturity in 2020 at ~ %|Hi~ EK B E 4%

carrying amounts 2 AREE () 299,682

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z2%£E (EIFR) GRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

35. Unsecured Notes — continued 35 \EIKIMEE &

2020 2019
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt EE TR FETT
HK$1,000,000,000 unsecured 1,000,000,000/% 7t 1% & 7
notes carry fixed coupon rate of ~ FEES%:T B - BAE
5% per annum, payable semi- FF A B AR 20204F
annually with maturity in 2020 at 2|8 2 B IK =%
carrying amounts ZIRHEE (k) - 998,675
5,161,766 5,921,047
Less: Amounts due within one B R —F A B EIRRIE
year shown under current (RneaEET
liabilities 5I7R) (1,092,563) (1,298,357)
Amounts due after one year shown 7 —41& E|HizIA
under non-current liabilities (RIEmBAEET
57K ) 4,069,203 4,622,690
The proceeds from the issuance of unsecured notes are BROTEEEE S RERBERER 2
intended to use for general working capital purposes of the — B RS o
Group.
Notes: B2k

(a)

In March 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$200,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate
of 3.15% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 3.5% per annum.
The principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in
2023.

In October 2019, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$80,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate of
4.88% per annum, payable annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 4.91% per annum. The
principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2029.

In May 2019, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$40,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.68%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2024.

In May 2019, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$260,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.68%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2024.

In March 2017, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$800,000,000. In October 2017, the Company redeemed
half of the unsecured notes of HK$400,000,000. The unsecured
notes (Stock code: 5411) are listed on the Stock Exchange
and carry fixed coupon rate of 4.7% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears. The unsecured notes carry effective interest
rate of 4.82% per annum. The remaining principal amount of the
unsecured notes is repayable in 2022.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

202043 A + A2 F] % 17200,000,000/% 7T &
AR o BRI ZBIR E F F Z 83.15%5T
B VWABEFRE -BEBZRZEREF
R A3.5% o EILH IR 2 NS FAN2023F &
= °

#2019 107 + A2 &) % 1780,000,0007% 7T &
AR 2 o BRI E F F 2 5.4.88%xT
B UWEAEBFMNE EBRFZEZERFRE
54.91% o AR IR 7 K FAR2029F B
E.

201945 A 7K A &) % 1740,000,0005% JT £
IR - MK 2 IRIRE E F E B4.4%5
B WASEFNE BREZEZEREF
K 54.68% o EIKIFZIE 7 NS AR 20245F
Eig-

201945 A + AN A] %% 17260,000,000/% 7T &
W E - LB EERIRE T F 2 84.5%
B VWABYFRE -BEBZREREF
K 54.68% o EIKIFRIR 2 NS FHAMN20244F

BiE-

#2017 3 A + 7K A &) # 17800,000,0007% 7T
EAZNE - R2017F 108 A AR E R —F
400,000,000/ T8 K R R 15 - MIEIR R &
(BRI 541 REERFT LT BB EF R
BA47%:tE WEABYFMHE - EIERRE
BERFFEA482% - BIEHREZFp A
EAN2022F B8 -

HELEE (BR) BRAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

35. Unsecured Notes — continued

Notes: — continued

(f)

V)

Emperor International Holdings Limited

In March 2017, the Company issued unsecured notes of
USD200,000,000. The unsecured notes (Stock code: 5410) are
listed on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon rate of 5%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 5.18% per annum. The
principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2022.

In September 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
USD200,000,000. The unsecured notes (Stock code: 4326) are
listed on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon rate of 4%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 4.06% per annum. The
principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2021.

In March 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$500,000,000. In May 2016, the Company issued additional
unsecured notes of HK$300,000,000. The unsecured notes carry
fixed coupon rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears. The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of
4.6% per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2021.

In February 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
USD38,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arears. The
unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.4% per annum.
The principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in
2021.

In March 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$300,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 5.12% per
annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes was fully
repaid in February 2020.

In February 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$1,000,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 5.15% per
annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes was fully
repaid in February 2020.

REEE () BRAR
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35. BMERRE &

MisE: —#&

®

(h)

201743 A » A2 A #17200,000,0003% 7T &
IR o EIE IR IR (R 5T : 5410) B
R LT REEFEES%:TE  WATHEF
B EmIEHER 2 BERFHER5.18% « £
W EIE 7 A BEER2022F EiE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

36. Bank Borrowings 36. #RITEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank loans RITE K 20,779,392 18,448,387
The bank borrowings are repayable  $RITEEZEZH BT :
as follows™:
Within one year —FR 4,518,096 2,933,539
Within a period of more than one year —F A _H{B @R G
but not exceeding two years 3,109,032 2,282,374
Within a period of more than two years R4 A H{E BB T4
but not exceeding five years 9,548,901 8,459,511
Within a period of more than five years & LA E 3,580,488 4,737,922
20,756,517 18,413,346
Carrying amounts of bank borrowings $R1T1EE 2 BRFEIE (R 2%
that contain a repayment on EREBIER BNRE
demand clause shown under BEETNIIR)
current liabilities 22,875 35,041
20,779,392 18,448,387
Less: Amounts due within one year  J& @ R—FRE#zE (B
shown under current liabilities mu@)ﬁ BB T5R) (4,540,971) (2,968,580)
Amounts shown under non-current R IERENBEIE T 7R 2 58
liabilities 16,238,421 15,479,807
* Carrying amounts based on scheduled repayment dates set out * EEEENERGEmH e ERB 8-

in the loan agreements.

The bank borrowings carry interest ranging from HIBOR +
0.55% to HIBOR + 2.70% per annum and interest at London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) + 1.53% per annum (2019:
ranging from HIBOR + 0.75% to HIBOR + 2.90% per annum
and at LIBOR + 1.53% per annum).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's bank borrowings of
HK$15,219,392,000 (2019: HK$14,488,387,000) are secured
by certain assets of the Group (see note 47(a)).

The effective interest rate of bank borrowings is at 3.05%
(2019: 2.92%) per annum.

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts

denominated in currency other than functional currency of the
relevant group entities:

GBP

ZERTEETFAEREBRITRAEREM
055% 2 F B IRTTEZEIF B N2.70%.2 F E 5T
B W EHFAEBIBERITRERE ([RER
TRIZERB]) h11.53% 2 R K5t 8 (20194F
FFEBBRITRIERBINO.75%ZEF BT
[B) 597 8. 002.90% M B F mBERTTRIZEHR S0
153% )5tHE

MR2020F3A31H ANEEHEFETEEZ
15,219,392,000/% 7T (2019%F : 14,488,387,000
BT )BAAEB A TEEER(FHF
47(@a)) °

RITEEZ2EBFF X A3.05% (20194 :
292%) °

RITEERR T EEEEER 2 TER
BUAINNEREBE 225
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FTHET
1,394,626 1,675,810

Emperor International Holdings Limited

HELEE (BR) BRAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

37 Lease Liabilities 37.HEARE

2020
HK$’000
FET
Lease liabilities payable: ERBEERE
Within one year —FR 4,790
Within a period of more than one year but not —F U L ETEBERE
more than two years 3,164
Within a period of more than two years but not MEA BT BBRE
more than five years 7,397
Within a period of more than five years AFEUE 29,008
44,359
Less: Amount due for settlement with one year &l : ZIAREB BB A
shown under current liabilities R—FREELEE 2SR (4,790)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities RIERBEEIE TR 2 NIE 39,569

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of HK$44,359,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$43,224,000 as at 31 March 2020.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Except for the leasehold lands and related assets
recognised in Macau, other related leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

HEEHRFINRLY

720203 A31H » B ##7844,359,000/8 7T 2
RS {5 SRR A4 & F43,224,000/8 7T ©
BEBES TR A2 MEEE 2 RIRE
ZRS1 - 4B DO AT 25 « R AR PIRERR MO
St LAMARESN A iEEEAETE

FREE E A IR -

As at 31 March 2020, the amounts are secured by rental
deposits with carrying values of HK$1,241,000.

7202093 A31R » % KA LA BR EI (511,241,000
AL ME RS EEM -

38. Deferred Taxation 38. IEALF4 18

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets AEERBAFEERZIETERERIEA (8
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BIEEREBEEHNT -

prior years.
Accelerated  Development  Revaluation
tax costs of Tax
depreciation capitalised properties losses Total
MR BRAA
nE BA{ MEEL WEES BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR THER TER TR
At 1 April 2018 201854818 (234,169) (4191)  (2,078,056) 72000 (2,044,126)
Exchange realignments INEFE - - 123917 - 123,917
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (MB)EABR
(note 11) (Hi#t11) (27,362) - (108,796) 25,555 (110,603)
Credit (charge) to equity A (k) # %= 304 - (3,647) - (3,343)
At 31 March 2019 #2019E3A318 (261,227) (4191) (2,066,582 97845  (2,234,155)
Exchange realignments MNEFE - - 107,549 - 107,549
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (Bt A&
(note 11) (#t11) (10,204) = 89,775 28,388 107,869
Credit to equity FrAER 126 - - - 126
At 31 March 2020 2020535318 (271,395) (4191)  (1,869,258) 126233  (2,018611)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

38. Deferred Taxation — continued 38 IR IE — 42
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MEREMBIRAER 2 25T 5 - & TRLERIE
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities BEMBGBDERE-
have been offset.
At 31 March 2020, the Group had tax losses of HK$2,199,090,000 20203 A31H - A& E B AR 8) A B IEE
(2019: HK$1,849,630,000) available for offset against future 82,199,090,000/% 7T (20194F : 1,849,630,000
profits. Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect B A TEER KRR ZEEBEPH
of HK$785,327,000 (2019: HK$603,242,000) of such losses. 785,327,000/ 7T (20194F : 603,242,000/ 7T.)
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of ERELETHIBEE - ER R & T RIR 2
the remaining HK$1,413,763,000 (2019: HK$1,246,388,000) Al T8I - 882 21,413,763,00078 7T (2019
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The F 1 1,246,388,000/% 7T ) I EE.:MELL%R
unrecognised tax losses of the Group might be carried BHEE - AEEZAERATIEBENE
forward indefinitely, except for an amount of HK$15,775,000 Hi4ses B AT R B3F N E ﬁﬁzlmlﬁﬁ
(2019: HK$43,849,000) which will expire in three years from 15,775,0007% 7T (20194F : 43,849,000/%8 7T ) Br
the year of assessment. 4o
Under The PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on RIEP B SEFTEEUE - st B E A FIFTHR
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by The BUH M =K 2 A SRS AR TEFNFR o A4S
PRC subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has not been provided SR r*ﬁ'J%?@ﬁEET%%EZETFﬁ BB
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect ZRA e N2 N RAFRE R NEBI K
of temporary differences attributable to retained profits B ﬁﬁ% B 2 R R R 2 B = 2R
of The PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$132,780,000 132,780,000/ 7T (20194F : 124,136,000/% 7T )
(2019: HK$124,136,000) as the Group is able to control the AR E I SRR AL IR R IR 4 -

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

39. Share Capital 39. IR A
Number Share
of shares capital
igvig =] [} &N
HK$’000
THExT
THE COMPANY FiN/NE|
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HFREE0.OE L 2 EiEmAR
Authorised: JERE
At 1 April 2018, M20185F4H1H »
31 March 2019 and 2019F3H318 &
31 March 2020 20203 H31H 500,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREHE
At 1 April 2018, R2018%F4H1H »
31 March 2019 and 20193 H31H &
31 March 2020 20203 H31H 3,677,545,667 36,775

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZZ25%E (EIFR) BRAHF 167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

40. Share Option

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) on 15 August 2013. A summary of Share Option
Scheme is set out as follows:

(a)

Purpose of Share Option Scheme

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
development and expansion of the Group.

Eligibility

Eligible participants include employees (whether full-time
or part time, including non-executive director) and such
other eligible participants.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme.

(i) As at 23 June 2020 (i.e. the date of this annual
report): 366,677,619 shares.

(i) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents as
at 23 June 2020: 9.97%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under
the Share Option Scheme.

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
0.1% of the Shares in issue and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the Board but in any event not
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

40. Share Option — continued

Share option scheme of the Company —
continued

(9)

(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant;
and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

Approximately 3 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme.

Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel

A share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel (“Emperor E Hotel
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 15 August 2013. A
summary of the Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme is set
out as follows:

(a)

Purpose of the Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme

To enable the group of Emperor E Hotel to attract, retain
and motivate talented participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the group of Emperor E
Hotel.

Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full time

or part time employee, including non-executive director)
and such other eligible participants.

40. B It — A&

KRB zBREE &

(@) () FRBSEMIEARERTAMMNAOR
B :1.0087T:

(i) WK ATRERR B A R HARR -
B BHEIRRRT28A A &
(i) VERFREBANFABEHERER
HABR : B o
() EEITEEIEE
TEEINHRESgETE  ETMFER T
FE%-U#?ﬁE%h1Z%ﬁﬁ

LR EZRFR L AT AEZ X AR
FHHTE: ReRHEE-

() BEIREAZIZHTHR
4934 (FA2023F8 A14R B HR) -
B B AR RE ST 2B 4N B HA A SR AR 3 L B A -

5 2 IR G4 I B IR e vt
s Siefe b o e
Rt 8] ) 70201368 A 155 SR 4 - B 248
ST E R TR Z B T

(a) HERLFERBAEEZ BN

o QR SEIR L] %ﬁ A Kl
BAE A %2 2HEEURRELREE
R 2 R R S oK
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40. Share Option — continued

Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel -
continued

(c)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme.

(i) As at 23 June 2020 (i.e. the date of this annual
report): 129,254,598 shares.

(i) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents as
at 23 June 2020: 10.47%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under
the Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme.

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of Emperor E Hotel; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
the higher of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders of Emperor E Hotel.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such a
date determined by the board of directors of Emperor E
Hotel but in any event not exceeding 10 years from the
date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors of Emperor E Hotel.

(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant;
and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

40. Share Option — continued

41.

Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel -
continued
(h) Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the board of
Emperor E Hotel and will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares on the date of grant;
(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (c) the nominal value of a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Emperor E Hotel Share Option
Scheme

Approximately 3 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme.

Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the year, the Group had disposed of the following
subsidiaries:

On 8 February 2019, EPIL entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interests in
Keenrise Group and all loan due by Keenrise Group to EPIL
to an independent third party for a total consideration of
approximately HK$1,100,000,000 including consideration
for the settlement of bank borrowings at disposal date. The
disposal was completed on 10 June 2019 with a gain of
HK$639,789,000.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of Keenrise Group was as follows:

40. BE PR FE —

41

/‘/ <

RERGETEBRETSE -2

(hy BETEEZEE

TEENHREREBEE=SET
TRER NITEEE : (@S B R
ZWTHE (0N ERFH A R EE
F AR 2 FEHWRTHE : R(o)RmEE-

() HREREEEBBAE B2 TR

4934 (FA2023F8 A14R B HR) -

2 58 2 SR 4T i PR 51 BIER 40 B LA SRR
B
HEMEBLATE

RAFEE AEEBEHEATHERR

1/‘\':'1't

2019F2A8H  REMEREF L —MHEER
W% - LAAA R E 491,100,000,00058 7T (B HE 45
MR EBBZRITEEZRE) M—BBL
% Hu”jc./ﬁ"@)?r%lz ERRSHEIA K B F

HEREEYERBENFIEER -ZHES
IEEA2019$6H 10H 525k * W 25 A639,789,000
/%75"

FRALEYAEBR 2R RREEFEBMARA
/?%,E\Z TEZZDT

HK$’000
FExT
Cash consideration received and inflow of cash ERHENBRARZERRERER
and cash equivalents in respect of the HekReFEEWRA
disposal of subsidiaries 689,520

Emperor International Holdings Limited

HELEE (BR) BRAH
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%k
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

41. Disposal of Subsidiaries — continued A HEMB AR —#&
During the year, the Group had disposed of the following RAFE  AEBERENTHBAR: —&
subsidiaries: — continued
The net assets (liabilities) of Keenrise Group at the date of PAEERNTERR EE (BE)FEN
disposal of were as follows: T
HK$’000
FET
Investment properties wEME 100,000
Property, plant and equipment M - HES KR 354,831
Deposits and prepayments e RIEN IR 2
Loan from a group company *E—HEEARIZER (142,525)
312,308
Gain on disposal is calculated as follows: HEREETERT
HK$’000
FER
Consideration received and receivable B U EUR(E 1,100,122
Net assets disposed of FTit & & EFE (312,308)
Sales of loan from a group company HEXRA —HEBARICER (142,525)
Expenses incurred on the disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRAREELE 2 (5,500)
Net gain on disposal & W F R 639,789
Consideration received: R AE
Cash received BUIR e 689,520
Included in liabilities associated with assets held for 5 AR2019F3A31H#FEHE 2
sale at 31 March 2019 BEMB EBE 165,000
Consideration for the settlement of bank borrowings EZR{TEE ZAE 245,602
Total consideration BRE 1,100,122

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

41. Disposal of Subsidiaries — continued

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had
disposed of the following subsidiaries:

(@) On 27 August 2018, EPIL entered into a sales and
purchase agreement to dispose of the entire equity
interests in Perfect Raise Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Perfect Raise Group”), indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company engaged in the
business of property investment, and all loan due by
Perfect Raise Group to EPIL to a company indirectly
controlled by a private discretionary trust which is
founded by Dr. Albert Yeung for a total consideration of
HK$1,151,472,000. The disposal was completed on 12
December 2018.

(b) On 29 March 2018, Emperor Corporate Management
Limited (“Emperor Corporate Management”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire
equity interests in Prestige Gold Investment Limited
(“Prestige Gold”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company engaged in the business of property
investment, and all loan due by Prestige Gold to
Emperor Corporate Management to a company indirectly
controlled by a private discretionary trust which is
founded by Dr. Albert Yeung for a total consideration of
HK$824,959,000. The disposal was completed on 13
June 2018 with a gain of HK$785,305,000.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of Perfect Raise Group and Prestige
Gold were as follows:

M HEMBAR &
REE2019F3A31HIEFE AEBEHE
ATHEBAR:

(a) H2018F8H27H L EW IR EZT L —
MEE W - AR (E1,151,472,000/8 7T
m—EEGE LRI ZAADEETER
BRI —REARHEENEGIERE
RAs REMBAR ([EiHEE]) (K
NrRMED2ENB AR ENRERYER
BER) MR RAE A KRG R E A K
EMERENMEER - ZEEFTER
2018F12 A 12H =k ©

(b) F2018F3A29H HENXEE AR
NA([HEPEETRER] - ARFAIZEE
MEBARDII Y —HmEEHRE UER
18824,959,000/% 7T [7] — &l R 45 18 B 32
A REETREESN—HAa
& E W Prestige Gold Investment Limited
([Prestige Gold | ) (A A EIfEE 2 & B
NA HEERMEREER) 2R
LA X Prestige Gold#S /R 2 EIRH)
FIBER %1 E EEHMN2018F6H13H
FERK + W 25 A785,305,000/8 7T ©

B &R 5% E Kk Prestige GoldZ I & IR
CEBMRNFRBZATWT

Perfect Raise Prestige

Group Gold Total

wimE L]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET

Cash consideration received B UWIR &R (E 1,151,472 40,000 1,191,472
Bank balances and cash FrhERTTEB LIS

disposed of (3,001) (26) (3,027)

Net inflow of cash and cash ERHENBREIZEE R

equivalents in respect of the ReEBYRAFRE

disposal of subsidiaries 1,148,471 39,974 1,188,445

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

41. Disposal of Subsidiaries — continued A HEMB AR —#&
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had REZE2019F3A31A EFE  AEEEHE
disposed the following subsidiaries: — continued IATHBAR: —4&
The net assets (liabilities) of the subsidiaries at the date of MEBARRLEERMCEE (BR)FEN
disposal were as follows: T
Perfect Raise Prestige
Group Gold Total
& “eEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&T FHET
Investment properties (note 14) &M% (Hit14) 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
Property, plant and equipment ¥ « #28 K R - 42,695 42 695
Taxation recoverable AR E IR 1,253 - 1,253
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b FE Y GRIA 2,106 1,046 3,152
Bank balances and cash RITEH LIRS 3,001 26 3,027
Trade and other payables B 5 N E A FER IR (17,882) (3,850) (21,732)
Taxation payable FET B IE - (48) (48)
Deferred taxation EIEFIE - (215) (215)
Bank borrowings RITEE (637,006) - (637,0086)
Loan from a group company KE—EEERAFZER (579,582) (188,134) (767,716)
571,890 (148,480) 423,410
Gain on disposal is calculated as follows: HEREETERT
Perfect Raise Prestige
Group Gold Total
iR E FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Consideration received and 2R ERAKE
receivable 1,151,472 824,959 1,976,431
Net (assets) liabilities disposed of FTiE (BE) BEFE (571,890) 148,480 (423,410)
Sales of loan from a group HEKRE—HEEAFZ
company B3 (579,582) (188,134) (767,716)
Net gain on disposal H & Was F 2R - 785,305 785,305
Consideration received: ERE:
Cash received BURE 1,151,472 40,000 1,191,472
Included in liabilities associated 5 AF2018F3 31 B # 1k
with assets held for sale HEZEERBAE
at 31 March 2018 - 82,800 82,800
Settled through current account & —fERE R F 2
with a related company mBNAR P &1 - 702,159 702,159
Total consideration BRE 1,151,472 824,959 1,976,431

ft7s Cmperor International Holdings Limited RELE (B BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

42. Acquisition of Additional Interests in 42 WHB I B A R 2 REME =

Subsidiaries

During the year, Emperor E Hotel repurchased 24,585,000
(2019: 43,720,000) shares of its own shares at cash
consideration of HK$38,638,000 (2019: HK$72,611,000)
and then cancelled the shares, resulting in a deemed
increase in 1.35% (2019: 2.27%) equity interests in Emperor
E Hotel by the Group. The difference of HK$30,051,000
(2019: HK$26,199,000) between the consideration paid of
HK$38,638,000 (2019: HK$72,611,000) and the decrease
in the non-controlling interests of HK$68,689,000 (2019:
HK$98,810,000) was recognised directly in other reserves.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group acquired
15% of shareholdings of Luck United, in aggregate at a total
consideration of HK$460,000,000, which also includes the
acquisition of the shareholder’s loan of HK$36,750,000 due
and payable by Luck United to Big Wheel Limited upon the
completion on 19 October 2018. Details of this were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 8 October 2018. The
difference of HK$201,347,000 between the consideration paid
of HK$423,250,000 and the decrease in the non-controlling
interests of HK$624,597,000 was recognised directly in other
reserves.

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
further acquired another 5% of shareholdings of Luck United,
in aggregate at a total consideration of HK$155,000,000,
which also included the acquisition of the shareholder’s
loans of HK$12,250,000 due and payable by Luck United
to New Mode Limited upon the completion on 25 January
2019. Details of which were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 December 2018. The difference of
HK$67,116,000 between the consideration paid for equity
interests of HK$142,750,000 and the decrease in the non-
controlling interests of HK$209,866,000 was recognised
directly in other reserves.

RAFE HAERZEFENRSNKE
38,638,000/ JT (20194 : 72,611,000/% 7t )
BE [0 H § 524,585,000 f% 17 (20194 :

43,720,0008% & 17 ) - H & sF 85It - BB
BRI 2 IREEH [ 2 B AE R VE S 101.35%
(2019%F : 2.27% ) » B 11X {E38,638,000/& 7T
(2019%F : 72,611,000/ 7T ) B JE 28 5 4 25 0 >
68,689,000/ T (20194 : 98,810,000/ L) Z
7= %830,051,000/% 7T (20194 : 26,199,000/%
L) EEEREMEREAER -

RE 22019F3A31H IEFE AEB AL
K {8460,000,0007%8 7t Y B Luck UnitedZ 15%
A% - H A IR B 4R R20185E10 A 198 e Ak B
Luck United#& /K K F& 1 Big Wheel Limited 2 %
RE 36,750,000 7t B BBRIEEIEFBE
RAAEHEA2018F10A8H Z AEHWE

B 5 {8423,250,00078 7T B2 FE 4% A% 4 258k
624,597,000/ 7T < 7 §E201,347,000/48 7L E B
BERHAREARER -

AN B 2201953 A31H I FE  KAEE
LA #8 4K {8 155,000,000 7T # — 2 W B Luck
UnitedZ BB SN% AR 4E + B A 718 15 70 20194F
18258 52 BFLuck United%s & & & 1 New
Mode LimitedZ % 5 B #12,250,0007 7C° A
FAUIE BSIRF B E R AA R HHR20185F12
R27H 2 AEWEE - B IR (E 142,750,000
75 7T B JE 7R A 4 750 209,866,000 7T 2 =
%067,116,0008 T E B R EM F R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

43. Acquisition of Asset through Acquisition of

43 ZEBWEHMBEARWEEE

Subsidiary

In August 2019, the Group acquired property interests of
CentreHollywood, a commercial building located at No. 151
Hollywood Road, Hong Kong at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$595,000,000 through acquisition of the
subsidiary, Excel Pointer Limited. The property interests are
classified as investment properties.

44. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group'’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes amount due to an associate, amounts due to related
companies, amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries, unsecured notes, bank borrowings and leases
liabilities in notes 32, 33, 34, 35, 36 and 37 respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

REEE () BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

45. Financial Instruments

45. €M T B

(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) EMITEZE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Financial assets TREE

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

FREM T ER TS
ARBEZEHTE

Listed debt securities FHERKES 82,374 468,808
Derivative financial instruments MEEMIA
Designated as hedging instruments 5 A% T A - 11,415
Amortised cost b6 iDL
Receivables related to EM—IEERIEBZ
a development project e R IE 162,519 173,112
Deposit in designated bank HERMEGFHRIETE
account for development RITRP 2 FR
properties 9,194 9,696
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b FE Y GRIA 476,179 647,385
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 348 44,040
Short-term bank deposits HHRI TR 980,656 300,662
Bank balances and cash IR{TEEBR NS 2,943,493 3,643,816
4,572,389 4,818,711
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost b6 iz IDWN
Trade and other payables B 5 K EH At FET FRIE 897,805 1,035,824
Amount due to an associate FET — & R RIFRIE 87,556 33,652
Amounts due to related companies  E{I BFE A B FIE 1,105,010 1,229,228
Amounts due to non-controlling FETHIE A7) 2 FEFER%
interests of subsidiaries T R IE 41,090 46,200
Unsecured notes EERAER 5,161,766 5,921,047
Bank borrowings RITEE 20,779,392 18,448,387
28,072,619 26,714,338
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

45 BT H—4Z
(b) B EREERERBEK

45. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in above
table. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Several
subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, but the management considers
the amount of foreign currency sales and purchase is
insignificant. The management considers the Group
does not expose to significant foreign currency risk in
relation to transactions denominated in Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) and USD. Exposures on balances which are
denominated in MOP and USD in group entities with HK$
as functional currency are not considered significant as
MOP and USD are pegged to HKS$.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk in relation
to the outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items at the end of the reporting period,
which included pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, debt instruments,
bank borrowings and unsecured notes (except for
those USD denominated unsecured notes hedged
economically with the cross currency swap contract
at 31 March 2019). The sensitivity to foreign currency
risks arising from the outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items has been determined
based on the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rates of RMB and GBP against the
HKS$. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a reasonably possible change of 5% for exchange
rate of RMB and GBP against HK$ (2019: 5%), while
all other variables are held constant. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss for the year (2019: an
increase in profit for the year) where RMB strengthened
and GBP weakened against HK$. Where the RMB
weakened and GBP strengthened against HK$, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss for
the year (2019: profit for the year).

AEBFEERMT AN LR -G
ZEERMTAZFHBES A AN EAR
B-AHZSeRTAZAR BEMS
[ (SN LR ~ =R g e L At fEAR R
%) - ERERFREE SRR - anfaE
LSRR RN N - BB %
ERBETTEIEMES  BIRAKRK AR
R FAETHEE 26

™5 R

S m

SNE R B FE S R B AN R B R M A
REeRBZINEERES) 2 AR NAF]
ETHBARBIIEESR EEEERR
SNEEE 2 BB TEN  ERER /RN
BRAVRPIT (DRFT]) METEEZ
RPH NEE L EEREAINERE o
A FORFITT M RTTEAETT RN - B - 58
RUABTRNEEB ZEEERANR
FITTRETTEEZ R 2 BRI T EX

REEGNREHRR AR ZINEEEE
¥IgE (BEDEERITER  LHRT
FRCRITEBEES EBE TR R1T
BEREEHEE (201938318 MU
ENFMEZHR X EHis A #0EH
7 BRI RRRR AN ) ) AR INE R o
HARBZIINEEEEKIBEMEE Y
HNES RIS 2 SRR TS TR IR A RS B B 65
HBTZINEIER 2 ARO[ EE B
Fe FRFMAEEEARBHEEEN
BT 2 INETE R A IR 0] gE & E)5% (2019
F:5%)MATEEMESRIETERZ
BRE - TRIEBRAMARE L ETH
BEREEEETRE MFEHERD
(20195F : FEmAPEIN) o W ARE LA
TR E R EE B THE RIS FEEE
(2019%F : FEamH)) B RIZERER 2%
288 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

45. Financial Instruments — continued 45. €T A ,f

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEABREERERBEKR £
policies — continued

Market risk — continued mEEkE 2
Foreign currency risk — continued I mEfE—4E

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FET

RMB against HK$ ARBHET 2,418 3,703

GBP against HK$ BERABT (69,721) (78,774)

(67,303) (75,071)

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes.
As at 31 March 2020, the Group does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the management of
the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign exchange exposure
should the need arises. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
mainly had a cross currency swap contract to reduce its
exposure to potential variability of foreign currency risk
arising from changes in foreign exchange exposure in
USD denominated unsecured notes. The management
continuously monitored the foreign exchange exposure
and would consider hedging other significant foreign
currency risk should the need arose.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits, bank deposits included in bank
balances, debt instruments at FVTOCI, fixed coupon
rate unsecured notes and lease liabilities. The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
its variable-rate bank balances, amounts due to related
companies and bank borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from
the Group’s advances from related companies and bank
borrowings.

REBRBFERRINETECELEE
heEzEEEREARREN TSR
2020F3H31H + A& B #8 SN ¥ AR I
5 o SRTM - ANEEE TR B2 EERINE AR
&EAEEM%J‘%M@MI\MERHB“ °
502019¢3H31E| KEEFEHBERX

EiHE A MU R E T EE 2 BT
B INEIE R EE) 2 R FTE L 2 I
HOR BB R o B B B BB INES B
S M A5 B E M A IME RS (204
o

FIFAB

R S5 B U B AR TR - K
BT S ARITRABANBITIFR
BB TR AR BES EH
TARERE SR E TS R
E%ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂwoK%@ﬁﬁ
HEBRIRRTES  ENEEARRE
&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬁim%ﬂiﬂ%°

AEEZREREMNEER  EBEFR
REBERBREERR ZBARMRITEE
PREA 2 BBRTTRZEFRSKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

:l:

45. Financial Instruments — continued 45 b T B —Z4&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk — continued

The Group’s sensitivity to fair value interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to interest
rate for those fixed-rate debt instruments at FVTOCI
at the end of the reporting period. If interest rates had
been 100 basis points (2019: 100 basis points) higher
or lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s investments revaluation reserve would decrease
or increase by HK$509,000 (2019: HK$6,170,000) as a
result of the changes in the fair value of fixed-rate debt
instruments at FVTOCI.

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for the above mentioned financial assets and liabilities
at the end of the reporting period and management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rate and assuming that it took place at the beginning of
each year and held constant throughout the respective
year.

Except for bank balances and deposits using 5 basis
points (2019: 5 basis points), if interest rates had been
100 basis points (2019: 100 basis points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, the potential effect on
loss/profit for the year is as follows:

(b) Bt %5 B

ERERBER—Z

TG Rk 2
FIE R fE— &
$$l5#$&¢%ﬁﬂ§%ﬁ;ﬁlﬂlﬁz§
BEMEERETEAREBECERLT
EMFERRRETHEE AL BEFNER
8 BB RKE o i FI 2R ek T BE 1001 2
25 (20194F : 1001EIE 2, ) i FT A H fh A &
REMEFTE A AEENREEHHEG
BREEANERBBEMEEEKETER
AEBEEZEEIANAREBEESRS
2k 3% 11509,0007% 7T (20194F : 6,170,000
FETT) °

AEERSRENRER 2 HRE TR
ﬁ%tﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’é#&i,ﬁh?z*u
RE N EEERSF XA 6
HZ AR R REE B R ATE ]Iﬂ?j‘”%:?Az
FRRTIE M T LAEE

B iR 1T 4585 R AF X UASIE B B (20194 -
SIEEZL) BEYESN - 4T E £ FH100EE
25 (20194  100fAIEE) RFTA HibE =
RIFTE - AHAFEEE w282 E
FEMT:

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Decrease (increase) in loss for the year £ E#EE 2 (3E10)
(2019: increase (decrease) in profit (20194 : F &% F & in
for the year) (BA))
— Bank balances —RI1THEH 274 560
— Amounts due to related companies ~ — ETEIE A (9,227) (10,264)
— Bank borrowings —iRITIEE (162,228) (144,108)
(171,181) (153,812)
If interest rates had been lower in an opposite magnitude WFEREREFRERMEEMEER
and all other variables held constant, the potential effect T%T\“ B ZEEN RS R ER 2B

on the results would be equal and opposite.

E/j
G
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRKMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &
45. eI E &
(b) BBEABRERRERBE &

45. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Market risk — continued

Other price risk

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, the management
monitors market price exposure and will consider
hedging significant market price exposure should the
need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to other price risk on debt
instruments at FVTOCI at the end of the reporting period.
If the market bid price on such listed debt securities
had been 5% (2019: 5%) higher or lower, the potential
effect on investments revaluation reserve would increase
or decrease by HK$4,119,000 (2019: HK$23,440,000)
arising from the debt instruments at FVTOCI.

Credit risk management and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties at the end
of reporting period are arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
trade balances individually. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

During the year, lifetime ECL of HK$96,000 (2019:
HK$35,826,000) for certain trade receivables were
recognised as the management considered the amounts
from certain customers was credit-impaired, and
HK$385,000 (2019: nil) for certain trade receivables is
reversed upon settlement from these customers of which
recognised as credit-impaired previously.

The management has also assessed all available forward
looking information, including but not limited to the
economic outlook and subsequent settlement of these
customers. As at 31 March 2020, impairment allowance
with an aggregate balance of HK$46,202,000 (2019:
HK$46,587,000) represents individually credit-impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate gross carrying
amount of HK$59,102,000 (2019: HK$59,487,000) as the
management considered the outstanding balances from
these customers were uncollectible.

miEEkE—E
AftEKERE
pEBHEMEE Rt EAREEZE
BLAMES BEESERMSERER
KSR & BN E B EATSERR

G o
A

TXHREDTIIBEREARZEB
HrmkEta A BEZEEIA
MEMERRBRET - WxE EMESE
A5 E AE EF s T#E5% (20194 -
5% ) BEBEMEEKRSTEAABE
CEBIAEAZRESGHREEZE
528 18.4% N 5 404, 119,000% 7T (2019
£ : 23,440,000/ 7T ) ©

ERRRER R AN
AEBEE ST RBEDAALET
BIEM &S AR ERBE R BA
EEER IR EHANBRRENIE
EERRBORAE BEHE-

AR EERREERK ~AEEEEED
Zk—<EFARETFEERE FEE
R EAEEIR T - AR EREUR EFE E
Y Bl R E RS o Lo - AEBARBETREME
EERIR A EE R & 5 R TR E T
EeoRltME EFRAAEEZEFER
RE AR
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(2019%F + ) B X E R P B E -

EEEINEHE AT A R FARIEIEE R BFE
BRRREEISMNZETP 2 BER
H o A20204E3 A31 1 © & $£46,202,0005
7T (2019%F : 46,587,000/ 7T ) BB B &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

45. Financial Instruments — continued 45. T B —42

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) I EREERERBIKR &
policies — continued
Credit risk management and impairment assessment — FEARKREERRENG—

continued

Lifetime ECL for the remaining trade receivables with
an aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$30,201,000
(2019: HK$94,745,000) was insignificant and thus
negligible to be provided by the Group due to the
low probability of default of those debtors based on
historical credit loss experience. The management has
also assessed all available forward looking information,
including but not limited to the economic outlook
and subsequent settlement of these customers, and
concluded that the credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding trade receivables is insignificant.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

ERELEEEBES ZEEHAEY
MERIE  AEBEFHES T E S EKRGE
#2 BR B A $£30,201,00078 7T (20194F
94,745,000/ 7T) K & BiTE BRI B BB
TEKNBAIZIE Tt EIEE ﬁepﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EARNEMER BIRETRMNEE
ShZERPZIRERE Ifﬁ‘ﬂj,mﬁw
BAAEEKREEE S EKFBEFESRZ
ERRRI TEKX-

TRIRREBEBC T ERE B EKGRIA
BANEHEMEEERZES:

Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)

2HEHEESE

(FERE)

HK$°000

FERT

As at 1 April 2018 R20184F4 18 11,470
Change due to financial instruments 2018 F4A1AERN &/ LA

recognised as at 1 April 2018: ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬂﬁ :

— impairment losses recognised R EEE 3,647
New trade receivables originated during the year ﬁWFEZ%ﬁi‘E%JEH&m 32,179
Write-off S (709)
As at 31 March 2019 7201943 H31H 46,587
Change due to financial instruments R2019F4A1ARN e/ LA

recognised as at 1 April 2019: FREER &) :

— impairment losses reversed —REEEEE (385)
New trade receivables originated during the year ~ FRES 2 #EE 5 EINGIA 96
Write-off g (96)
As at 31 March 2020 A2020%3H31H 46,202

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2020, lifetime ECL MisE: EH Z=202063A318 LFE SLATE E

REERBECESERFBZ2HE
Hi{Z & /5183850008 TEZERF
HERER - R AFE AR FAE
FE-HWERDERTEREEER
BESRRAERTHELHEES
1896,00078 7T (20194 : 32,179,0007
JC) B E2019F3A31HILEFE B
%@E%%%F%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ AR
s iR 2 FUESLE 5 UG IER

%Eﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ%%lﬁﬂﬁ&&?,woﬁ%m°

of HK$385,000 for trade receivables is reversed upon
settlement from these customers of which recognised as
credit-impaired previously. During the year, lifetime ECL of
HK$96,000 (2019: HK$32,179,000) for trade receivables
was recognised due to amounts originated during the
year which had been defaulted and transferred to credit-
impaired. During the year ended 31 March 2019, life-
time ECL of HK$3,647,000 for trade receivables was
recognised due to amounts recognised at the beginning
of the reporting period as the management considered
certain customers were credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

45. Financial Instruments — continued 45. @ T A ,f
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEABREERERBEKR £

policies — continued

Credit risk management and impairment assessment —
continued

For the deposits in designated bank account for
development properties, pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and bank balances, impairment
allowance was insignificant and thus negligible to be
made since the management considers the probability
of default is negligible as such deposits are placed in
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and have low credit
risk.

For the other receivables, including chips on hand, with
an aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$412,486,000
(2019: HK$539,740,000) and receivables related to a
development project with an aggregate gross carrying
amount of HK$162,519,000 (2019: HK$173,112,000), in
non-trade nature, impairment allowance was insignificant
and thus not provided since the management considers
the probability of default is minimal after assessing the
counterparties’ financial background and creditability.

For the debt instruments at FVTOCI, the Group only
invests in debt securities with low credit risk. The
Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI are all listed bonds
that are graded in high credit ratings among credit-
rating agencies and therefore are considered to be
low credit risk investments. During the years ended 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2019, impairment allowance
was insignificant and thus was not provided since the
management considers the probability of default is
minimal.

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount
that the Group has guaranteed under the respective
contracts was HK$941,600,000 (2019: HK$941,600,000)
as at 31 March 2020. Details of the financial guarantee
contracts are set out in note 20. At the end of the
reporting period, the management assessed the financial
position of that joint venture and the fair value of the
collateral pledged by the joint venture to the bank, and
concluded that there has been no significant credit
risk arising from the financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly, the impairment allowance was insignificant
and thus was not provided for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

45. Financial Instruments — continued 45. €@ T A ,f
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HEEBEERERREK 2
policies — continued
Liquidity risk MENE & E

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and unsecured
notes as significant source of liquidity. At 31 March
2020, based on the existing levels of bank balances
and the existing banking facilities available, the Group
will be able to meet its future cash flow requirements.
Accordingly, the management considers that the Group’s
liquidity risk is minimal.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilites and lease liabilities and the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings, with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

REERBERR  AEBEEB IR
RekReTEYMEERERSRNAM
REBEEMRALEERSRERB
HEB KT -BEEEEBRITEE Z/E
- Wi B ST B

REBKRBIRITEE MEERRIBERR
BES 2 EE KR R202063H318 -
ERBERITESRKFE R EBSAZE
BHRITEE & liﬂlﬂ‘bﬁiﬂixfﬁ%m
EZEZZ o It - '/:E)TVIE B Y= ViNS .2/}IL,
HE L ARERE -

TREHAEBZIETECREBERE
EREZB TANEIHB ZF B LRy
BREAEEEABEZRFEHZE
BeaErHEaBIRIRREREM
fRELe LHR MR BETER AR
TEETIIAKFEFEEREA - T miE
ITEBTEEENR TR - Kb IEPTE
CRBEZERAPNRECHEER
HHEIMEE »

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 &%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

45. Financial Instruments — continued 45. e T H—4Z
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HEEBREBERERBKEK —£&
policies — continued
Liquidity risk — continued nEBESREE 2
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. ZRPREMNERASHERE - ANER
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the F B BIRALIR @ FBARIR R & B R 2 FI| &
undiscounted amount is based on interest rate at the end 1Fi o

of the reporting period.
Liquidity table REBEZ R

Weighted  Less than

average 1 year or 1 year Total Total
effective  repayable to Over undiscounted carrying

interest rate  on demand 5 years 5years  cash flows amounts
mEFY  HSMEF KEER

BERAZ REXRE 1F35F S¥5L REREAE AKEE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

At 31 March 2020 #2020F3431A
Trade and other payables EHRHMENTE - 897,805 - - 897,805 897,805
Amount due to an associate R —RHEARIHE - 87,556 - - 87,556 87,556
Amounts due to related companies  JES EIE A A1FUA 2.80% 1,105,010 = - 1105010 1,105,010
Amounts due to non-controling BRI EREZ
interests of subsidiaries FERER - 41,090 - - 41,090 41,090
Variable-rate bank borrowings EBENEER 3.05% 5174895 14,012,352 3,690,417 22,877,664 20,779,392
Unsecured notes ERAZE 460% 1,324,732 4,203,662 99520 5,627,914 5,161,766
Lease liabilties HEAE 3.66% 5,929 13,891 40,550 60,370 44,359
Financial guarantee (Nofe) HBER (ML) - 941,600 - - 941,600 -
9578617 18229905 3,830,487 31,639,009 28,116,978
At 31 March 2019 201938318
Trade and other payables BHRHMEN TR - 1035824 - - 1035824 1035824
Amount due to an associate e —MEEARTNE - 33,652 - - 33,652 33,652
Amounts due to related companies  FEISEAE A A)ZA 3.16% 523,322 809,267 - 1332589 1,229,228
Amounts due to non-controling R —RMB AR Z
interests of a subsidiary FRRERTE - 46,200 - - 46,200 46,200
Variable-rate bank borrowings EERAEE 292% 3507499 12112002 4877351 20496852 18,448,387
Unsecured notes EEAZE 472% 1572394 4845416 - 6417810 5921,047
Financial guarantee (ote) BER (ML) - 941,600 - - 941,600 -
7,660,491 17,766,685 4877351 30,304,527 26,714,338
Note: The amount included above for financial guarantee is BisE: PRI ERY ©EANERS YT
the maximum amount the Group could be forced to RHRE NEER R ARELER
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed EMERSBELEEZESESE - RER
amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to MEHKR B NEBRARE A L
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the BEAREZESNERBESRE A L
reporting period, the Group considers that it is more likely MUEEHER TR S FRIBEFRIEER
than not that such an amount will not be payable under the ErgeMmBaE  MIRERE 2 A8t
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change M RIEURA R 5 F i EE R E
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming WHRIEHIREEER Z A fe k-

under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

45. Financial Instruments — continued

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity table — continued

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “less than 1 year or repayable on
demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31 March 2020, the aggregate carrying amounts of
these bank loans amounted to HK$22,875,000 (2019:
HK$35,041,000). Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the Directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The Directors
believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid
within three years (2019: four years) after the reporting
date in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. As a result, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to HK$12,051,000 and HK$11,821,000 (2019:
HK$12,990,000 and HK$23,972,000) under the time
band of “less than 1 year” and “1 year to 5 years”
respectively.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

45. Financial Instruments — continued A5, e T H &
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMI A AAEBEFE—Z
instruments — continued
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs
StHEE AREE AABESR HERMRIERAYE
2020 2019
HK$’000  HK$000
Tz TR
Cross currency swap - 11,415  Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based
contract classified as on forward currency exchange rates (from observable yield
derivative financial curves at the end of the reporting period) and contracted
instruments in the currency exchange rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
consolidated statement of the credit risk of various counterparties.
financial position
@7%7% Eﬁf&ﬂk/ﬁﬁz %2/2& ﬁﬁiﬂfﬁimug *Xﬁimué%@#LHﬂm\M[T (;KQ i
TE2BIAZINES HRZTEERGIE) ROEINEER  WRRIRERHE
BHaK FEERR LT UMRMME -
Debt instruments at FVTOCI 82,374 468,808 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.
FRHEMPEKRE FAR ERTSEARE-
AREE/EBIA
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during REZ2020F3A31H IEFE - E1H - F
the year ended 31 March 2020. AR EREE 3 2 PRIl A o
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERAENGEE MR FITE AT
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at HENTREENECRABBZERAER
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements HAARBEHES-

approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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46. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From 46. MEFTEBEE 2B EHE
Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities Ti%i%zzlx‘i@ﬂééEﬁFiZﬁ%ﬁ@’@
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- HIESNIERSEH mETHELZBEDN
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BEmet &Rk KBS REFNEAEELR
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, EReREXRTHEAENRE (BAR)E/EE)
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows EAZIRERE-

as cash flows from (used in) financing activities.

Amounts
Amounts due to non-
dueto controlling  Amount
Interest Bank  Unsecured related interests of  duetoan Lease  Dividend
payable - borrowings notes companies subsidiaries  associate liabilities  payable Total
ERHE B
EER  EREE NRZEE  -BRE
ERNE  BORE B DRFE REEIE Q9N HERE  EARR a8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tér Tz Tz TEx TEx Tz TEr TR TEx
(noie 36)  (note35)  (note 33)  (note34)  (note3)  (note 37)
(Witse)  (Wis)  (Witzs)  (Wis)  (Widz)  (B25)

At 1 Aprl 2018 RO018E4A18 39454 ATAN 112 6776088 2,704,226 107,600 - - - 26,818,480
Financing net cash flows BERLTETE (63628) 220633  (830649) (786489)  (61400) 46631 o431 (108214)
Non-cash transacions FReRS - - - (702,159) - (12979 - - (715138)
Dividend declared EERRS - - - - - - - 434312 434312
Fair value adjustments DAEERE - - - (3,664) - - - - (3664)
Currency realignments gHHE - (108852 (2984) - - - - - (111.83%)
Transferred to liabilies associated  EAEHBARIEHE 2 EER

with assets classffed asheld for B2 &

e NIE ) - - - - - - (o4T500)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - (637,008) - - - - - - (B37,008)
Interest expenses HlERT 854,367 - 7502 17314 - - - - 879213
At 31 March 2019 H2019E3A31H 30,193 18448387 5921047 1,229,228 46,200 33,652 - - 25,708,707
Adjustment upon application o [EREAHEHLENE 1655

HKFRS 16 (nofe ) LRE () - - - - - - 2166 - 21666
At 1 Apri 2019 (restated) R2019F4R18 (EE5]) 30,193 18448387 5921047 1,229,228 46,200 33,652 21,666 - 25,736,373
Finencing netcash flows RERLNEIE O63747) 2430827  (TAS66) (156467)  (5110) M6 (790) (393150 229490
Non-cash transaction FREXH - - - - - 1291 - - 12979
Dividend declared BERRE - - - - - - - 393152 393,152
Fair value adjustments DhEESRE - = - 329 = = = - 39
Currency realignments R - (101,720 (425619) - - (351 - - (147910)
New leases entered Mg - - - - - - 18452 - 18452
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAF - 1,898 - - - - - - 1,698
Interest expenses B8R 963,468 - 7,904 - - - 1,031 - 972403
At 31 March 2020 202037318 29914 20,779,392 5,161,766 1,105,010 41,090 87,556 44,359 - 21,249,087
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

47. Pledge of Assets 47 EEIKH
(a) As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, certain assets (@) PR2020%3 H31H &201943H31H » A<
of the Group were pledged to banks to secure banking EEETEENRBFRITIMEARE
facilities granted to the Group. The carrying values of EEFRBITEE R ZEEENHRE
these assets at the end of the reporting period were as HiIKkZEBEmEWT :
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Bank deposits RITIFK - 43,700
Investment properties KEMZE 39,068,214 42,833,949
Properties under development for sale  #{EH & 2 B E R YE 1,914,946 1,787,071
Buildings, including relevant EF (PEEEEEHEE
leasehold land in Hong Kong + ) 346,603 410,776
Hotel properties, including relevant  SE/E¥¥ (B1EBEES
leasehold land in Hong Kong FHE L) 2,614,531 3,013,511
Right-of-use assets EREEE 541,802 -
Prepaid lease payments A HEKIE - 531,924
Others (Note) HAth (B77E) 48,722 69,376
44,534,818 48,690,307
Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets Mizk: HilEmAEEETHEMEE(FTEAS
of the Group including principally property, plant and EIEEAIN D E RN RE TF
equipment (other than hotel properties), inventories, trade & B RAMEWREIRITER) 2
and other receivables and bank deposits. TETE A -
(b) The Group also had a bank deposit of HK$348,000 (b) ZAREBEINEIRTTIF5/348,000/8 7T (2019
(2019: HK$340,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the £ : 340,000/ 7T ) THEA T RITUAERAR
use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party to EEFRA—REZHFIRBZMEER K
the Group. Ao
48. Commitments 48, FEIE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TETT
Contracted for but not provided in the B &T#MERRERA B HHREK
consolidated financial statements, T FIEELBE
net of deposits paid, in respect of: (MIBRENET2) -
— investment properties —REYE 387,230 1,064,522
— property, plant and equipment /ER Y E ] 4,658 5,657
— properties under development —REHEZERTME
for sale 299,099 360,485
690,987 1,430,664

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

49. Operating Lease Commitments 9 KEHE AR
The Group as lessee EEBEREEA
2019
HK$'000
FET
Minimum lease payments paid and payable under FHEWMEAFED K
operating leases during the year in respect of Nz EHEREES
rented premises 2,863
At 31 March 2019, the Group had commitments for future R201953A31H  AEEMBIREETET
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating BE SEIERAEREYE 2 ol By
leases in respect of rented premises for certain of its staff HEBNARBRINREESSEAE  He
quarter, carpark and warehouse, which fell due as follows: SITERGAT -
2019
HK$'000
FETT
Within one year —FR 2,391
In the second to fifth years inclusive MFEERF (BEEBERTF) 1,521
3,912
Leases were negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 2 years BEMBAEEERH T BN F1225 T
and the rentals were pre-determined and fixed. L M NHBELEENAE TS
The Group as lessor AEBEERAERAA
At 31 March 2020, minimum lease payments receivable on M20205E3 318 « EWIRE v IKFHE IR
leases are as follows: NS
2020
HK$°000
TR
Within one year —FR 847,403
In the second year FF 504,566
In the third year F=F 275,279
In the fourth year Euikes 136,910
In the fifth year FRF 107,832
Over five years RELE 123,967
1,995,957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

49. Operating Lease Commitments — continued O KEMHERE—~Z
The Group as lessor — continued TEBEEREBAA-Z
At 31 March 2019, the Group had contracted with tenants 201953 A31 R » ANEE D BB ATA) - ARt
to receive the following future minimum lease payments in HEMENR BRI T 2 =EBESE  H
respect of premises in the investment properties, which fell BEASITHNT -

due as follows:

2019
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —FR 1,014,018
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEERF (BIEERME) 1,314,137
Over five years RAFELE 208,602
2,536,757
Certain premises in the Group’s investment properties have AEEZREMENBE TYHEERP
committed tenants for the tenancy ranging from 1 to 15 years - HE N FAE15F (2019F : 12155 ) T
(2019: 1 to 15 years) and the rentals are pre-determined at L Ml hEEEERBBESFE Lt
fixed amounts except for certain leases of which contingent RAEEURBEAEZSAZKEHEERER
rentals are charged based on the percentage of sales. The BEAo
lease commitments presented above is based on the existing
committed monthly minimum lease payments.
At 31 March 2020, operating lease rental committed from 202053 A31H - FEH AR 2 K EHE
related parties fall due as follows: e ET
2020
HK$°000
FTERT
Within one year —FR 142,506
In the second year F_F 63,865
In the third year F=&F 32,348
In the fourth year EJuikes 7,011
In the fifth year EFRF 4,011
Over five years RELE 8,400
258,141
At 31 March 2019, operating lease rental committed from F2019F3H318 - BE H iR E 2 KEHE
related parties fell due as follows: e HEINT
2019
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —FR 202,922
In the second year to fifth years inclusive MEEZRF (BIEEREME) 179,161
Over five years AFMNUE 11,053
393,136
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50. Major Non-Cash Transactions 50. XEFBAERS
During the year, additions of investment properties and RANEE I EBYE R IR NERE R
property, plant and equipment of HK$33,709,000 (2019: B9 Bl /A33,709,000 7T (20194 : 67,939,000
HK$67,939,000) and HK$15,424,000 (2019: HK$5,354,000), BT ) ;& 15,424,00078 7T (20194F : 5,354,00078
respectively, were settled by utilising deposits paid in prior ) JyEBERFFEMNEISAS
year.
During the year, interest income from a joint venture of MNAREE 15,505,000/ ¢ (20194 :
HK$15,505,000 (2019: HK$14,125,000) is settled through the 14,125,000/ 7T) 7] — A & & 1 WAL F&
current account with the joint venture. WATEBE S E L RBEP & -
During the year ended 31 March 2019, consideration received R ELZ2019F3A31H IEFE + ) & Prestige
for the disposal of Prestige Gold of HK$702,159,000 was Goldz B YK 1B702,159,0007% 7t T i B8 i
settled through the current account with related companies. NEZRENBEP &1 -
During the year ended 31 March 2019, amount of REZ2019F3A31BLFE —EH &
HK$49,408,000 was repaid by an associate on behalf of the RAREAEER —HBEARRRESR
Group to a shareholder of an associate. 49,408,000/ 7T °
51. Related Party Transactions 51.BERRS
(a) Other than disclosed in notes 7, 8, 9, 19, 20, 26, 30, (a) FMI7¥7 -8-9-19-20-26-30-32 33+
32, 33, 34, 41 and 49, the Group also had the following 34 M RAONFTEREEE N AEE TS R
significant transactions with related parties: BETET TIERAR S
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FETT
Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung in his #5181 (UAEEEEE
capacity as a patron of the Group's B Z &) X1 AE
VIP rooms 352 949
Financial services expenses to MEEA RN RREE
related companies 960 960
Interest income from a joint venture [ —fE& & FEWELZ
FBHA 15,505 14,125
Interest expenses to related companies 7 #8:E A &) 4 %) 8 104,815 134,614
Purchases of property, plant and MEEARBEME
equipment and merchandising e LB RREEm
goods from related companies 698 1,619
Rental income from related companies [AIf8:E8 A AU EL 2 T4 187,676 220,302
Secretarial fee to a related company [ —EER AL HiE
IR & 828 940
Share of administrative expenses by — BE:E A B DT TE R X
related companies 72,646 93,664
Note: Related companies are companies controlled by relevant Mist: BEARBBGELERBIZARERA
private discretionary trusts of which Dr. Albert Yeung is the ZFABREFER 2 AR MiZHEE
founder and settlor and Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander EERBEERZHAZ— IHETE
is one of the eligible beneficiaries or controlled by certain E St /NI
Directors.
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51. Related Party Transactions — continued S1.EBERRS &

(b) The key management personnel of the Company are (b) ARAFZEREEABAES - HBEHH
Directors. Details of the remunerations are set out in note ZFEIBE A MEE0
10.

(c) The Group had entered into an accommodation contract (c) AEBEEHBIELIIL—HEFEL"

Bt AEBEGE I REBE AREME
FRARNAAEE —EMEELEEE
(PREAZYEZHBRAI)BEZE
FKEF  ERERAREBIREERRG 2
e B Z2019F3A3THIEFE % TE
& 2 5 HE & AR ¥ /2,659,000
TTAEFTA L8 201856 A 13H 48 1k -

with Dr. Albert Yeung under which the Group provided
Dr. Albert Yeung and his associates the exclusive right
to use and occupy a property of the Group as rent-
free quarter (including related expenses in relation to
the usage of the property) as his emolument for his
services as a consultant of the Group. The market rental
values and the related expenses of the quarter for the
year ended 31 March 2019 was HK$2,659,000. The
accommodation contract was terminated on 13 June
2018.

52. R RB 2B EER
KA T AR2020FE3 A31H k201963 A31H 2

52. Financial Information of the Company
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March 2020

and 31 March 2019 is as follows: FREERDT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Non-current asset EMENEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARZIRE 1,650,024 1,726,747
Current assets mBNEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i Ay NGIE S 11,674,008 12,716,464
Other receivables H b EUEIR 502 458
Bank balances and cash IRITEHRNIRS 526 248
11,675,036 12,717,170
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H {th fE 1 5RIE 13,047 12,498
Taxation payable JERITIE 18 4
Unsecured notes EIRAER -
— due within one year —F R EIHF 1,092,563 1,298,357
1,105,628 1,310,859
Net current assets MBNEEFRE 10,569,408 11,406,311
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREARE 12,219,432 13,133,058
Non-current liability ERBAE
Unsecured notes EIAER -
— due after one year —F1&EIH 4,069,203 4,622,690
Net assets BEFRE 8,150,229 8,510,368
Capital and reserves BAR R
Share capital [N 36,775 36,775
Reserves (Note) () 8,113,454 8,473,593
Total equity HmEE 8,150,229 8,510,368

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

52. Financial Information of the Company — 52. RN R 2B ER &
continued
Note: Hiat:
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
IR 4% 18 A Bk R A EEE ]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET THET THERT FHERT
At 1 April 2018 M2018F4A1H 4,563,248 109,474 4,198,024 8,870,746
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNEEEBKG
income for the year - - 22 22
2018 final dividend paid Bk20185 R AAAR B - - (224,330) (224,330)
2019 interim dividend paid B R2019%F 1 B % B - - (172,845) (172,845)
At 31 March 2019 M201943H31H 4,563,248 109,474 3,800,871 8,473,593
Profit and total comprehensive FEaNETEAEKR
income for the year - - 260 260
2019 final dividend paid B2IR2019F REIR S - - (231,685) (231,685)
2020 interim dividend paid k20204 1 BRAR & - - (128,714) (128,714)
At 31 March 2020 72020563 A31H 4,563,248 109,474 3,440,732 8,113,454
53. Particulars of Subsidiaries 53. B A RFIE
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARTNMEHRZ FEWBATFE
at the end of the reporting period, are as follows: FOENE
Issued ordinary
Place of share capitall Proportion of issued
incorporation/ contribution/  share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital' by the Group  Principal activities
BRAEER
i/ bx/%8/  AKERE
WRARER EENY ifEs SRORAZME TEXE
2020 2019
% %
Directly held
EBRE
Emperor Corporate Management BVl USDT = 10000 100.00 Investment holding
AEREER LBRAES E3 REZR
Emperor Hotel Group Limited BVI USDT © 10000 100.00 Investment holding
AEEEEEERAT LBRAES E3 REZR
Emperor Property Development Limited BVI USDT = 10000 100.00 Investment holding
AENEFERERAT LBRAES E3 REZR
EPIL Bl USD1 10000 100.00  Invesiment holding
AENERE LBRAES E3 REZR

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &
53.MBARFIE—4&

ARRRHERARZ T EHBRRIFE
mr: —&

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@)
at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:

- continued

Place of

Issued ordinary
share capital/

Proportion of issued

incorporation/ contribution/  share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital' by the Group  Principal activities
BRAEER
iYL/ B&/t8/  xEEKE
WRARER EENY ifEs SRORAZME TEXE
20200 2019
% %
Indirectly held
[
Able Elegant Hong Kong 134285 © 9285 7000 Food and beverage operation
£E B £heE
Actmore Estate Limited Hong Kong 1000000 ~ 10000 100.00 Property investment
REERARLA B ELE
All Max Limited Hong Kong 11 100000 100.00 Property investment
BRERAT B ESES
Asia Palace Limited Hong Kong 1710000 10000 Property development and investment
AnARAH B MELRRRE
Billion Ideal Limited Hong Kong 1710000 10000 Property development
[ERARAT B YESEE
Champ Billion Limited Hong Kong 11 100000 100.00 Property investment
EXBRAT B NERE
Gentury Creations Limited Hong Kong 10,000 © 100.000 100.00 Property investment
tHRARARAT B NERE
Emperor (Beijing) Real Estate Development The PRC RMB1,511,380,000 = 100000 100.00 Property investment
Company Limitec? hE AR#1511,380,0007C NERE
S (SR EHEFRERLER
Emperor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.? The PRC RMB1,807,598,068 = 10000 100.00 Property development
RE (LB BRARP hEl ABRH1,807,598,0987C NEER
Emperor Ampersand Limited Partnership UK GBP100 = 10000 100.00 Property Investment
£ 10054 NERE
Emperor (Xiamen) Real Estate The PRC USD5,000,000 ~ 10000 100.00 Property development and investment
Investments Limitec? hE 5,000,000 7T NFERRRE

RE (B HERRARARL

Emperor International Holdings Limited

REKE (B BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE
53. MtBARIFIE—4&

AR ﬂ%ﬁ%%%ZE%W%@ﬂﬁ%
W 4

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@)
at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:
— continued

Issued ordinary

Place of share capitall Proportion of issued

incorporation/ contribution/  share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital'’ ~ bythe Group  Principal activities
BRAEER
i/ Bx/%8/  AKERE
WEARER EENE AfmER  BRORAZMA TEXR
2020 2019
% %
Indirectly held - continued
BEEE-£
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 © 100.00 10000 Invesiment holding
AEREBEARERAR B REZR
Emperor Entertainment Hot el Investment Limited? BVIMacau USD50 | 6898  67.63  Investment holding
AEREBERERRAR ABRRER/ A NET REZR
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Management Limited*  Macau MOP25,000 | 5520  54.10 Provision of project financing services
AEREEEERERAD A 25 000%F T REUAARERS
Emperor E Hotel Bermuda/Hong Kong 123424 6898  67.63 Investment holding
REREERE ARE/ER REERK
Emperor Financial Management Limited Hong Kong 100 © 10000 100.00 Provision of treasury Services to group companies
ASHBERERAR B mEBR AR ERE
Emperor Hotel Management Limited (Formerly known Hong Kong 2 | 10000 100.00 Hotel operations
as Emperor Hotel (HK) Limited) Bk BEEE
ASEEERERAR
Emperor Investment Limited Hong Kong 1000 © 10000 100.00 Provision of treasury services to group companies
AEHERRAT MEBRDRBAHRE
Emperor Investment (Management) Limited Hong Kong 100 © 10000 100.00 Provision of management services
B RILERRS
Emperor Project Management (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 © 10000 100.00 Provision of project management services
RETRRE (BR)RRAA B YRR E RS
Emperor Property Agency Limited Hong Kong 100 © 100.00 100.00 Provision of property agency services
REMEREERAR B RENZRERS
Excel Painter Limited Hong Kong 1 100,00 - Property investment
ERARAT B VESE

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RmE
For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 53.MtB A B E—42&

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARRINFEH R EEMBARFE
at the end of the reporting period, are as follows: AN —4F

- continued

Place of

Issued ordinary
share capital/

Proportion of issued

incorporation/ contribution/  share capital held

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital'’ ~ bythe Group  Principal activities
ERTEER

AL/ R&/X8/  XEEKE

. Pk EENY s BERAORAZLH IEER
2020 2019
% %

Indirectly held - continued
BEEE-4
Fai lek Limitada Macau MOP25,000 © 10000 100.00 Property investment
BRARAA A 2500087 NERE
Famous Awards Limited BVIIUK USDT © 10000 100.00 Property development and investment

iBRuis /48 E3 MELRRRE
Gold Shine Investment Limited Hong Kong 2~ 10000 100.00 Property investment
RERARRAA B ESE
(Golden Pegasus Investment Limited Hong Kong 100000 ~ 10000 100.00 Property investment
ERFEXERAA B ESE
Grand Emperor Entertainment & Hotel (Macau) Limited*  Macau MOP500,000 = 55200 5410 Provision of hotel and catering services
EERETE (2F) BRAR! 1y 500000£M7 REBERERRS
Headwise Investment Limited Hong Kong 2~ 10000 100.00 Property investment
BARARRAA Bk ETE
Hill Concept Limited Hong Kong 1710000 10000 Property development
EEERAT B MEER
Inn Hotel Macau Limited® Macau MOP100,000 = 6898 6763 Provision of hotel and catering services
AR EEERAR A 100,000F5 70 REBERERRH
I Soi Limitada Macau MOP25,000 © 100.00 100.00 Property investment
fRER AR 1y 25,0002M7 ESE
[ Veng Limitada Macau MOP25,000 © 100.00 100.00 Property investment
fekERAA A 25,0002M7 ESE
Keen Millon Limited BVIMacau USD1 5520 5410 Hotel entertainment

ABRIES/2N I BERE

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 53. B ARFE—42&
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (a) ARRNBEEREEZNMBARFFE
at the end of the reporting period, are as follows: W -4
- continued
Issued ordinary
Place of share capitall Proportion of issued
incorporation/ contribution/  share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital'’ ~ bythe Group  Principal activities
BRALER
e/ Bx/8/  xEERE
WEAEAR EENY ifEs SRORAZLE TEER
2020 2019
% %
Indirectly held - continued
BEEE-£
Luck United BVIMacau USD10000 © 5520  54.10  Investment holding
ZBRAER/ M 1000027 RERR
Mori Investments Limited Hong Kong 2~ 100000 100.00 Property investment
B UESE
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments Limited Hong Kong 17 10000 100.00 Operation of serviced apartments
B B2RHALE
Motive Drive Limited Hong Kong 100 © 10000 100.00  Property investment
BIRERAT B nERE
National Goal Limited Hong Kong 2~ 100000 10000 Property investment
BERRAT B UESE
Planwing Limited Hong Kong 2~ 100000 10000 Property investment
N Bk ESE
Precision Faith Limited® Macau MOP100,000 =~ 6898 6763 Gaming operation and provision of gaming
REERAEP A 100,000 0 related marketing and promotion services
BYABREHEVEBREREARY
Quick Gain Investments Limited® BVI USD1 6898 6763 Investment holding
ABRNES E38 REZR
Richorse Limited Hong Kong 2~ 10000 10000 Property investment
B nERE
Right Achieve Limited B USD1 5520 5410  Investment holding
ERBRAR ABRNES E38 REZR
Shineon Investments Limited BVIIUK USDT 10000 100.00 Property investment
ABRAHE/4E E38 nERE
Upton Limited Hong Kong 2~ 100000 10000 Property development
BELERAT Bk UESE

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 53.MtBARIFIE 42
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) AR ﬂﬁé#&%ﬁﬁ%ZE%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁjﬁi’%
at the end of the reporting period, are as follows: AR A&
— continued
Issued ordinary
Place of share capitall  Proportion of issued
incorporation/ contribution/  share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital'’ ~ bythe Group  Principal activities
BRIEER
iYL/ Ba/t8/  xEERE
WRAREH EEHY e BRORAZMA TERR
2020 2019
% %

Indirectly held - confinued

BEKE-£

Tin Hou Limited® Macau MOP25,000 = 6898 6763 Provision of agency semvices for gaming operafion

ARBRARP 25 25,000%M7 REBYEEZH NS

The Emperor Hotel Limited Hong Kong 17 10000 10000 Hotel operation

ARRREEERAT {2 BEEE

Very Sound Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 © 100.00 100.00 Properly investment

B nxRE
The Unit Serviced Apartments Limited Hong Kong 2 | 10000 100.00 Operation of serviced apariments
&% RN

Wealthy Gate Investment Limited Hong Kong 11 10000 100.00 Property investment

MERERRAA B nxRE

Wealthy Wide Limited Hong Kong 11 10000 100.00 Property development

HEERAA B UELS

Wider Success Limited Hong Kong 1 - 10000 Property investment

BARERAA B nxRE

Winning Treasure Limited Hong Kong 11 10000 100.00 Property investment

HERRAA B VESE

Notes: Bt 5t -

' All amounts are in Hong Kong dollars except stated U BREBEAEIN REFIEBNETAE
otherwise. fiL e

2 Wholly foreign owned enterprise. The company's English 2 PHNERE  NRIEX B BE B
name is for identification purpose only.

3 Those companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of 8 ZRERARABREFE 2ENE
Emperor E Hotel which shares are listed on the Stock CIRE-9: 30 R‘Hﬁ AT ET e
Exchange.

4 These companies are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of Y RERAIDREREAE 22 ENE
Emperor E Hotel and are regarded as non-wholly owned DR WHRAEBEBEZS R AT R
subsidiaries of the Company because the Group has KO BUR 2 i - Bt ZZ% AR
control over the financial and operating policies of these RERAZIEZEMBR
companies.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3% R MR

mER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £2020F3 3318 [FFE

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a)

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:
— continued

All subsidiaries, except for those companies incorporated
outside Hong Kong, carry on their businesses in Hong
Kong unless stated otherwise.

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, none of the
subsidiaries of the Company issued any debt securities.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

53. MB R RFHE—~&

Place of Proportion of ownership

incorporation interests and voting

and principal fights held by non-
Name of subsidiary place of business controlling interests

AMRIR FERERFSARER
WELAER IRERHE RERZULA

2020 2019
peror E Hotel" Bermuda/Macau

ESRETE ARE/ R 31.02% 32.37%

(a)

ARBRBERRZ T EMBARFE
mN &

BRAETRBAINIMAILZ AT FrEH
BRARDETBLEER (RHERER
Sh)

20203 A31H K201943H31H * A&
NEINE R R BB T ESE S

KEZZER  LRIBELIBZER
SERXENEEZANTIMBAR -EF
RRHEMMB AR ZFBEESRE
BRITK -

A BRI R ANB AT
2

TR AEEHRE SRR

HFEEMBRRIZFFE:
Accumulated non-
Profit allocated to controlling interests
non-controlling interests (Nofg)
ARTHERERZER R FERER (17)
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tén T TEn TEn
101,601 191,473 2,522,563 2,522,766

Note: Included in accumulated non-controlling interests, an
amount of HK$1,010,251,000 (2019: HK$991,863,000) is
mainly contributed from the non-controlling interests of the
Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries.

* Representing Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries

REEE () BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RmE
For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 20203 A31H [t F &

53. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 53.MtB A B E—42&

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) BHEEARFIERERS ZIFZEMMB AT
material non-controlling interests: — continued G &

Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries

RERGHERELWE QT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Current assets mENEE 3,762,292 3,355,421
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,515,966 2,885,771
Current liabilities mEBE 443,673 561,767
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 127,586 111,254
Equity attributable to the Company RNE RIS 3,184,436 3,045,405
Non-controlling interests of the REIRGOT)E 7 IR R
Emperor E Hotel 1,512,312 1,530,903
Non-controlling interests of the REIRBRERNB AR 2
Emperor E Hotel's subsidiaries FEFERAR HE A 1,010,251 991,863
Revenue WA 1,143,230 1,381,335
Costs, expenses, other gains and PR~ FsZ ~ B s fo
losses B8 (860,785) (943,038)
Other comprehensive (expense) FEHM2E () k&=
income for the year (712) 1,183
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNEEE AW
income for the year 281,733 439,480
Profit and total comprehensive e RA R 2K REEE:
income attributable:
Owners of the Company KAREB A 180,492 249,511
Non-controlling interests of the BEIRERE Y
Emperor E Hotel FEIERR A A 82,853 121,984
Non-controlling interests of the REIRERENB AR 2
Emperor E Hotel's subsidiaries JEIE R R e 18,388 67,985
281,733 439,480
Net cash inflow from operating KeEEESH 2R MAFEE
activities 313,622 431,943
Net cash outflow from investing KEEB RS R T
activities (235,714) (82,797)
Net cash outflow from financing BEEE 2R FRE
activities (152,743) (809,513)
Net cash outflow W& FEE (74,835) (460,367)

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HFBEHE

Results ¥E

m>=x

For the year ended 31 March
EZ3ANHLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT AT TAT THT

Revenue WA 2,365,382 4352386 3,148,894 4068467 5602894
(Loss) profit before taxation K& AT (512 3% F (3,670,483) 3493234 3834947 4,647,797  (1,850,633)
Taxation credit (charge) HEE R () 127,121 (165,472) (212,909) (956,997) (379,032)
(Loss) profit for the year FE (BE) & (3,543,362) 3,327,762 3,622,038 3,690,800  (2,229,665)

(Loss) profit for the year ~ EAEFE (E518)EF|:
attributable to:

Owners of the Company AR FIHEA A (3,644,359) 3,136,289 3371517 3483150  (2,391,188)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE#E AR5 100,997 191,473 250,521 207,650 161,523

(3,543,362) 3,327,762 3,622,038 3,690,800  (2,229,665)

Assets and Liabilities BEEREE

At 31 March
M3HA31H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT TAL TET

Total assets BELE 60,296,815 64244204 64253834 55760,118 48,051,959
Total liabilities BELE (30,574,611) (29,886,364) (31,495,254) (27,044,285) (22,317,424)
29,722,204 34,357,840 32758580 28,715833 25734535

Equity attributable to: FEIEHE A -
Owners of the Company AR RHEA A 27,200,235 31,835,074 29455373 25546530 22,752,712
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 2,521,969 2522766 3,303,207 3,169,303 2,981,823

29,722,204 34,357,840 32,758,580 28,715,833 25,734,535

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

Particulars of the Group’s major investment properties and AEER2020F3831HB 2 FEHEMENERF
properties under development as at 31 March 2020, are as follows:  #1%E Z 1B T ¢

Investment Properties REV=
Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking Interest duration
xKE tit
5 i} BEER B #E Frfh i 2 HEHE
sq.ft. %
FAR
1. Ground Floor and 1st Floor, 474-476 Lockhart Road, Commercial 4,660(G) - 100 Long
and Shop G on Ground Floor, Pun Tak Building, 478-484 [ (B%) RH
Lockhart Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BR IR ER T BATA-ATOR M T
RIVE R B 7 BA78- 484 A ERE
N ey
2. Ground Floor and 1st Floor of 46 Leighton Road and Commercial 6,280(G) - 100 Long
Ground Floor of 44 and 48 Leighton Road, RS (%) R
Lai Chi Building, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BEWELRE BRI T 1E
RIGEEAARASTIEEREM T
3. Units 1to 4 on 12th Floor, Wing Yip Commercial Building, Office 1,078(G) - 100 Medium
65-71 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po, Kowloon /N (%) h
NERKT M E65-715%
REBERNEI2BI1Z4E
4. Carpark Nos. 1-11, 20, 23, 23A, 24 and 24A Carparks - 16 100 Long
on Ground Floor, Kwong Sang Hong Building, Blocks C By =31
and D, 188 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREFEFE18HREETARCRDE
11120 + 23 + 23A « 24 24ASR B i
5. Unit 601-604, 606, 705, 801, 802, 806, 901, 902, 1001, Office 65,560(Q) - 100 Medium
1102-1104, 1206, 1207, 1505, 1506, 1605,1607, /N (%) o H
1701-1707, 1801-1803, 1806, 1807, 1901, 1905-1907,
2001-2007, 2101-2102
Emperor Group Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
BREFHRFHEBBREEREF
6012604 606 ~705 ~801 ~802 ~806 ~901 ~902 1001 *
1102%1104 ~ 1206 + 1207 ~ 1505 ~ 1506 * 1605 ~ 1607 *
170121707 ~ 180121803 ~ 1806 ~ 1807 ~ 1901
190521907 * 200122007 ;2101E2102F
6. Shops on Basement One and Two, G/F - 4/F, Some Commercial/ 175,070(G) 36 100 Medium
Commercial Units on 22/F — 29/F, Emperor Group Centre Carparks (B%) i H

288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong HE/ B
BAEHEHEBREEERTL

F-ERE_EHE MTE4EZHUK

RENEETHREN

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
e S

Investment Properties — continued REWHE—Z
Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking Interest duration
Ax5E T
e R# BEHEER ENU#E iz HEHE
sq.ft. %
FER
7. Ground Floor and 1st Floor, 523 Lockhart Road, Commercial 1,850(G) - 100 Long
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong GES (B%) =31
BRI B35 T 118
8. Shops 1-3 & 5 on Ground Floor, the whole of 1st, 2nd Shops/ 26,952(G) - 100 Long
and 3rd Floors, the External Walls of Ground Floor to Commercial (BE) =5
3rd Floor, the Flat Roof on 5th Floor and Parapet Walls [ VA E
enclosing the Flat Roof on 5th Floor and Lift No. 1 and
No. 5, 8 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BEWEEEZECN
i T35 RO 118 2B %
SERE MTEIBZIME
58T R BESETRZERK
155 ROREH
9. Shop 1-4 on Lower Ground Floor, Yee Fung Building, Shops 3,364(G) - 100 Medium
1A Wong Nai Chung Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong ] (%) i H]
ERRSHERBEIRARERERED T1E45H
10, Units A to H on 17th Floor and Vehicle Parking Space No. 7 Industrial/ 11,554(S) 1 100 Long
on Ground Floor, Hong Kong Industrial Building Carpark (ER) =5
444-452 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong I%/8f
BB 1R ETI444-4525;
BEIEABITRAZHER
it T TSR R AL
11, Units C, D and G on 18th Floor Unit H on 1st Floor and Industrial/ 6,060(S) 2 100 Long
Vehicle Parking Spaces Nos. 11-12 on Ground Floor, Carparks (ER) =5
Hong Kong Industrial Building, I%/58f
444-452 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong
BAEHERM-42R BB TENE 182
C DRGE:
TBHE it T11ZE125 R 31
12, Shops A & B on Ground Floor, Industrial 14,211(S) - 100 Long
Hong Kong Industrial Building, I% (ERA) =
444-452 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong
BB R ET444-4525;
BREIEREM TARBH S

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

Investment Properties — continued REWMHE—Z
Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking Interest duration
A5E Tt
ik i} BEEER EUHA FribfEs HEHE
sq.ft. %
FER

13, Shops 7-11 & Entrance on Ground Floor, the whole of Commercial 21,720(G) - 100 Long
1stand 2nd Floor, Wei Kei Building, GRS (%) =
275 Chatham Road North, Hung Hom, Kowloon
NERABRRUE L2755
HEBMT/ENRERAD:
1ERERE

14, The Ulfert Centre (formerly known as Golden Castle Industrial 178,815(G) - 100 Medium
Industrial Building), 4 Kin Fat Lane, Tuen Mun, T% (%) i
New Territories
AR % B4 B LR AL O
(AIEEBIEXNE)

15. Portion B on Ground Floor, 63-69 Avenida do Infante D. ~ Commercial 1,600(G) - 100 Short
Henrique and Shop C2 on Ground Floor, LS (%) ki
No. 5 Rua Dr. Pedro Jose Lobo, Macau
RFIREF A G R63-695BEM N RERELTH
5% T C255 &

16.  Shops A, B & E, on Ground Floor, Hung Hei Mansion, Commercial 3,974(G) - 100 Long
5-8 Queen Victoria Road, Central, Hong Kong L (%) =
BEPRE SN ERE-8FBERE
# A BRESRH

17. Shops 1-6 on Ground Floor, 1st and 2nd Floor, 1st and Commercial 5,549(G) - 100 Medium
2nd Advertising Walls, 525 Shanghai Street, Mongkok, S §=+3 hE
Kowloon
NEERE A 1§ E525%:

MEeT 1B E2E
F-REIIMNBESMUE

18, Unit C on 6th Floor, CNT Tower, Wanchai, Hong Kong Office 940(G) - 100 Long
BREFILERU6ECE PRE (2%) =31

19, Basement, Ground Floor, 1st to 4th Floor of Block A, Commercial 15,788(G) - 100 Long
Centro Comercial Hoi Meng, GRS (%) =

No. 201-209 Avenida De Aimeida Ribeiro
1-3 Patio Das Esquinas, Macau

RPIET 55 #5201-200% R KB5S

1-3R AR ER DA - 1 T R1ZE418

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
e S

Investment Properties — continued REMHE—Z
Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking Interest duration
A5E T
B it} BEHEER EUHA Fribfes HEHH
sq.ft. %
FER
20. Flat A & C on 12th Floor and Flat B, on 17th Floor Residential 1,780(G) - 100 Long
Ying Fai Court, 1 Ying Fai Terrace, Hong Kong FE (%) =5
BRERBEIREERI2BARCER
17EBE
21, Shop A, D2 & E2 on Ground Floor, Harilela Mansion, Shops 3,061(G) - 100 Medium
81 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon B (%) hE
NERPHBIEIFEFNAE
# A D2 E25H A
22. 153-157 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, New Territories ~ Commercial/ 6,963(G) - 100 Medium
MR THE LIAHE153-1575% Residential () ki
BE/ T
23, 54-56 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Commercial/ 5,138(G) - 100 Long
BB R 2 & ZH54-56% Residential (%) =5
BE/ T
24, Ground Floor, 20 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Shops 1,125(G) - 100 Long
Hong Kong B (%) =
BEMEEERH0%NT
25, 22-24 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Shops 7,868(G) - 100 Long
BB BEE R 120-245; Gk () 3t
26. Fitfort, 560 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong Shops/ 134,411(G) 353 100 Long
BB AR S ECOR RS Carparks (%) R
wB /e
27. Shop C & D on Ground Floor and Units A and B on Shops 3,710(G) - 100 Medium
1st Floor, Mercantile House, Kowloon B (%) hE
NEBFAEM FCRDWRH K IEARBE
28, Ground Floor, 76 Percival Street, Hong Kong Shops 600(G) - 100 Long
BERIEET6TM T Bk () 3t
29, Shop A & B on Ground Floor, Office A & B on 1st Floor ~ Shops/Office 3,720(G) - 100 Long
Tak Fat Building, 50 - 52 Russell Street, [E: W N () =
Hong Kong
BEARRHE0-SRERANE
T ARBR &
R REAKBE

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

Investment Properties — continued TEYE—E
Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking Interest duration
X5E T
& i} BEEER B #A iRz HEHHE
sq.ft. %
AR
30.  Shops on Ground Floor, The Java, 98 Java Road, Shops 4,435(G) - 100 Long
Hong Kong B (%) =
BB E 8 The Javatt T4
31, Shops on Ground Floor and 1st Floor, 18 Upper East, Shops 11,440(G) - 100 Long
18-36 Shing On Street, Hong Kong ] (%) =
BB KL H18-36%
B e 18 T RIIBE
32 Shops on Ground Floor and 1st Floor, The Prince Place, Shops 6,320(G) - 100 Medium
396-400 Prince Edward Road West, Kowloon EE () P
NEERFiBF396-4005: 40 0 KT
T RIEREH
33, Shops on Ground Floor, Upton, Shops 8,183(G) - 100 Long
180 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong Bl (%) =5
BEATHERBORABEN THH
3. Ground Floor, 67 Wellington Street, Hong Kong Shops 855(G) - 100 Long
BEHEEEOTHI T Bk () 3.1
35, Flat B on Ground Floor, Hon Kwong Mansion, Shops 800(G) - 100 Medium
25-29 Hankow Road & 4 Ichang Street, Kowloon 5] (%) hE
NEE M B25-29% )
HEHRER AR TBE
36.  Shop C on Ground Floor, Daily House, Shops 750(G) - 100 Medium
35, 36 & 37 Haiphong Road, Kowloon B (%) hE
NEEB 835 « 36 K37
BT T CHR
37. Shops 30 & 33A on Ground Floor and Mezz Floor, Shops 1,717(G) - 100 Medium
Tsimshatsui Mansion, 83-97 Nathan Road, A (%) hE
36-50 Lock Road, Kowloon
BT 2883975 )k 41836505
ERAEM T R EZ30K%33A% H
38 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong Shops/Office/ 110,532(G) 30 100 Long
BB ETETITEN Carparks () R
i/ PRE/
Bfi

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZZ25%E (EIFR) BRAHF 207
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
e S

Investment Properties — continued REWHE—Z
Land
Car Group’s lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking Interest duration
A5E T
i 2 it} BEHEER EUHA Fribfes HEHH
sq.ft. %
FER

39, The Pulse, 28 Beach Road, Repulse Bay, Hong Kong Commercial/ 167,000(G) 97 100 Long

BB ZKEGEE285 The Pulse Shops/ (2%) =31
Carparks
EEVE:L Ve
B

40. 82 Hung To Road, Kowloon Industrial/ 89,500(G) 9 100 Medium
TLEE B B B85 Carparks (%) HH

I%/Efu

41, Emperor Commercial Centre, (formerly known as Commercial/ 39,400(G) - 100 Long
Wincome Centre) 39-41 Des Voeux Road Central, Office (%) R
Central, Hong Kong CEYE VNS
ERPREHETIMREEFEFL
(RTRE AR L)

42, 45-51 Kwok Shui Road, New Territories Industrial/ 129,147(G) 13 100 Medium
I RBUIR 45515 Carparks (%) H

I%/%fu

43, 181-183 Oxford Street, London, UK Commercial/ 12,731(G) - 100 Freehold

R R B4R ET181-183% Office (2%) KA
BE/WAE

44, Emperor Nam Van Centre, 71-85 Avenida do Infante Commercial 29,590(G) - 100 Short
D. Herique, 514-540 Avenida da Praia Grande, Macau G (%) gkt
BPIREFAFIET1-85% K
HEREHO14-bA0FEEREFR

45, Emperor Group Centre Ding 12 Jianguomen Avenue Commercial/  1,062,000(G) - 100 Medium
Chaoyang District, Beijing, The PRC Office (incl. el
REEREBEEBRPIMNAE T 125 BE/BLE basement)

HEXEFL ()
(BEE)

46.  Commercial/Car Park Block, Multi-storey Car Parks A, B Commercial/ 95,913(G) 979 100 Medium
and C, Open Car Parks and Associated Areas 5-19 and Carparks (12%) hE
6-12 Sui Wo Road, Sha Tin, New Territories EEYE
MRDBBRES-19K6-12%

BE/ B AE

ZEREHA BRCE
BRARES ALY

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

Investment Properties — continued

Location

b

47. 17 Yik Yam Street, Hong Kong
BRRBEHITR

48 Ampersand Building, 111-125 Oxford Street, London,
United Kingdom
HERH
42 H111-1255
Ampersand A B

49, Shop No. 1-9 and 11 on Ground Floor,
Shop No.1 and 2 on Lower Ground Floor, Fairview Height,
No.1 Seymour Road, Hong Kong
EEAREITIEESEM T1E5
RA15R 58 Bt TR 1 Je 25k 4

50. No.151 Hollywood Road, Hong Kong

BRRFRBISIHR
Remarks: (G) - gross floor area
(S) - saleable area

REME &

Purpose Floor area

itk BHEE
sq.ft.
FAR
Shops/ 17,243(G)
Residential (%)
LY
Commercial/ 90,999(G)
Office (%)
GEYE VNS

Commercial 13,173(G)

RS (B%)

Commercial 22,545(S)

RS (ER)

Land

Car Group’s lease
parking Interest duration
X&E Tt

B #E Fr it a2 REHE

%

- 100 Long
31
- 100 Freehold
KA
- 100 Long
31
- 100 Long
3

(iB2E) —BEEE@E

) —EREE

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
e S

Investment Properties Under Development BREAREYE
Estimated Estimated Land
Gross Floor  Stage of Completion Car  Group’s lease
Location Purpose Site Area Area  Completion Date Parking Interest  duration
fhatH R fhat 58 IunEg
ok ks BEER RERR TAKR BREH ENRE  MEER il
sq.ft. sq.ft.
FER FER %

1. 75-85 Lockhart Road Commercial 6,376 96,000 Construction work in 2021 - 100 Long
Wan Chai GES progress 3
Hong Kong TREET
BREH R ET5-85%

2. Emperor Star City, a site Commercial 246,173 1,300,000  Foundation 2024 - Note Medium
located at Yuyuan Jiedao complex (incl. completed fizE R
548 Jiefang 11/1 QuHuangpu  EE&AME  basement) WETRE K
District, Shanghai, The PRC (BEE)

HEREY

findE FEERR
BBl 8548H
WAliva:)

3. 25-27 Oxford Street, Commerciall 2,583 20,000  Construction work 2020 - 100 Freehold
London, UK Office in progress KA
RERI 5275, B%/BLE TR

Note: Under the JV Agreement, the Group would provide the land, whereas  [fizF: BIEA & NEEBIRME T &2 B EGA
joint venture partner would bear the full construction cost and the EPHEEAAN MEFOBEESHEFEMD D -
saleable floor area would be split between the parties in equal shares.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (ER) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

Property Under Development — For Sale BELHEZBRERYE

Estimated Estimated Land

Gross Floor  Stage of Completion Car  Group’s lease

Property Purpose Site Area Area  Completion Date  Parking Interest duration
| fiat A&E +TuHE

LIES R# BEER BEER TAER EMBH BEAUHME FEER HE

sq.ft. sq.ft.
FAR  FER %

. Various Lots, DD210, Residential 98,000 26,000  Site 2025 - 100 Medium
Sai Kung, 3 bk g
New Territories
TRABELENHE210%

LA ER

. 8-10A Mosque Street, Residential 4,293 34,000  Construction work in 2020 - 100 Long
Mid-levels, FE progress =5
Hong Kong TRINEET
BB+ L B E58-10A%;

. TMTL 490, Tai Lam, Residential 22,000 29,000  Construction work in 2020 18 100 Medium
Tuen Mun, FE progress R
New Territories TRINEET
HAREPIAE
P R 4905%

. RBL 1198, Shouson Residential 116,896 88,000  Construction work in 2020 32 40 Medium
Hill Road West, 3 progress R
Hong Kong TRINEET
EREBEIER
BRD3E E 4 R 119857

. Nos. 24-26A Davis Street,  Residential/ 2,507 20,300  Foundation work in 2022 - 100 Long
Kennedy Town, Commercial progress =5
Hong Kong FE/ % METRNIEET
ERBREMBERTH
QAZE26ATE

. Nos. 20-26 Residential 3,299 29,700  Foundation work in 2022 - 100 Long
Old Bailey Street & No. 11 =% progress R
Chancery Lane, WE TR
Hong Kong
EER BT H202265;

AREE R

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE5£E (E) BRAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

YE L

Property Under Development — For Sale —

continued

Property

LS

7. 1Wang Tak Street,
Hong Kong
BRLREER

8. Nos. 24-30 Bonham Road,

Mid-levels West,
Hong Kong

BB+ LR E24-30%

9. Nos. 74-80,

Old Main Street Aberdeen,

Aberdeen, Hong Kong

BAREHEANEAY

74-805%

10.127 Caine Road,
Hong Kong
BBERE12TH

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Purpose Site Area
A& 1t BT R
sq.ft.
EER
Residential 5816
FE
Residential 12,984
FE
Residential/ 4,581
Commercial
FE/ %
Residential 3,017
%

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 fF#k

Estimated
Gross Floor
Area
CHE: {6
BEHE
sq.ft.
¥HR
58,000

104,000

38,000

25,000

BEHECREIYE—Z
Estimated
Stage of Completion Car  Group’s
Completion Date  Parking Interest
&t rEE
SRR Bt ERAY BEUHE fibaER
%
Foundation work in 2022 10 100
progress
HE TR IE#TT
Demolition work in 2023 21 100
progress
b TRRERTT
Demolition work in 2023 - 100
progress
b TRRERTT
Demolition work in 2024 - 100

progress
IR M

REEE () BRAR

Land
lease
duration
TG
i

Medium

i

Long
=31

Long
=31

Long
=31



o=l
———

g AL (BB ) £ PR 2 )

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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